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26th ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20 
NOTICE 

NOTICE is hereby given that the Twenty Sixth Annual General Meeting of the Members of Aryaman Financial 
Services Limited will be held on Tuesday, September 29, 2020 at 01:00 P.M. through Video Conference (VC) I Other 
Audio-Visual Means (OA VM) to transact the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1) To consider and adopt :-

a. the Audited Financial Statements of the company for the financial year ended March 31, 2020, together with the 
Report of the Board and the Auditors thereon; and 

b. the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the company for the financial year ended March 31, 2020, together 
with the Report of the Board and the Auditors thereon. 

2) To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Shripal Shah (DIN: 01628855), who retires by rotation and being eligible, offer 
himself for re-appointment. 

NOTES: 

1. In view of the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide Circular No. 14/2020 dated 
April 08, 2020, Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and Circular No. 2012020 dated May 05, 2020, (collectively 
referred to as "MCA Circulars") permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) through video 
conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OA VM), without the physical presence of the Members at a common 
venue. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 CAct"), SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 CSEBI Listing Regulations") and MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being 
held through VC I OAVM. Central Depositories Limited CNSDL') will be providing facility for voting through remote 
e-voting, for participation in the AGM through VC I OA VM facility and e-voting during the AGM. The procedure for 
participating in the meeting through VC I OA VM is explained below and is also available on the website of the 
Company at www.afsl.co.in 

2. Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 1412020 dated 8th April 2020, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the 
members is not available for this AGM. However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint Authorised 
Representatives to attend the AGM through VCI OA VM and participate thereat and cast their votes through e-voting. 

3. The attendance of the members attending the AGM through VC I OA VM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning 
the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

4. Members of the Company under the category of Institutional Investors are encouraged to attend and vote at the AGM 
through VC IOAVM. Corporate members intending to authorise their representatives to participate and vote at the AGM 
are requested to send a duly certified copy of the board resolution authorizing their representatives to attend and vote on 
their behalf at the AGM. 

5. The Members can join the AGM through VC I OA VM mode 30 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the 
commencement of the AGM by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. 

6. The Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) and Details of directors to be re-appointed, in 
respect of the business as set out in the Notice is annexed hereto. 

7. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their shareholding maintained under 
Section 170 of the Act, the Register of Contracts and Arrangements in which Directors are interested maintained under 
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Section 189 of the Act and all other documents referred to in the Notice will be available for inspection in the electronic 
mode upto the date of AGM of the Company and will also be available electronically for inspection by the Members 
during the AGM. Members seeking to inspect such documents can send the e-mail to info @afs1.co.in 

8. In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended and Regulation 44 of the Listing Regulations, and the MCA Circulars, the 
Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members through Central Depository Services (India) Limited 
("CDSL") in respect of the business to be transacted at AGM. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e­
voting as well as e-voting system on the date of the AGM will be provided by CDSL. Members of the Company holding 
shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut -off date i.e. 22nd September 2020, may cast their 
vote either by remote e-voting as well as e-voting system as on date of AGM. A person who is not a member as on the 
cut-off date should treat this Notice for information purpose only. 
The information with respect to voting process and other instructions regarding e-voting are given in details in this 
Notice. 

9. The Notice of 26th AGM and the Annual Report of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2020 is uploaded on the 
Company's website www.afs1.co.in and may be accessed by the members and will also be available on the website of 
the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited d at www.bseindia.com and on the website of CDSL. 

Copies of the above documents are being sent by electronic mode to the members whose email addresses are registered 
with the Company / Depository Participant for communication purposes unless any member has requested for a hard 
copy of the same. For members who have not registered their email addresses, physical copies of the aforesaid 
documents are being sent by the permitted mode. 

10. Mr. ligarkumar Gandhi, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. F7569) has been appointed for as the 
Scrutinizer for providing facility to the members of the Company to scrutinize the voting and remote e-voting process in 
a fair and transparent manner. 

11. The Scrutinizer shall submit a consolidated Scrutinizer's Report (votes casted during the AGM and votes casted through 
remote e-voting) of the total votes cast in favour of or against, if any, not later than three days after the conclusion of the 
AGM to the Chairman of the Company. The Chairman, or any other person authorised by the Chairman, shall declare the 
result of the voting. The result declared along with the consolidated Scrutinizer's Report shall be simultaneously placed 
on the Company's website www.afs1.co.in and on the website of CDSL and communicated to the BSE Limited. 

12. The resolution shall be deemed to be passed on the date of AGM, subject to the receipt of sufficient votes. 

13. Members seeking any information or clarification on the accounts or any other matter to be placed at AGM are requested 
to send written queries to the Company on info @afs1.co.in , atleast 10 days before the date of the meeting to enable the 
management to respond quickly. 

14. SEBI vide its circular dated 8th June, 2018 amended Regulation 40 of the Listing Regulation pursuant to which requests 
for effecting transfer of securities shall not be processed unless the securities are held in the dematerialized form. 
Members holding the shares in physical form are requested to dematerialize their holdings at the earliest as it will not be 
possible to transfer shares held in physical mode. 

Further, dematerialization would facilitate paperless trading through state-of-the-art technology, quick transfer of 
corporate benefits to members and avoid inherent problems of bad deliveries, loss in postal transit, theft and mutilation 
of share certificate and will not attract any stamp duty. It also substantially reduces the risk of fraud. Hence, we request 
all those members who have still not dematerialized their shares to get their shares dematerialized at the earliest. 

15. SEBI vide its circular dated 20th April 2018, directed all the listed companies to record the Income Tax PAN and bank 
account details of all their shareholders holding shares in physical form. All those shareholders who are yet to update 
their details with the Company are requested to do so at the earliest. 
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16. Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, members holding shares in physical form may file nomination in the 
prescribed Form SH -13 and for cancellation / variation in nomination in the prescribed Form SH -14 with the Company's 
RT A. In respect of shares held in demat form, the nomination form may be filed with the respective Depository 
Participant. 

17. SEBI has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. 
Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN to their Depository Participant 
with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts and members holding shares in physical form to the Company / 
RTA. 

18. With a view to conserve natural resources, we request Members to update and register their email addresses with their 
Depository Participants (DPs) or with the Company, as the case may be, to enable the Company to send communications 
including Annual Report, Notices, Circulars, etc. electronically. Members holding shares in Physical mode may register 
their email id by providing necessary details like Folio No., Name of Member(s) and self attested scanned copy of PAN 
card or Aadhar Card by email to info@afsl.co.in 

19. Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM in accordance with the MCA Circulars, the route map, proxy form and 
attendance slip are not attached to the Notice. 

20. The helpline number regarding any query / assistance for participation in the AGM through VC / OA VM are 022-
23058738 or 022-23058543 or 022-23058542. 

21. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Wednesday, September 
23,2020 to Tuesday, September 29,2020. 

22. Voting through electronic means 

1. In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment 
Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations 2015 (Listing Regulations), the Company is pleased to provide members facility to 
exercise their right to vote on resolutions proposed to be considered at Annual General Meeting by electronic means 
and the business may be transacted through e-Voting Services. The facility of casting the votes by the members 
using an electronic voting system from a place other than venue of the Annual General Meeting Cremote e-voting") 
will be provided by Central Depository Services Limited (CDSL). 

2. The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available at the AGM and the members attending the 
meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the meeting through 
ballot paper. 

3. The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM but shall not 
be entitled to cast their vote again. 

4. The remote e-voting period commences on Friday, September 25, 2020 (9:00 a.m.) and ends on Monday, 
September 28, 2020 (5:00 p.m.). During this period members' of the Company, holding shares either in physical 
form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of Tuesday, September 22, 2020, may cast their vote by 
remote e-voting. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a 
resolution is cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently. 

5. The process and manner for remote e-voting are as under: 
i. The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com. 

ii. Click on ShareholderslMembers. 
iii. Now Enter your User ID 

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 
c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the 

Company. 
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Alternatively, if you are registered for CDSL's EASIJEASIEST e-services, you can log-in at 
https:llwww.cdslindia.com from Login - M yeasi using your login credentials. Once you successfully log-in to 
CDSL's EASIJEASIEST e-services, click on e-Voting option and proceed directly to cast your vote electronically. 

iv. Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 
v. If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an 

earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used. 
vi. If f' £ II h . b I . you are a Irst time user 0 ow t e steps gIven eow: 

For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form 

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *p AN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable 
for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 

• Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the CompanylDepository 
Participant are requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or 
contact Company IR T A. 

Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mrnlyyyy format) as recorded 
Bank Details in your demat account or in the company records in order to login. 
OR Date of • If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company please enter 

Birth (DOB) the member id I folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as mentioned 
in instruction (v). 

vii. After entering these details appropriately, click on "SUBMIT" tab. 
viii. Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. 

However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach 'Password Creation' menu wherein 

they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this 

password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which 

they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly 

recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 

password confidential. 

ix. For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the 

resolutions contained in this Notice. 

x. Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote. 

xi. On the voting page, you will see "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the same the option 

"YES/NO" for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to 

the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution. 

xii. Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 
xiii. After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on "SUBMIT". A confirmation box will be 

displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on "OK", else to change your vote, click on "CANCEL" 
and accordingly modify your vote. 

xiv. Once you "CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 
xv. You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on "Click here to print" option on the Voting page. 

xvi. If a de mat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image 
verification code and click on Forgot Password& enter the details as prompted by the system. 

xvii. Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL's mobile app m-Voting available for android based 
mobiles. The m-Voting app can be downloaded from Google Play Store, Windows and Apple smart 
phones. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app while voting on your mobile. 
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PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL ADDRESSES ARE NOT REGISTERED 
WITH THE DEPOSITORIES FOR OBTAINING LOGIN CREDENTIALS FOR E-VOTING FOR THE 
RESOLUTIONS PROPOSED IN THIS NOTICE: 

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of 
the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested 
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to CompanylRTA email id. 

2. For Demat shareholders -, please provide Demat account detials (CDSL-16 digit beneficiary ID or NSDL-16 digit 
DPID + CUD), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy 
of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to Company/RTA email id. 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE EGMIAGM THROUGH VC/OAVM 
ARE AS UNDER: 

1. Shareholder will be provided with a facility to attend the EGMI AGM through VC/OA VM through the CDSL e­
Voting system. Shareholders may access the same at https:llwww.evotingindia.com under shareholders/members 
login by using the remote e-voting credentials. The link for VC/OA VM will be available in shareholder/members 
login where the EVSN of Company will be displayed. 

2. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops I IPads for better experience. 

3. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance 
during the meeting. 

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile 
Hotspot may experience AudioNideo loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore 
recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register themselves as a 
speaker by sending their request in advance atleast 5 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account 
numberlfolio number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). The shareholders who do not wish to speak 
during the AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance 5 days prior to meeting mentioning their 
name, demat account numberlfolio number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). These queries will be 
replied to by the company suitably by email. 

6. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask 
questions during the meeting. 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING DURING THE AGMIEGM ARE AS 
UNDER: 

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the EGMI AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for Remote 
e-voting. 

2. Only those shareholders, who are present in the EGMI AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their 
vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to 
vote through e-Voting system available during the EGM/AGM. 

3. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the EGMI AGM and if the same 
shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility , then the votes cast by such 
shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the 
shareholders attending the meeting. 
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4. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the EGMIAGM. However, they 
will not be eligible to vote at the EGMI AGM. 

xviii. Note for Non - Individual Shareholders and Custodians 
• Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required to log 

on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates. 
• A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 
• After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. 

The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on. 
• The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on 

approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote. 
• A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of 

the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the 
same. 

• Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution! Authority 
letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to 
vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email addressviz info@afsl.co.in , if they have voted 
from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the 
same. 

xix. If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the e-Voting System, you may 
refer the Frequently Asked Questions CFAQs") and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com. 
under help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact Mr. Nitin Kunder (022-
23058738 ) or Mr. Mehboob Lakhani (022-23058543) or Mr. Rakesh Dalvi (022-23058542). 

xx. All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh 
Dalvi, Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon 
Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an 
email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call on 022-23058542/43. 

23. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners maintained by the 
depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting as well as voting at the 
AGM through ballot paper. 

24. Mr. ligarkumar Gandhi, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. F7569) has been appointed for as the 
Scrutinizer for providing facility to the members of the Company to scrutinize the voting and remote e -voting process in 
a fair and transparent manner. 

25. The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to be held, allow voting 
with the assistance of scrutinizer, by use of "Ballot Paper" for all those members who are present at the AGM but have 
not cast their votes by availing the remote e-voting facility. 

26. The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the general meeting, will first count the votes cast at the meeting 
and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the 
employment of the Company and shall make, not later than three days of the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated 
scrutinizer's report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in 
writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the result of the voting forthwith. 

27. The Results declared alongwith the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the Company 
http://afsl.co.in!investor-relation.html and on the website of CDSL immediately after the declaration of result by the 
Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing. The results shall also be immediately forwarded to the BSE Limited, 
Mumbai. 
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28. GREEN INTIATIVE 
As a responsible corporate cItizen, the Company welcomes and supports the 'Green Initiative' initiated by the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India (MCA), by its recent circulars, enabling electronic delivery of 
documents including the annual reports, notices, circulars to shareholders at their e-mail address previously 
registered with the depository participants (DPs)/company/registrars and share transfer agents. Shareholders who 
have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to register their e-mail addresses to help us in the 
endeavour to save trees and protect the planet. Those holding shares in demat form can register their email address 
with their concerned DP. Those shareholders who hold shares in physical form are requested to register their e-mail 
addresses with our registrar, Adroit Corporate Services Pvt. Ltd, by sending a duly filed "registration 1 updation of 
shareholder information form" available on http://afsl.co.in/investor-relation.html, duly signed by the first Isole 
holder quoting details of folio no. 

29. As per regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed companies can be transferred only in 
dematerialized form with effect from April I, 2019, except for transmission or transposition of securities. In view of this 
and to eliminate all risks associated with the physical shares members holding shares in physical form are requested to 
consider converting their holdings into dematerialized form. Members can contact Company or Company's Registrar and 
Transfer Agents of the Company for any support in this regard. 

30. All queries relating to Share Transfer and allied subjects should be addressed to: 
Adroit Corporate Services Private Limited 
19/20, Jafferboy Industrial Estate 

1st Floor, Makwana Road, 
Marol Naka, Andberi (E), 

Mumbai - 400 059 

Registered Office: 
102, Ganga Chambers, 

6A/1, W.E.A., Karol Bagh, 
New Delhi - llO 0051 

Tel: 022 - 62166999 
Fax: 022 - 2263 0434 
CIN: L74899DLl994PLC059009 
Website: http://www.afsl.co.in 
Email: info@afs l.co.in 

By Order Of The Board Of Directors 
FORARYAMAN FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED 

Sd/­

CHAITALI PANSARI 
(Company Secretary) 

Mumbai, Wednesday, September 02, 2020 
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Annexure - A 

The relevant details of directors who is proposed to be re-appointed directors of the Company, as required under Regulation 
36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and SS-2 issued by the Company 
Secretaries of India are as under; 

Particulars Mr. Shripal Shah 
Current Position Whole Time Director (Liable to retire by rotation) cum CFO 
Age 34 Years 
Qualification BMS,CFA 
Experience More than lOY ears in the field of investments and finance 
Date of first Appointment October 24, 2008 

Remuneration Drawn Rs. 18.00 Lacs (in FY 2019-20) 

Terms and Conditions of Re - Appointment As per the resolution at item no. 2 of the Notice convening this 
Meeting read with explanatory statement thereto. 

Number of Board Meetings attended during Attended all the Six meetings held till date in FY. 2019-20 
the year 
Shareholding in the Company 90,000 Equity Shares 

Relationship with Other Directors Mr. Shreyas Shah (Brother) 

Directorship in other listed entities Aryaman Capital Markets Ltd 
Escorp Asset Management Ltd 

Memberships / Chairmanship of Committees Membership in Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship 
in other Companies Committee of Aryaman Capital Markets Limited and Escorp 

Asset Management Limited 

Other Directorships Mahshri Enterprises Pvt. Ltd. 
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BOARD'S REPORT 

To, 
The Members, 

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting their Twenty Sixth Annual Report on the Business and Operations of the 
Company and the Accounts for the Financial Year ended 31" March, 2020 (period under review). 

1. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY: 

The summary of consolidated and standalone financial highlights for the financial year ended March 31,2020 and previous 
financial year ended March 31,2019 is given below: 

Consolidated Financial Performance: 
« in lakhs) 

Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 
Total Income 8,946.18 8,,676.53 
Less: Expenditure 8,815.15 8,433.70 
Profit before Depreciation 145.07 263.56 
Less: Depreciation 14.04 20.73 
Profit before Tax 131.03 242.83 
Provision for Taxation 37.73 64.44 
Profit after Tax 93.30 179.27 
Other Comprehensive Income (209.07) (22.98) 
Total Comprehensive Income (115.77) 156.29 
Total Profit/Loss for the year attributable to: 
Owners of the Company 90.71 177.29 
Non-Controlling Interests 2.59 1.98 
Other Comprehensive Income for the year attributable to: 
Owners of the Company (153.48) (31.49) 
Non-Controlling Interests (55.59) 8.51 
Total Comprehensive Income/Loss for the year attributable to: 
Owners of the Company (62.78) 145.79 
Non-Controlling Interests (53.00) 10.49 
Earning Per Share (Face Value 0[<10) 
(1) Basic 0.80 1.52 
(2) Diluted 0.80 1.52 

Standalone Financial Performance: 
« in lakhs) 

Particulars 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18 
Total Income 478.12 865.58 
Less: Expenditure 358.04 643.69 
Profit before Depreciation 127.46 210.61 
Less: Depreciation 7.38 11.28 
Profit before Tax 120.08 221.89 
Provision for Taxation 36.58 56.78 
Profit after Tax 83.50 165.11 
Other Comprehensive Income -
Total Comprehensive Income 83.50 165.11 
Earning Per Share (Face Value 0[<10) 
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(1) Basic 0.71 1.41 
(2) Diluted 0.71 1.41 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE: 

Standalone: 
The Total Income of the Company stood at Rs. 478.12 Lacs for the year ended March 31, 2020 as against Rs 865.57 Lacs in 
the previous year. The Company made a Net Profit of Rs. 83.50 Lacs for the year ended March 31, 2020 as compared to the 
Net Profit ofRs. 165.10 Lacs in the previous year. 

Consolidated: 
The Consolidated Total Income was higher by at Rs. 8946.18 Lacs for the financial year ended March 31, 2020 as against 
Rs. 8676.54 Lacs during the previous financial year. Consolidated Net Profit was lower at Rs. 93.30 Lacs for the year ended 
March 31, 2020 as compared to Rs. 179.27 Lacs in the previous year registering a decrease of 47.96% 

The consolidated financials reflect the cumulative performance of the Company together with its subsidiaries. Detailed 
description about the business carried on by these entities including the Company is contained in the Management Discussion 
and Analysis report forming part of this Annual Report. 

2. TRANSFER TO RESERVES IN TERMS OF SECTION 134 (3) (J) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

The Board has decided not to transfer any amount to the Reserves for the year under review. 

3. DIVIDEND: 

The dividend policy for the year under review has been formulated taking into consideration of growth of the company and to 
conserve resources, the Directors do not recommend any dividend for year ended March 31, 2020. 

4. STATE OF AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY: 

Information on the operations and financial performance, among others for the period under review, is given in the 
Management Discussion and Analysis Report which is annexed to this Report and is in accordance with the SEBI (Listing 
Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

5. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY 

There has been no change in nature of business of the Company during the FY under review. 

6. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

i. Change in Directors 

During the period under review, there were no changes in Director. 

ii. Committees of Board of Directors 

There has been no change in Committees of Board of Directors during period under review. 

iii. Independent Directors 

Independent Directors have provided their confirmation, that they meet the criteria of independence as provided in 
sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
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An independent director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of a Company, but 
shall be eligible for reappointment for next five years on passing of a special resolution by the Company. 

iv. Retirement by Rotation of the Directors 

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. 
Shripal Shah, Executive Director of the Company, retires by rotation and offers himself for re- appointment. 

The brief resume of Mr. Shripal Shah, the nature of his expertise in specific functional areas, names of the 
companies in which he has held directorships, his shareholding etc. are furnished in the" Annexure A" to notice of 
the ensuing AGM. 

v. Key Managerial Personnel 

During the period under review, Ms. Chaitali Pansari was appointed as the Company Secretary and Compliance 
Officer w.e.f January 09, 2020 due to resignation tendered and accepted by Board of Directors of Ms. Gunjan 
Kataruka as on January 08, 2020. 

7. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS 

There have been no material changes and commitments, which affect the financial position of the Company which have 
occurred between the end of the FY and the date of this Report. 

8. BOARD MEETINGS: 

During the year, Six Board Meetings were convened and duly held. The details of which are given in the Corporate 
Governance Report, which forms part of this report. The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period 
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 

9. AUDIT COMMITTEE: 

The Audit Committee comprises of, Mr. Darshit Parikh (Chairman), Mr. Shripal Shah (Member) and Mr. Ram Gaud 
(Member). Powers and role of the Audit Committee are included in the Corporate Governance Report. All the 
recommendation made by the Audit Committee was accepted by the Board of Directors. 

10. BOARD EVALUATION: 

Your Board has devised an Evaluation Policy for evaluating the performance of the Board, its Committees, Executive 
Directors, Independent Directors. Based on the same, the performance was evaluated for the financial year ended March 31, 
2020. As part of the evaluation process, the performance of Non- Independent Directors, the Chairman and the Board was 
conducted by the Independent Directors. The performance evaluation of the respective Committees and that of Independent 
and Non- Independent Directors was done by the Board excluding the Director being evaluated. 

The policy inter alia provides the criteria for performance evaluation such as Board effectiveness, quality of discussion, 
contribution at the meetings, business acumen, strategic thinking, time commitment, and relationship with the stakeholders, 
corporate governance practices, contribution of the committees to the Board in discharging its functions etc. 

The Board carried out formal annual evaluation of its own performance and that of its Committees viz., the Audit Committee, 
Stakeholders' Relationship Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC). The Board also carried out the 
performance evaluation of all the individual directors including the Chairman of the Company. Additionally, NRC also 
carried out the evaluation of the performance of all the individual directors and Chairman of the Company. The performance 
evaluation was carried out by way of obtaining feedback from the Directors through a structured questionnaire prepared in 
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accordance with the policy adopted by the Board and after taking into consideration the Guidance Note on Board Evaluation 
issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India. 

The feedback received from the Directors through the above questionnaire was reviewed by the Chairman of the Board and 
the Chairman of the NRC and then discussed the same at the meetings of the Board and NRC respectively. The performance 
evaluation of the Chairman, Whole Time Director and the Board as a whole was carried out by the Independent Directors at 
their separate meeting. 

11. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN: 

As required pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of Annual Return in MGT-9 in annexed as a part of this Annual Report as 
"Annexure I" . 

The weblink for accessing extract of annual return is https://www.afsl.co.inJinvestor-relation.php 

12. REMUNERATION POLICY: 

The Company has framed a Nomination and Remuneration Policy pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The Policy is provided in Annexed to this Report as "Annexure If' 

13. AUDITORS: 

i. Statutory Auditors: 

Subject to the amendment stated in The Companies Amendment Act, 2017 read with Notification S.O. 1833(E) dated 7th 
May 2018 deleting the provision of annual ratification of the appointment of auditor, the requirement to place the matter 
relating to appointment of Auditors for ratification by members at every Annual General Meeting is done away with and 
no resolution has been proposed for the same. 

ii. Secretarial Auditor: 

Pursuant to the provIsIOns of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed JNG & CO., a firm of Company 
Secretaries in Practice (CP No. 8108), to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the FY. 2019-20. The 
Secretarial Audit Report for FY. 2019-20 is annexed herewith as "Annexure III". 

iii. Cost Auditor: 

Your Company is principally engaged into Merchant Banking. Therefore, Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not 
applicable to the Company. 

14. AUDITOR'S REPORT: 

The Auditor's Report and Secretarial Auditor's Report does not contain any qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks. 
Report of the Secretarial Auditor is given as an Annexure, which forms part of this report. 

15. VIGIL MECHANISM: 

In pursuance of the provisions of section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, a Vigil Mechanism for Directors and 
Employees to report genuine concerns has been established. The Vigil Mechanism Policy has been uploaded on the website 
of the Company at http://afsl.co.inlinvestor-relation.html. 
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16. INTERNAL AUDIT & CONTROLS: 

Pursuant to provisions of Section 138 read with rules made there under, the Board has appointed Thakur & Co., Chartered 
Accountants, as an Internal Auditors of the Company to check the internal controls and functioning of the activities and 
recommend ways of improvement. The Internal Audit is carried out quarterly basis; the report is placed in the Audit 
Committee Meeting and the Board Meeting for their consideration and direction. 

The Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements as designed and implemented by the Company are 
adequate. During the year under review, no material or serious observation has been received from the Internal Auditors of 
the Company for inefficiency or inadequacy of such controls. 

17. RISK ASSESSMENT AND MANAGEMENT: 

Your Company has been on a continuous basis reviewing and streamlining its various operational and business risks involved 
in its business as part of its risk management policy. Your Company also takes all efforts to train its employees from time to 
time to handle and minimize these risks. 

18. LISTING WITH STOCK EXCHANGES: 

Aryaman Financial Services Limited continues to be listed on BSE Limited. It has paid the Annual Listing Fees for the year 
2020-21 to BSE Limited. 

19. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

The Company does not fall under the criteria laid under the provisions of Section 135 of the Act and rules framed there 
under. Therefore, the provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility are not applicable to the Company 

20. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT: 

As on March 31,2020, your Company has (Aryaman Capital Markets Limited & Escorp Asset Management Limited). There 
are no associate companies or joint venture companies within the meaning of Section 2(6) of the Act. There are no changes in 
subsidiaries, during the period under review. 

The Annual Accounts of the above referred subsidiary shall be made available to the shareholders of the Company and of the 
subsidiary company on request and will also be kept open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company and of the 
subsidiary companies during the office hours on all working days and during the Annual General Meeting. Company's 
consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report incorporates the accounts of its subsidiaries prepared as per 
Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014.Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Act, a statement containing the salient features of financial 
statements of the Company's subsidiaries in Form AOC-l is attached to the financial statements of the Company as 
"Annexure IV". 

21. PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING 

In compliance with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015, as amended, the Company has formulated and adopted the revised "Code of Conduct for Prevention of 
Insider Trading" ("the Insider Trading Code"). The object of the Insider Trading Code is to set framework, rules and 
procedures which all concerned persons should follow, while trading in listed or proposed to be listed securities of the 
Company. During the year, the Company has also adopted the Code of Practice and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of 
Unpublished Price Sensitive Information ("the Code") in line with the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Amendment 
Regulations, 2018. The Code is available on the Company's website www.afsl.co.in 

22. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 



26th ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20 

All transactions entered into with related parties as defined under the Act during the FY were in the ordinary course of 
business and on an arm's length pricing basis and do not attract the provisions of Section 188 of the Act. There were no 
materially significant transactions with the related parties during the FY which were in conflict with the interest of the 
Company and hence, enclosing of Form AOC-2 is not required. Suitable disclosure as required by the Accounting Standard 
(AS 18) has been made in the notes to the Financial Statements. 

23. EMPLOYEES COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS: 

The Company is fully compliant with the applicable Secretarial Standards (SS) viz. SS-l & SS-2 on Meetings of the Board of 
Directors and General Meetings respectively. 

24. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 
AND OUTGO: 

i. Conservation of Energy 

a) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy - The Operations of the Company are not energy 
intensive. However, adequate measures have been initiated for conservation of energy. 

b) The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate source of energy - Company shall consider on 
adoption of alternate source of energy as and when necessities. 

c) The Capital Investment on energy conversation equipment - No Capital Investment yet. 

ii. Technology absorption 

a) The efforts made towards technology absorption. - Minimum technology required for Business is absorbed. 
b) The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import 

substitution - Not Applicable. 
c) In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the 

financial year) - Not Applicable. 
a. the details of technology imported; 
b. the year of import; 
c. whether the technology been fully absorbed; 
d. if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof 

iii. The expenditure incurred on Research and Development - Not Applicable. 

25. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, INVESTMENTS AND GUARANTEES: 

Particulars of loans given, investments made, guarantees given and securities provided are provided in the financial 
statements. 

26. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES: 

All contracts I arrangements I transactions entered by the Company during the financial year with related parties were in the 
ordinary course of business and on an arm's length basis. Thus Disclosure in form AOC-2 is not required. Further, during the 
year, the Company had not entered into any contract I arrangement Itransaction with related parties which could be 
considered material in accordance with the policy of the Company on materiality of related party transactions. All related 
party transactions are placed before the Audit Committee and Board for review and approval, if required. The details of the 
related party transactions as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 110 are set out in Note to the financial 
statements forming part of this Annual Report. 

27. DEPOSITS: 
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Your Company did not accept I hold any deposits from public I shareholders during the year under review. 

28. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS: 

There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern 
status and Company's operations in future. 

29. OBLIGATION OF COMPANY UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
(PREVENTION. PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT. 2013: 

In accordance with the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and 
rules made there under, the Company has framed and adopted the policy for Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace. 
Company was not in receipt of any complaint of sexual harassment. 

30. HUMAN RESOURCES: 

Your Company considers people as its biggest assets and 'Believing in People' is at the heart of its human resource strategy. 
It has put concerted efforts in talent management and succession planning practices, strong performance management and 
learning and training initiatives to ensure that your Company consistently develops inspiring, strong and credible leadership. 

Your Company has established an organization structure that is agile and focused on delivering business results. With regular 
communication and sustained efforts it is ensuring that employees are aligned on common objectives and have the right 
information on business evolution. Your Company strongly believes in fostering a culture of trust and mutual respect in all its 
employees seek to ensure that business world values and principles are understood by all and are the reference point in all 
people matters. 

Statement of Disclosure of Remuneration under Section 197 of the Act and Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 ("Rules"), is annexed as "Annexure V". 

The current workforce breakdown structure has a good mix of employees at all levels. Your Board confirms that the 
remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company. 

31. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 

Pursuant to SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the report on Corporate Governance during the period under review with the 
Certificate issued by Mis JNG and Co., Practicing Company Secretaries, on compliance in this regards forms part of this 
Annual Report. 

32. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the board of directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability, 
confirm that: 

i. In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed and there are no 
material departures. 

ii. They have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the 
financial year and of the profit of the Company for that period. 
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iii. They have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 
other irregularities. 

i v. They have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis. 

v. They have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such internal financial controls 
are adequate and operating effectively. 

vi. They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such 
systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and maintained by the Company, 
work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial auditors and external consultants and the reviews performed by 
management and the relevant board committees, including the audit committee, the board is of the opinion that the 
Company's internal financial controls were adequate and effective during the financial year 2019-20. 

33. CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS: 

Statements in this Annual Report, particularly those which relate to Management Discussion and Analysis as explained in the 
Corporate Governance Report, describing the Company's objectives, projections, estimates and expectations may constitute 
'forward looking statements' within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results might differ materially 
from those either expressed or implied in the statement depending on the circumstances. 

34. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS: 

Your Directors would like to express deep sense of appreciation for the assistance and co-operation received from the 
Financial Institutions, Banks, Government Authorities and Shareholders and for the devoted service by the Executives, staff 
and workers of the Company. The Directors express their gratitude towards each one of them. 
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6A/1, W.E.A., Karol Bagh, 
New Delhi - llO 0051 
Tel: 022 - 62166999 
Fax: 022 - 2263 0434 
CIN: L74899DLl994PLC059009 
Website: http://www.afsl.co.in 
Email: info@afsl.co.in 

By Order Of The Board Of Directors 
FOR ARYAMAN FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED 

Sd/­
Shripal Shah 

DIN: 01628855 
(Chairman & Executive Director) 

Mumbai, Wednesday, September 02,2020 
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Annexures to Board's Report (Contd). Annexure-/ 
FORM NO. MGT-9 

Extract of Annual return as on financial year ended on 31.03.2020 
(Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & Administration) 

Rules, 2014) 

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS: 

i CIN L 7 4899DL1994PLC059009 

ii Registration Date May 11, 1994 

iii Name of the Company Aryaman Financial Services Limited 

iv Category/Sub-category of the Company Public Company / Company Limited by Shares 
102, Ganga Chambers, 6a/l, W.E.A, 

Address of the Registered office 
Karol Bagh, New Delhi, 

v Delbi -110 005 
& contact details 

Tel. No. : 022 --6216 6999 
E-Mail id: info @afsl.co.in 

vi Whether listed company Yes (BSE Ltd) 

Adroit Corporate Services Pvt. Ltd. 
19120, Jafferboy Industrial Estate 

Name, Address & contact details of the 
1st Floor, Makwana Road, 

vii Marol Naka, Andheri (E), 
Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any. Mumbai - 400 059 

Tel. No. : 022 - 4227 0423 
E-Mail id: sandeeQs@ adroitcomorate.com 

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY: 

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated: 

Sr. 
Name & Description of main products/services 

NIC Code of the Product / % to total turnover of 
No. Service the company 

1 Income from Merchant Banking Fees 6612 100% 

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: 

Holding 
Sr or 

%OF 
APPLIC 

Name of the Address of the 
CIN/GLN 

Subsidiar 
SHARE 

ABLE 
N Company Company y 

SHELD 
SECTIO 

0 or N 
Associate 

Mahshri Enterprises 
2, Neel Sagar, A.G. 

Section 
1 

Private Limited 
Khan Road, Worli, U7 4140MH2006PTC 165 813 Holding 60.63% 

2(41) 
Mumbai - 400 018 

Aryaman Capital 
60, Khatau Building, 

Section 
2 

Markets Limited Ground Floor, Alkesh L65999MH2008PLC 184939 Subsidiary 74.28% 
2(87) 

Escorp Asset 
Dinesh Modi Marg, 

Section 
3 

Management Limited 
Fort, Mumbai - 400 L17121MH2011PLC213451 Subsidiary 52.47% 2(87) 
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I I 1001 I I I I I 

IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (EOUITY SHARE CAPITAL BREAK UP AS % TO TOTAL EOUITY); 

(i) CATEGORY-WISE SHARE HOLDING: 

No. of Shares held at the beginning of No. of Shares held at the end of Chan 
the year the year ge 

Category of Shareholders Tot Ph 
Tot durin 

Demat 
Physi 

Total al Demat ysi Total 
al g the 

cal 
(%) cal 

( year 
%) (%) 

A. Promoters 
(1) Indian 
a)IndividuaVHUF 1,80,000 - 1,80,000 1.54 1,80,000 - 1,80,000 1.54 

b )Central or State Govt. - - - - - - - - -

c) Bodies Corporate 70,83,030 70,83,030 
60.6 

70,83,030 70,83,030 60.63 -
3 

-

d) BankIFI - - - - - - - - -

e) Any other - - - - - - - - -

Sub Total:(A) (1) 72,63,030 72,63,030 
62.1 

72,63,030 72,63,030 62.17 
7 

-

(2) Foreign 
a) NRI - Individuals - - - - - - - - -

b) Other Individuals - - - - - - - - -

c) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - -

d) Banks/FI - - - - - - - - -

e) Any other - - - - - - - - -

SUB TOTAL (A) (2) - - - - - - - - -

Total Shareholding of 
62.1 

Promoter 72,63,030 - 72,63,030 
7 

72,63,030 - 72,63,030 62.17 -

(A)= (A)(I)+(A)(2) 
B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING 
(1) Institutions 
a) Mutual Funds - - - - - - - - -

b) Banks/FI - 800 800 0.01 - 800 800 0.01 -

c) Central Govt. - - - - - - - - -

d) State Govt. - - - - - - - - -

e) Venture Capital Fund - - - - - - - - -

f) Insurance Companies - - - - - - - - -

g) FIlS - - - - - - - - -

h) Foreign Venture Capital 
- - - - - - - - -

Funds 
i) Others - - - - - - - - -

SUB TOTAL (B)(I): - 800 800 0.01 - 800 800 0.01 -

(2) Non Institutions 
a) Bodies corporate 

16,12,985 16,15,985 
13.8 

17,64,053 3,0 17,67,053 15.13 1.29 
ai) Indian 3,000 3 

00 

aii) Overseas - - - - - - - - -

b) Individuals - - - - - - - - -
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i) Individual shareholders 1,9 
holding nominal share capital 1,77,474 

2,08,8 
3,86,336 3.31 1,91,849 7,1 3,89,014 3.33 

0.02 
upto Rs.l Lacs 62 65 

ii)Individuals shareholders 20.6 
1,2 

holding nominal share capital 22,85,015 
1,28,8 

24,13,815 6 21,31,269 
8,8 

22,60,069 19.35 
(1.3 

00 00 2) 
in excess of Rs. 1 Lacs 

c) Others (specify) - - - - - - - -

c-l) Non Resident Indians 2,034 2,034 0.02 2,034 2,034 0.02 
(Individuals) 

- - -

3,2 

SUB TOTAL (B)(2): 40,77,508 
3,40,6 

44,18,170 37.8 40,89,205 8,9 44,18,170 37.82 
62 2 65 

-

3,41,4 
3,2 

Total Public Shareholding 37.8 40,89,205 9,7 
(B)= (B)(I)+(B)(2) 

40,77,508 62 44,18,970 
3 65 

44,18,970 37.83 -

C. Shares held by Custodian 
for - - - - - - - - -

GDRs&ADRs 

3,41,4 1,13,52,23 
3,2 

1,16,82,00 
Grand Total (A+B+C) 1,13,40,538 

62 
1,16,82,000 100 

5 
9,7 

0 
100 -

65 

(ii) SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTERS: 

Shareholding at the Shareholding at the % 
beginning of the year end of the year chang 

% of % of 
ein 

share 
Sr. 

% of shares % of shares 
holdi 

No. 
Shareholders Name 

No. of 
total pledged 

No of 
total pledged 

shares encumbe shares encumb 
ng 

shares 
of the red to 

shares 
of the ered to 

durin 

company total company total 
g the 

shares shares 
year 

1 Mahsbri Enterprises Pvt Ltd 70,83,030 60.63 - 70,83,030 60.63 - -

2 Sbripal Shah 90,000 0.77 - 90,000 0.77 - -

3 Shreyas Shah 90,000 0.77 - 90,000 0.77 - -

Total 72,63,030 62.17 - 72,63,030 62.17 - -

(iii) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS' SHAREHOLDING: 

Cumulative 
At the beginning of 

Increase 1 
Shareholding during 

Sr. 
the year 1 End of the Date of 

Decrease in 
the year (01-04-2019 to 

No. 
Name year changes of 

share-
Reason 31-03-2020) 

shareholding 
holding 

Number of Number of 
Shares 

% 
Shares 

% 

1 Mahshri 70,83,030 60.63 01104/2019 - - 70,83,030 60.63 
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Cumulative 
At the beginning of 

Increase / 
Shareholding during 

Sr. 
the year / End of the Date of 

Decrease in 
the year (01-04-2019 to 

No. 
Name year changes of 

share-
Reason 31-03-2020) 

shareholding 
holding 

Number of Number of 
Shares 

% 
Shares 

% 

Enterprises Pvt 
70,83,030 60.63 31103/2020 70,83,030 60.63 

Ltd 
- -

2 Shripal Shah 90,000 0.77 01104/2019 - - 90,000 0.77 

90,000 0.77 31103/2020 - - 90,000 0.77 

3 Shreyas Shah 90,000 0.77 01104/2019 - - 90,000 0.77 

90,000 0.77 31103/2020 - - 90,000 0.77 

(iv) SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS (OTHER THAN DIRECTORS, PROMOTERS 
& HOLDERS OF GDRS & ADRS): 

No. of Shares held at Cumulative 
the beginning of the Shareholding 
year during the year 

Sr. Name of As On % of 

No. Shareholder's Changes 
Date % of total total 

No. of shares of No. of shares 
Shares the Shares of the 

company compa 
ny 

At the beginning of the 
0110412019 4,14,475 3.55 4,14,475 3.55 

year 

1 
SHRI RAVINDRA Date wise Increase 1 
MEDIA VENTURES Decrease in Share holding - - - - -

during the year 
At the End of the year 3110312020 38,700 0.33 4,53,175 3.88 
At the beginning of the 

0110412019 2,37,812 2.04 2,37,812 2.04 
year 

2 
TIA ENTERPRISES Date wise Increase 1 
PRIVATE LIMITED Decrease in Share holding 22/1112019 22,000 0.19 2,59,812 2.22 

during the year 
At the End of the year 3110312020 0 0 2,59,812 2.22 
At the beginning of the 

0110412019 0 0 0 0 
JAI AMBE 

year 

3 TRADEXIM 
Date wise Increase 1 

PRIVATE LIMITED 
Decrease in Share holding 27/0912019 2,15,000 1.84 2,15,000 1.84 
during the year 
At the End of the year 3110312020 0 0 2,15,000 1.84 
At the beginning of the 

0110412019 0 0 0 0 
AMAR 

year 

4 MUKESHBHAI 
Date wise Increase 1 17/0512019 50,000 0.43 50,000 0.43 
Decrease in Share holding 24/0512019 1,10,000 0.94 1,60,000 1.37 

SHAH 
during the year 07/0612019 52,600 0.45 2,12,600 1.82 
At the End of the year 3110312020 0 0 2,12,600 1.82 

5 
JHAVERI At the beginning of the 

0110412019 2,11,000 1.81 2,11,000 1.81 
TRADING AND year 
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No. of Shares held at Cumulative 
the beginning of the Shareholding 
year during the year 

Sr. Name of As On 
% of 

No. Shareholder's Changes 
Date 

% of total total 
No. of shares of No. of shares 
Shares the Shares of the 

company compa 
ny 

INVESTMENT PVT 
Date wise Increase 1 

17/0512019 (1,53,000) 1.31 58,000 0.50 
LTD 14/0612019 2,450 0.02 55,550 0.48 

Decrease in Share holding 
2110612019 (55,550) (0.48) 0 0 

during the year 
20/1212019 15,400 0.13 15,400 0.13 

At the End of the year 3110312020 0 0 15,400 0.13 
At the beginning of the 

0110412019 1,91,000 1.63 1,91,000 1.63 
year 

6 
HARSHA RAJESH Date wise Increase 1 17/0512019 (1,90,000) 1.63 1,000 0.01 
JHAVERI Decrease in Share holding 

28/0612019 (1,000) 0.01 0 0 
during the year 
At the End of the year 3110312020 0 0 0 0 
At the beginning of the 

0110412019 1,74,000 1.49 1,74,000 1.49 
year 
Date wise Increase 1 

7 INDIA FIN SEC LTD 
Decrease in Share holding 2911112019 (32,500) 0.28 1,41,500 1.21 
during the year 

3111212019 (40,000) 0.34 1,01,500 0.87 
14/0212020 (20,000) 0.17 81,500 0.70 

At the End of the year 3110312020 0 0 81,500 0.70 
At the beginning of the 

0110412019 1,61,000 1.38 1,61,000 1.38 
year 

AMBITIOUS 
Date wise Increase 1 

8 ASSOCIATES PVT 
Decrease in Share holding Nil Nil 

LTD 
during the year 
At the End of the year 3110312020 0 0 1,61,000 1.38 
At the beginning of the 

0110412019 1,50,000 1.28 1,50,000 1.28 
year 

9 GOPAL BANSAL 
Date wise Increase 1 
Decrease in Share holding Nil Nil 
during the year 
At the End of the year 3110312020 0 0 1,50,000 1.28 
At the beginning of the 

0110412019 1,50,000 1.28 1,50,000 1.28 
year 

VIPUL HARIDAS 
Date wise Increase 1 

10 
THAKKAR 

Decrease in Share holding 07/0612019 (80,000) 0.68 70,000 0.60 
during the year 

28/0612019 (70,000) 0.60 0 0 
At the End of the year 3110312020 0 0 0 0 

Note: % means % of total shares of the compa Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share holding during the year ny 

(v) SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS & KMP: 

Sr. 
Name I At the beginning of I Date of I Increase / I R I Cumulative I 

No. the year / End of the changes of Decrease in eason Shareholding during the 
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year shareholding share- year (01-04-19 to 31-03-
holding 20) 

Number of 
% 

Number of 
% 

Shares Shares 
1 Shripal Shah 90,000 0.77 0110412019 - - 90,000 0.77 

90,000 0.77 3110312020 - - 90,000 0.77 

2 Shreyas Shah 90,000 0.77 0110412019 - - 90,000 0.77 

90,000 0.77 3110312020 - - 90,000 0.77 

3 Ram Gaud 260 - 0110412019 - - 260 -

260 - 3110312020 - - 260 -

V. INDEBTEDNESS: 

(A) CONSOLIDATED INDEBTEDNESS: 

Secured 

Particulars 
Loans Unsecured 

Deposits 
Total 

excluding Loans Indebtedness 
deposits 

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year 
i) Principal Amount 31.04 3,180.66 45.93 3,257.63 
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -

iii) Interest accrued but not due - 77.48 - 77.48 
Total (i+ii+iii) 31.04 3,258.14 45.93 3,335.11 
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year 
Additions 0.00 972.70 2.00 974.70 
Reduction 6.91 673.04 18.50 698.45 
Net Change 6.91 299.66 16.50 323.07 
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year 
i) Principal Amount 24.13 3,557.80 - 3,581.93 
ii) Interest due but not paid - 200.13 - 200.13 
iii) Interest accrued but not due - 77.48 - 77.48 
Total (i+ii+iii) 24.13 3,208.19 29.43 3,261.75 

(B) STANDALONE INDEBTEDNESS: 

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment 
(In <) 

Secured 

Particulars 
Loans Unsecured 

Deposits 
Total 

excluding Loans Indebtedness 
deposits 

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year 
i) Principal Amount 31.04 - 45.93 76.97 
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -

Total (i+ii+iii) 31.04 45.93 76.97 
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year 
Additions 0.00 - 2.00 2.00 
Reduction 6.91 - 18.50 25.41 
Net Change 6.91 - 16.50 23.41 
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Indebtedness at the end of the financial year 
i) Principal Amount 24.13 - - 24.13 
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -

Total (i+ii+iii) 24.13 - 29.43 53.56 

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Manager: 
(In <) 

Sr. Mr. Shripal Shah 
Mr. Shreyas Shah 

Total 
No 

Particulars of Remuneration 
(Whole Time Director) 

(Whole Time 
Amount 

Director) 

1 Gross salary* 
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 

18,00,000 9,00,000 27,00,000 
17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961. 
(b) Value of perquisites U/S 17(2) of the Income 

- - -
tax Act, 1961 
(c ) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17 (3) 

- - -
of the Income Tax Act, 1961 

2 Stock option - - -

3 Sweat Equity - - -

4 Commission as % of profit others (specify) - - -

5 Others, please specify - - -

Total (A) 18,00,000 9,00,000 27,00,000 

B. Remuneration to other directors: 
(In ~) 

Sr. Particulars of 
Name of the Directors 

Total 
No Remuneration Amount 
1 Independent Directors Mr. Ram Gaud Mr. Darshit Parikh Mr. Abhinav Anand 

(a) Fee for attending board 
44,000 40,000 60,000 1,44,000 

Icommittee meetings 
(b) Commission - - -

(c ) Others, please specify - - -

Total (1) 44,000 40,000 60,000 1,44,000 

2 
Other Non Executive 
Directors 
(a)Fee for attending board 

- - -
committee meetings 

(b) Commission - - -

(c) Others please specify. - - -

Total (2) - - -

3 Total (B)=(1 +2) 44,000 40,000 60,000 1,44,000 
Total Managerial 

1,44,000 (One Lakh Forty-Four Thousand only) 
Remuneration 

Overall Ceiling as per the Act. The total managerial remuneration is within the ceilings prescribed. 
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C. Remuneration To Key Managerial Personnel Other Than Managing DirectorlManagerlWhole Time Director: 

lJn~ 
Gunjan Chaitali Pansari 

Sr. 
Particulars of Remuneration 

Shripal Shah Kataruka (CS) (CS) 
Total 

No. (CFO) [01104//2019- [09/011-2020-
08/0112020] 31/03/2020] 

1 Gross Salary 

(a) Salary as per provisions 
contained in section 17 (1) of the 18,00,000 5,26,000 1,30,000 24,56,000 
Income Tax Act, 1961. 
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of 

- - - -
the Income Tax Act, 1961 
(c ) Profits in lieu of salary under 

- -
section 17(3) of the Income Tax - -

Act, 1961 
2 Stock Option - - - -

3 Sweat Equity - - - -

4 Commission as % of profit - - - -

5 Others, please specify - - - -

Total (1+2+3+4+5) 18,00,000 5,26,000 1,30,000 24,56,000 

VII. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: 

Section 
Details of 

Appeal 

Type 
of the Brief 

Penalty/Punishment/Compoundin 
Authority made if 

Compani Description 
g fees imposed 

(RD/NCLT/Court) any (give 
es Act details) 

A. COMPANY 

Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding - - - - -

B. DIRECTORS 

Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding - - - - -

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT 

Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding - - - - -
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Annexures to Board's Report (Contd). Annexure - II 
Form No. MR-3 

Secretarial Audit Reportfor the Financwl Year ended March 2020 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerwl Personnel) Rules, 2014J 

To, 
The Members, 
Aryaman Financial Services Limited 
102, Ganga Chambers, 
6A/l, W.E.A., Karol Bagh, 
New Delhi - 110055 

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provIsIOns and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by Aryaman Financial Services Limited (hereinafter called the company). The Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and 
expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company and also the information, management representations provided by the Company, its officers, agents and 
authorized representatives and based on the draft independent auditors report during the conduct of the Secretarial Audit, the 
explanations and clarifications given to us and the representations made by the Management and considering the relaxations 
granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities Exchange Board of India warranted due to COVID 2019 
pandemic, We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended 
on March 31, 2020 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper board­
processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company as 
per Annexure I for the financial year ended on March 31, 2020 according to the provisions of: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder; 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct 
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;(Not applicable to the Company 
during the Audit Period) 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 
(,SEBI Act'):-

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 
ii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

iii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and 
amendments from time to time; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) 

iv. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase 
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) 

v. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; (Not 
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) 

vi. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

vii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Deli sting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable to the 
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Company during the Audit Period) and 
viii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the 

Company during the Audit Period) 

(vi) Other laws as applicable specifically to the company as informed by the management that Securities and Exchange 
Board Of India (Merchant Bankers) Regulations, 1992 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
(ii) The SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015; 

I further report that, based on the information provided and the representation made by the Company and also on the review 
of the compliance reports of Company Secretary / Chief Executive Officer taken on record by the Board of Directors / 
resolution professional of the Company, in my opinion, adequate systems and processes exist in the Company to monitor and 
ensure compliance with provisions of applicable general laws. 

I further report that, the compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws like direct and indirect tax laws and 
maintenance of financial records and books of accounts has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same have been subject 
to review by statutory financial audit and other designated professionals. 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards, mentioned hereinabove and there is adequate compliance management system for the purpose of other laws. We 
have relied on the representations made by the Company and its officers for systems and mechanisms formed by the 
Company for compliances under other laws and regulations applicable to the Company. 

I further report that, the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, 
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. 

Adequate notice is given to all KMPs / directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were 
sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the 
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

Majority decisions of the Board and committee meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the 
meeting of the board of directors or committees thereof as the case may be. There were no dissenting views of any member of 
the Board or committees thereof during the period under review. 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of 
the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

I further report that during the audit period there were no specific events / actions having a major bearing on the affairs of the 
Company in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: September 1, 2020 

UDIN : F007569B000648077 

For JNG & Co., 

Sd/­
Jigarkumar Gandhi 

FCS: 7569 
C.P. No. 8108 

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure II and forms an integral part of this 
report. 
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ANNEXURE-I 

List of documents verified 

1. Memorandum & Articles of Association of the Company. 

2. Minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors and various committees comprising of Audit Committee, Nomination 
& Remuneration Committee etc. held during the period under report. 

3. Minutes of General Body Meetings held during the period under report. 

4. Statutory Registers/Records under the Companies Act and rules made there under 

5. Agenda papers submitted to all the directors / members for the Board Meetings and Committee Meetings. 

6. Declarations received from the Directors of the Company pursuant to the provisions of 184 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

7. E-Forms filed by the Company, from time-to-time, under applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
attachments thereof during the period under report. 

8. Intimations received from directors under the prohibition of Insider Trading and SEBI Takeover Code 

9. Various policies framed by the company from time to time as required under the statutes applicable to the company. 

10. Processes and procedure followed for Compliance Management System for applicable laws to the Company 

11. Communications / Letters issued to and acknowledgements received from the Independent directors for their 
appointment 

12. Various policies framed by the company from time to time as required under the Companies Act as well as listing 
agreementiSEBI LODR Regulations. 

To, 
The Members, 
The Members, 
ARYAMAN FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED 
102, Ganga Chambers, 
6A/l,W.E.A. , Karol Bagh,New Delhi - 110055 

ANNEXURE-II 

Sub : Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year ended on 31" March, 2020 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. 
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3. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the 
processes and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

4. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company. 

5. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regulations and happening of events etc. 

6. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of management and my examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

7. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: September 02, 2020 
UDIN: F007569B000648077 

For JNG & Co., 

Sd/­
Jigarkumar Gandhi 

FCS: 7569 
C.P. No. 8108 
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Annexure's to Board's Report (Contd). Annexure - III 

Remuneration Policy 

This Remuneration Policy relating to remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees, has been 
formulated by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (hereinafter "Committee") and approved by the Board of 
Directors. 

Objectives: 

The objectives of this policy are to stipulate criteria for: 
• Appointment, reappointment, removal of Directors, KMPs and Senior Management 
• Determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the Board 
• Retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented managerial persons and create 

competitive advantage to run the operations of the Company successfully 
• Consider and determine the remuneration, based on the fundamental principles of payment for performance, for 

potential, and for growth 

Criteria for Appointment: 

• Ethical standards of integrity and probity, qualification, expertise and experience of the person for appointment 
• Age, number of years of service, specialized expertise and period of employment or association with the Company 
• Special achievements and operational efficiency which contributed to growth in business in the relevant functional area 
• Constructive and active participation in the affairs of the Company 
• Exercising the responsibilities in a bonafide manner in the interest of the Company 
• Sufficient devotion of time to the assigned tasks 
• Diversity of the Board 
• Demonstrable leadership qualities and interpersonal communication skills, devote to the role, compliant with the rules, 

policies and values of the Company and does not have any conflicts of interest 
• Transparent, unbiased and impartial and in accordance with appropriate levels of confidentiality. 
• Appointment of Directors and KMPs in compliance with the procedure laid down under the provisions of the Companies 

Act, 2013, rules made thereunder or any other enactment for the time being in force 

Criteria for Remuneration: 

The Remuneration Policy reflects on certain guiding principles of the Company such as aligning remuneration with the 
longer term interests of the Company and its shareholders, promoting a culture of meritocracy and creating a linkage to 
corporate and individual performance, and emphasizing on line expertise and market competitiveness so as to attract the best 
talent. It also ensures the effective recognition of performance and encourages a focus on achieving superior operational 
results. 

The level and composition of remuneration shall be reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and moti vate the directors, key 
managerial personnel and other employees of the quality required to run the Company successfully. The relationship of 
remuneration to performance should be clear and meet appropriate performance benchmarks. The remuneration to directors, 
key managerial personnel and senior management personnel should also involve a balance between fixed and incentive pay 
reflecting short and long term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals. 

The remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors shall be based on their contributions and current trends, subject to 
regulatory limits. Sitting fees is paid for attending each meeting(s) of the Board and Committees thereof. Additionally equal 
amount of commission may be paid to Non executive directors on a pro-rata basis, within limits approved by shareholders. 
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Annexures to Board's Report (Contd). Annexure - IV 

Form AOC-I 
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures 

Part "A": Subsidiaries: 
(Rs. in Lacs) 

Sr. 
I 2 

Name of the subsidiary Aryaman Capital Escorp Asset 
No. 

Markets Limited Management Limited 
1. The date since when subsidiary was acquired 22no July 2008 31" May 2016 

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if 
2. different from the holding company's reporting N.A. N.A. 

period 
Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the 

3. last date of the relevant Financial year in the case N.A. N.A. 
of foreign subsidiaries 

4. Share capital 1197.71 667.00 
5. Other Equity 570.09 865.41 
6. Total assets 5070.58 1611.38 
7. Total Liabilities 3302.78 78.97 
8. Investments 525.77 1559.16 
9. Turnover 8462.35 15.71 
10. Profit before taxation 10.46 0.49 
11. Provision for taxation 0.97 0.17 
12. Profit after taxation 9.48 0.31 
13. Proposed Dividend Nil Nil 
14. Extent of shareholding (In percentage) 74.28% 52.47% 

Part "B": Associates and Joint Ventures: - Not Applicable 
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Annexures to Board's Report (Contd). Annexure- V 

Disclosure pursuant to the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

Sr. Name Designationl Remuneration Qualification Ratio of Comparison of 
No. Nature of For Remuneration of remuneration of the 

Duties FY 2019-20 each KMP against the 
(Rs. in Lacs) Director/KMP to performance of the 

median company 
remuneration of 

employees 

I Shripal Shah 
Whole Time 

18.00 BMS,CFA 6.82 The revenue of the 
Director & CFO 

Whole Time BMS,Gen. 
Company decreased 

2 Shreyas Shah 
Director 

9.00 
L.L.B. 

3.41 by 44.76% and the 

Chaitali Company 
profit of the Company 

3 
Pansari Secretary 

1.30 C.S. 1.98 decreased by 49.42% 

Notes; 
• The median remuneration of employees of the Company during the financial year was Rs. 2.64 lacs. 
• The revenue of the Company decreased by 44.76% and the profit of the Company decreased by 49.42%. 
• There is increase in median remuneration of employees 43.19% to 45.00%; as compared to previous financial year. 
• The key parameters for the variable component of remuneration availed by the directors are considered by the Board 

of Directors based on the recommendation of the Human Resources, Nomination and Remuneration Committee as 
per remuneration policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees. 

• The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees who are not directors and KMPs but 
receive remuneration in excess of the highest paid director during the year- Not applicable 

• It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel and other employees. 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

I. INDUSTRY STRUCTURE, DEVELOPMENTS: 

1. The Global Economy - Performance & Prospects: 

The growth ofIndia's real GDP in 2019-20 is estimated at 5.0 per cent (Second Advance Estimates) as compared to 6.1 per 

cent (First Revised Estimates) in 2018-19. India's current account deficit as percentage of GDP was 0.2 per cent in Q3 of 

2019-20, as compared to 2.7 per cent in the corresponding period of previous year. Foreign exchange reserves stood at US$ 
474.7 billion as on 3rd April 2020, as compared to US$ 412.9 billion at end-March 2019. 

Global economic growth accelerated in 201 7 and continued to do so until the first half of 2018, with almost all countries 
picking up the growth trend. The growth rates of most of the developed countries rose close to their potential with 
unemployment falling to historical lows. In 2018, the global economy registered 3.6 per cent growth as against 3.8 per cent in 
201 7 . Going ahead, global growth is projected to decline to 3.3 per cent in 2019 due to the waning effect of the US fiscal 
stimulus, uncertainty around Brexit and the unpredictability of the US-China trade war. On the positive side, the second half 
of 2019 is expected to see a stabilisation in growth with the hope that the central banks across the world might opt out of their 
tightening stance. Even China is continuously ramping up its fiscal and monetary stimulus to counter the negative effect of 
trade tariffs. The overall impact will positively stimulate growth factors across the world, leading to a gradual recovery in 
growth to 3.6 per cent for the global GDP, in 2020. 

Global growth projection 

Global Growth Forecast Remains Subdued 
IMF growth projeaions for the global economy as of July 2019 

2.2% 

III 
@<D0 

Advanced 
Economies 

. 2018 . 2019 . 2020 

Emerging Markets 
& Developing Economies 

.n,dn.that'U Source: IMI' World Econonll Outlook 

(Source: IMP) 

1. MACRO REVIEW: 

Global 
Economy 

statlsta !!".ii 

India is one of the 'fastest-growing economy' in the world. Now, along with that, the stable Government for a second time, is 
likely to be the perfect recipe for stronger reforms. The focus of the Government in FY20 will be to expedite reforms with a 
view to accelerate growth. As per the World Bank Report, India's ranking in terms of 'Ease of Doing Business' has reached 
the 77th spot, improving by 23 positions, as compared to the previous year. The country grew at 6.8 per cent in FYI9, a 
deceleration from 7.2 per cent in the previous year, due to challenges from the NBFC liquidity crisis, rupee depreciation, 
commodity price volatility, rural stress, and weak private investment activity. High-frequency indicators point towards a 
continued slowdown in private consumption activity in QIFY20 along with low Government spending on account of election 
overhang. The Government is likely to smoothen already implemented reforms such as GST, and the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code (IBC) to largely contribute towards easing the tightness in liquidity. In addition, controlled inflation has 
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further provided room for monetary easing. Growth prospects look brighter from the H2FY20 owing to higher Government 
spending on infrastructure, tepid recovery expected in consumption activity once the NBFC crisis is resolved and on a 
favourable base. 

Your Company is SEBI registered Category I Merchant Banker. Company mainly participates into SME Segment of Primary 
market issues. SME Platform offers an entrepreneur and investor friendly environment, which enables the listing of SMEs 
from the unorganized sector scattered throughout India, into a regulated and organized sector. The platform provides 
opportunity to SME entrepreneurs to raise equity capital for growth and expansion. It also provides immense opportunity for 
investors to identify and invest in good SMEs at an early stage. 

Aryaman Financial Services Limited is a merchant banker. The Company is engaged in the business of lead management and 
syndication of small and medium sized initial public offerings (IPO's), follow on public offer (FPO's), rights issues, 
composite issues, qualified institutional placement (QIP's), private investment in public equity (PIPE) deals, venture capital 
(VC) funding and other forms of fund raising. The Company's principal products/services include income from merchant 
banking fees. It also acts as lead manager to mergers and acquisitions (M&A) transactions, open offers, deli sting offers and 
buybacks, among others. The Company provides valuation and advisory services for foreign investments, employee stock 
options plan (ESOP) certifications, fairness opinions of amalgamation schemes, mergers and spin -off transactions, among 
others. The Company, through its subsidiary and group companies, provides stock and commodity broking services. 

2. INVESTMENTS: 

The fixed investment rate (ratio of gross fixed capital formation to GDP) is estimated at 27.5 per cent in 2019-20, as 
compared to 29.0 percent in 2018-19. The real fixed investment is estimated to decline to 0.6 per cent in 2019-20, as 
compared to a growth of9.8 percent in 2018-19. 

3. OPPORTUNITIES AND BUSINESS OUTLOOK: 

+!+ OPPURTUNITIES: 
Our businesses are expected to benefit from the structural shift in the financial savings environment as well as improving 
technology infrastructure of India. Some of the broad macro trends which underline the opportunities facing our businesses 
are: 

• India is expected to be a high growth economy in the medium to longer term which coupled with an expectation of 
recovery in economic growth at global level augurs well for the capital markets in India 

• India has been and is expected to continue to be a high savings economy. The young working population is 
expected to increasingly channelise a higher share of a growing pie of their savings into financial assets. 
Increasingly the preference of retail investors to participate in equity as an asset class coupled with the relative under 
penetration in terms of both market capitalisation to GDP ratio or ratio of inve stments in shares and debentures to 
GDP signify a positive outlook for equity-based businesses in India. 

• Increase in overall economic activity, scaling up of domestic corporate institutions and professionalisation of 
promoter driven set-up would continue to fuel demand for capital raising and advisory services 

• Advances in technology, increasing smartphone penetration and increasing digitisation at systemic level are 
expected to propel more retail consumers to adopt and consumer financial services through electronic media 

Our businesses being primarily driven by need for financial products and services of our retail and institutional clients 
expect to benefit from the emerging macro trends. The role of technology coupled with customer centricity through 
timely and effective advisory remains the key for growth ahead. 

Digital transformation: Fintech is the new buzzword in the financial services industry. It is an amalgamation and 
application of technology in the financial services industry. Global investments in fintech companies have been picking 
up in the recent past. With big developments, ranging from the rise of open banking, increasing regulatory clarity and 
maturation of Artificial Intelligence (AI) and block chain, 2019 promises to be another big year for Fintech. India has 
witnessed a dramatic surge in its technological growth and the adoption in recent years. The traditional financial services 
industry is inherently online, time consuming, manual, inaccessible and cost-heavy. This is primarily because of the 
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dependency on human capital for every process in the funnel. However, the integration of technology at each step of the 
process has brought in the change from manual to machine-driven decision making. Seeing this as an opportunity, we are 
making serious efforts to improve technological infrastructure and offer our product and services through cutting-edge 
digital solutions . 

• :. THREATS: 

Liquidity deficit and rise in interest rates can cause uncertainty in the market, leading to outflow of funds from FHs and DHs. 
Besides, factors such as global uncertainties, geo-political tensions, and uneven economic growth may tend to weaken market 
sentiment, leading to a slowdown in the investment appetite. 
Customers today have a wide range of choices to select their investment advisory partner. They evaluate them on their 
expertise, fund utilisation strategies, digital support and fee structure. With the emergence of discount brokerage, customers 
are experiencing the next level of artificial automation with 'do it yourself functionalities which are easy to use and low on 
cost. While the opportunities landscape is promising, following threats could could dampen the growth of financial services 
sector in india. 

a) 

b) 

c) 

Slower than expected recovery of macro-economy, domestically as well as globally or a prolonged trade and tariff 
war between the US and China can impact growth. 
Increase in oil prices on the back of US sanctions against Iran or delay in revival of cape x cycle can also impede 
growth. 
If the current tight liquidity situation does not normalize soon, it could affect the natural growth of the sector 

d) Any adverse changes in the regulatory and policy environment in which Aryaman and its subsidiaries operates could 
adversely affect the business and financial condition. 

e) Short term economic slowdown impacting investor sentiments and business activities. 

II. INDIA'S GDP AND COVID-19 IMPACT: 

The growth ofIndia's real GDP in 2019-20 is estimated at 5.0 per cent (Second Advance Estimates) as compared to 6.1 per 
cent (First Revised Estimates) in 2018-19. India's total foreign exchange (Forex) reserves increased to around US$ 508 
billion in June 2020. The Government of India has introduced several bold pro-corporate initiatives in the past year, including 
passing of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (Second Amendment) Bill, rationalization of GST rates and reduction of 
corporate tax rates. Measures have also been taken to improve the Ease of Doing Business index, reduction of GST on hotel 
rooms with tariffs of 1,001 to 7,500 per night to 12% and those above 7,501 to 18%. Likewise, easing of credit, especially for 
the stressed real estate and NBFC sectors helped boosting investment and consumption. Total contribution by travel and 
tourism sector to India's GDP is expected to increase from Rs 15.24 trillion (US$ 234.03 billion) in 2017 to Rs 32.05 trillion 
(US$ 492.21 billion) in 2028. 

However, with the onset of COVID-19 pandemic, its intensity, spread and duration will now majorly determine whether 
India is able to realize its estimated and projected GDP growth. As per IMF's World Economic Outlook, India is projected to 
grow at 4.2 per cent in 2019-20 with a 2 per cent growth in Q4 of 2019-20. Downside risk to growth emerge from deepening 
of global slowdown and excerbarion of supply chain disruptions following prolonged spread of COVID-19 and lockdowns 
across countries including India (since last week of March 2020). Additional upside growth impulses emanate from the early 
containment of COVID-19 and the slew of monetary, fiscal and other policy measures undertaken by government to 
minimize the adverse macroeconomic impact of the pandemic. 

III. BUSINESS PERFORMANCE: 

1. REVIEW OF OPERATIONS: 

During FY. 2019-20, Company has earned a total income of < 478.12 Lacs compared to previous year's < 865.57 Lacs. 
Company came out with 5 IPO's on SME Platform in FY. 2019-20 as compared to 13 IPO's in F.Y. 2018-19 
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Net profit after tax has decreased from < 83.50 Lacs to < 165.11 Lacs. Consequently, EPS decreased to < 0.71 from < 1.41. 
Subdued market conditions have lead to lack of growth top-line and bottom line. 

Further there has been a similar lack of growth in financial performance of the subsidiary; Aryaman Capital Markets Limited 
and Escorp Asset Management Limited. However, considering extremely difficult market conditions it is commendable that 
these subsidiaries have not incurred any substantia110sses. 

2. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEOUACY: 

The Company's internal control systems are adequate, operating effectively and commensurate with the size of business. 
These internal control systems are provided through competent management, implementation of standard policies and 
processes, maintenance of an appropriate audit programme with an internal control environment, effective risk monitoring 
and management information systems. Moreover, the Company continuously upgrades these systems in line with the best 
available practices. 

The internal control systems are supplemented by extensive internal audits, regular reviews by the Management and standard 
policies and guidelines to ensure the reliability of financial and all other records to prepare financial statements and other 
data. The Management Information System (MIS) forms an integral part of the Company's control mechanism. The 
Company has regular checks and procedures through internal audits conducted by an independent audit firm, periodically. 
The reports are deliberated and an executive summary of the same along with Action Taken Reports (ATR) and steps taken 
by the Management to address the issues, are placed before the Audit Committee meeting/ Board meeting for their review. 
Reports of internal auditors are reviewed by the Audit Committee, and corrective measures, if any, are carried out towards 
further improvement in systems and procedures in compliance with Internal Control Systems. The Board also recognises the 
work of the auditors as an independent check on the information received from the Management on the operations and 
performance of the Company. 

3. RISKS AND CONCERN: 

As the Company's performance is dependent on capital markets, it faces the risk of downturn in the economic growth and/or 
worsening macro-economic environment. Rising crude oil prices, depreciating currency, worsening current account deficit 
and a slowdown in foreign investment inflows pose risks to the Company. Rising inflation, a bad monsoon, slowdown in 
corporate earnings, rising NPAs also pose significant risks. Other challenges which may drive away the DIIs include rising 
real estate and gold prices, which may provide other attractive investment options 
Global events may also pose challenges to the growth of the Company as it directly impacts foreign inflows and indirectly 
will have a bearing on the Indian economy. Risks from geo-po1itica1 tensions, global financial market volatility led by rise in 
interest rates and the threat of trade protectionism all post significant risks to the operations of the Company. 

The Company faces significant competition from companies seeking to attract its customers/clients financial assets. In 
particular, it competes with other Indian and foreign brokerage houses, discount brokerage companies, investment banks, 
public and private sector commercial banks and asset managers, among others, operating in the markets in which it is present. 
The Company competes on the basis of a number of factors, including execution, depth of product and service offerings, 
innovation, reputation, price and convenience. The Company also faces threats from the tightening and the ever-evolving 
regulatory framework and any unfavourable policy changes like introduction of long term capital gains tax. Internal threat to 
the Company arises from failure of compliance or overlooking of any misrepresentations/fraud in the operations of the 
Company. 

Our implementation of risk management at the operational level embraces the identification, analysis and assessment of all 
possible risks as provided below: 
Risk Concern 
Economic and Arising from changes in the macro­
political risk economic conditions like political 

instability, foreign exchange fluctuations 
and crude oil prices. 

Response 
The Company has a dynamic business set up that 
itself to restrategise and respond to the uncertainties. 

allows 



Financial and 
market risk 

Competition risk 

Regulatory and 
compliance risk 

Human 
resources risk 

Uncertainty in capital markets and 
negative investor sentiments may slow 
down the investments. 
Loss of market share to existing players 
or new entrants. 

Regulatory risk arises due to dynamic 
changes in regulations that may 
significantly affect the business. 
Compliance risk arises due to the 

negligence in complying statutes, internal 
policies and best practices related to the 
business. 
This risk arises due to low motivation, 
dissatisfaction or attrition of employees. 

4. RISK MANAGEMENT: 
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Diversified business offerings, strong research and 
experienced team ensure promptness and stable operations. 

Competition gets the best out of the Company. It makes all 
the efforts to offer undivided attention to its customers. 
Besides, strong digital infrastructure and risk management 
team further ensure steady flow of operations. 
The Company has ensured transparent disclosures in meeting 
the regulatory norms. 
The experienced team is further capable of handling and 
fulfilling all regulatory norms. 

Using the human capital risk approach, the Company 
efficiently manages the working culture, declaring 
performance-based incentives, conducting induction and 
training programmes at regular intervals. 

The Company has established a comprehensive system for risk management and internal controls for all its businesses to 
manage the risks that it is exposed to. The objective of its risk management framework is to ensure that various risks are 
identified, measured and mitigated and also that policies, procedures and standards are established to address these risks and 
ensure a systematic response in the case of crystallisation of such risks. 

The Company has classified the key risks associated with its business into implied market risk, operational risk, information 
technology/cyber security risk, liquidity risk, credit risk and reputation risk. It has established various policies with respect to 
such risks which set forth limits, mitigation strategies and internal controls to be implemented by the three lines of defence 
approach provided below. These policies include a corporate risk and investment policy, a liquidity risk management policy, 
an operational risk management policy, an outsourcing policy, a fraud risk management policy, an information technology 
risk management policy, an information security management policy and a surveillance policy. 

The Company is particularly sensitive to risks emanating from the introduction of new products and services. Before the 
launch of any new product or service, it is reviewed and approved by the corporate risk management group, compliance and 
operations groups and product and process approval committee that has been set up earlier. These groups and committee 
review the product/service through the lenses of regulatory compliance, risk management and integration with the existing 
risk management systems 
The Board oversees the Company's risk management and has constituted a Risk Management Committee, which frames and 
reviews risk management processes and controls. 

The risk management system features a 'three lines of defence' approach 

The first line of defence comprises its operational departments, which assume primary responsibility for their own risks and 
operate within the limits stipulated in various policies approved by the Board or by committees constituted by the Board. 
The second line of defence comprises specialised departments such as risk management and compliance. They employ 
specialised methods to identify and assess risks faced by the operational departments and provide them with specialised risk 
management tools and methods, facilitate and monitor the implementation of effective risk management practices, develop 
monitoring tools for risk management, internal control and compliance, report risk related information and promote the 
adoption of appropriate risk prevention measures. 
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5. HUMAN RESOURCES: 

At Aryaman Financial Services Ltd, people are the key driving force behind the Company's success. They make us 
outperform. Respecting them, keeping them motivated and developing their skills and careers are essential if we are to be 
successful. We recognize and embrace the value that an engaged and motivated workforce can bring to an organisation. The 
Company stays committed to its principle of 'Your Success is our Success'. The work environment is not just supportive of 
high levels of performance, but also the one in which people can share and celebrate their success 
Intellectual capital is one of the key resources of the Company to ensure business sustainability and growth. The Company 
has an experienced and talented pool of employees who playa key role in enhancing business efficiency, devising strategies, 
setting-up systems and evolving business as per industry requirements. The Company provides regular skill and personnel 
development training to enhance employee productivity. As part of group processes, the Company follows a robust 
leadership potential assessment and leadership development process. These processes identify and groom leaders for the 
future and also enable succession planning for critical positions in the Company. 
Being a growth-oriented and progressive organisation, it recognises the importance of professionalism. The Company has 
embarked on several human resource initiatives to enhance the productivity of the organisation and each individual. The 
Company endeavours to provide a safe, conducive and productive work environment. 

6. FUTURE OUTLOOK: 

NDA winning the 'historic mandate' for another five years is a reaffirmation of the inclusive growth policies followed by the 
Government in the previous five years. This victory will embolden the Government to continue in the same vein to complete 
the unfinished agenda and also to fine-tune the earlier policies for better results. Resilient landmark reforms are expected in 
Modi 2.0, specifically aimed at infrastructure development, financial inclusion, doubling farmers' income, job creation, 
smoothening out the glitches in earlier reforms, and evading & benefitting from the US-China trade war. 

We believe that FY20 will largely be driven by Government spending with more concentration towards infrastructure and 
moderate focus on consumption, leading to overall growth of sub-7 per cent. Based on the earlier track record, we believe 
that the spending mix will tilt towards creating basic infrastructure for poor/rural areas, rather than just increasing cash 
transfers. Inflation should remain benign, making the RBI comfortable to reduce the rates further. Jitters from the US 

President Donald Trump's tweets might send the global markets into a frenzy. But isolating this, we might see Governments, 
the world over, taking significant efforts to revive domestic growth. 
Aryaman financial services limited is well-positioned with its team, experience and products, to grow exponentially across 
various verticals of institutional and non-institutional broking, investment banking, asset management and wealth 
management. All these verticals are led by seasoned professionals and manned by motivated personnel, who will, by offering 
differentiated solutions to their clients, help the clients achieve their objectives and also simultaneously grow the revenues 
and bottom line of Emkay manifold. 

7. SAFE HARBOUR: 

In this Annual Report, we have disclosed forward-looking information to enable investors to comprehend our prospects and 
take investment decisions. This report and other statements - written and oral - that we periodically make contain forward­
looking statements that set out anticipated results based on the management's plans and assumptions. We have tried, 
wherever possible, to identify such statements by using words such as 'anticipate', 'estimate', 'expects', 'projects', 'intends', 
'plans', 'believes' and words of similar substance in connection with any discussion of future performance. 
We cannot guarantee that these forward-looking statements will be realised, although we believe we have been prudent in our 
assumptions. The achievements of results are subject to risks, uncertainties and even inaccurate assumptions. Should known 
or unknown risks or uncertainties materialize or should underlying assumptions prove inaccurate, actual results could vary 
materially from those anticipated, estimated or projected. Readers should keep this in mind. We undertake no obligation to 
publicly update any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31 st MARCH 2020 

1. Company Philosophy: 

Corporate Governance primarily involves transparency, full disclosure, independent monitoring of the state of affairs and 
being fair to all stakeholders. The Corporate Governance Code has also been incorporated in SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

The Company endeavors not only to meet the statutory requirements in this regard but also to go well beyond them by 
instituting such systems and procedures as are in accordance with the latest global trends of making management completely 
transparent and institutionally sound. 

Your Company believes in the concept of Good Corporate Governance involving transparency, empowerment, accountability 
and integrity with a view to enhance stakeholder's value. The Company has professionals on its Board of Directors who are 
actively involved in the deliberations of the Board on all important policy matters. 

2. Board of Directors: 

As on 31" March, 2020, the strength of the Board was Six Directors. The Board comprised of Two Executive Director and 
Four Non-Executive Directors. The Chairman of the Board is an Executive Director. The Board is primarily responsible for 
the overall management of the Company's business. The composition of the Board of Directors is in conformity with the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the relevant provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

None of the Directors of the Company is a member of more than ten Committees or Chairman of more than five Committees 
across all companies in which he/she is a Director. 

Composition of Board of Directors as on 31st March, 2020 and other details are as under: 

Number of Board No. of 
Committee(s) position* 

Attendance 
Meetings Directorship(s) at the last 

Name of 
Category 

held in Other AGMheid 
Director Indian Public on 

Held Attended Limited Member Chairman September 
Companies 25,2019 

Mr. Shripal Executive 
6 6 2 4 Present 

Shah Director 
-

Mr. Shreyas Executive 
6 6 3 1 Not Present 

Shah Director 
-

Mr. Ram Independent 
6 6 1 1 1 Not Present 

Gaud Director 
Mr. Darshit Independent 

6 6 2 2 Present 
Parikh Director 

-

Mr. Abhinav Independent 
6 2 2 1 N.A 

Anand Director 
-

Mrs. Meloni 
Non 

Shah 
Executive 6 1 - - - N.A 
Director 

* Only Audit Committee and Stakeholders' Relationship Committee, in other public limited companies, have been 
considered for the Committee position. 

The Company held six meetings of its Board of Directors during the year on May 29, 2019, August 13,2019, August 31, 
2019, November 14, 2019, Januray 08, 2020, February 14,2020 
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Mr. Sbripal Shah, Mr. Shreyas Shah and Mrs. Meloni Shah are related to each other. 

3. Independent Directors' Meeting: 

During the year under review, a separate meeting of the Independent Directors was held on 22 nd February 2020, without the 
attendance of Non-Independent Directors and members of Management. All the Independent Directors were present at the 
meeting. The following issues were discussed in detail: 

i. Review the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as a whole; 
ii. Review of chairman performance; 

iii. Assessment of the quality, quantity and timeliness flow of information between the Company Management and the 
Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties. 

4. No. Of Shares Held By The Non Executive Directors: 

None of the Non Executive Directors of the Company held any shares of the Company. 

5. Committees of the Board: 

(a) Audit Committee 

The Audit Committee, as per Section 177 of Companies Act, 2013, continued working under Chairmanship of Mr. Darshit 
Parikh. During the year, the committee met four times with full attendance of all the members. The composition of the Audit 
Committee as at March 31, 2020 and details of the Members participation at the Meetings of the Committee are as under 

Category 
Position in Attendance at the Audit Committee Meetings held on 

Name of Director the 
committee 

29.05.2019 13.08.2019 14.11.2019 14.02.2020 

Mr. Darshit Parikh Independent Director Chairperson Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Mr. Sbripal Shah Executive Director Member Yes Yes Yes Yes 
Mr. Ram Gaud Independent Director Member Yes Yes Yes Yes 

The Committee is governed by a Charter, which is in line with the regulatory requirements mandated by the Companies Act, 
2013. Some of the important functions performed by the Committee are: 

• Oversight of the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the 
financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible to be submitted to the Stock Exchanges, regulatory authorities or 
the pUblic. 

• Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of statutory auditors of the Company; 
• Review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance and effectiveness of audit process; 
• Approval for all payments to the statutory auditors for any other services rendered by them; 
• Reviewing with the Management, the Quarterly Unaudited Financial Statements and the Auditor's Limited Review 

Report thereon before submission to the Board for approval. This would, inter alia, include reviewing changes in the 
accounting policies and reasons for the same, major accounting estimates based on exercise of judgement by the 
Management, significant adjustments made in the Financial Statements and / or recommendation, if any, made by the 
Statutory Auditors in this regard. 

• Reviewing, with the management, the audit annual financial statements and auditors' report thereon before submission to 
the Board for approval, with particular reference to: 

a. Matters required to be included in the Directors' Responsibility Statement forming part of the Board's report in 
terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section134 of the Act; 

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same; 
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c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management; 
d. Significant adjustments, if any, made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings; 
e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements; 
f. Disclosure of all related party transactions 
g. Qualifications, if any, in the draft audit report 

• Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with its related parties; 
• Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 
• Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary; 
• Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 
• Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control 

systems; 
• Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, stating 

and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit; 
• Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up thereon; 
• Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud 

or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board; 
• Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post -audit 

discussion to ascertain any area of concern; 
• To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case 

of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors as is applicable; 
• Review the Management Discussion & Analysis of financial and operational performance. 
• Discuss with the Statutory Auditors its judgement about the quality and appropriateness of the Company's accounting 

principles with reference to the IND AS. 
• Review the investments made by the Company. 
• Reviewing the functioning of whistle blower mechanism of the Company. 
All the Members on the Audit Committee have the requisite qualification for appointment on the Committee and possess 
sound knowledge of finance, accounting practices and internal controls. 

The Auditors, Internal Auditors, Chief Financial Officer are invited to attend the meetings of the Committee. The Company 
Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee. Mr. Darshit Parikh, the Chairman of the Committee, was present at the last 
Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on September 25,2019. 

(b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee, as per Section 178 of Companies Act, 2013, continued working under 
Chairmanship of Mr. Darshit Parikh. During the year, the committee met two times with full attendance of all the members. 
The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as at March 31, 2020 and details of the Members 
participation at the Meetings of the Committee are as under: 

Category 
Position in Attendance at the Remuneration Committee held on 

Name of Director the 
committee 

29.05.2019 08.01.2020 

Mr. Darshit Parikh Independent Director Chairperson Yes Yes 
Mr. Ram Gaud Independent Director Member Yes Yes 
Mr. Abhinav Anand Independent Director Member Yes Yes 

The terms of reference of the Committee inter alia, include the following: 

• Succession planning of the Board of Directors and Senior Management Employees; 
• Identifying and selection of candidates for appointment as Directors / Independent Directors based on certain laid down 

criteria; 
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• Identifying potential individuals for appointment as Key Managerial Personnel and to other Senior Management 
positions; 

• Formulate and review from time to time the policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel and senior management employees and their remuneration; 

• Review the performance of the Board of Directors and Senior Management Employees based on certain criteria as 
approved by the Board. 

The Company has formulated a Remuneration Policy which is annexed to the Board's Report. 

Board Evaluation: 

The Board carried out formal annual evaluation of its own performance and that of its Committees viz., the Audit Committee, 
Stakeholders' Relationship Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC). The Board also carried out the 
performance evaluation of all the individual directors including the Chairman of the Company. Additionally, NRC also 
carried out the evaluation of the performance of all the individual directors and Chairman of the Company. The performance 
evaluation was carried out by way of obtaining feedback from the Directors through a structured questionnaire prepared in 
accordance with the policy adopted by the Board and after taking into consideration the Guidance Note on Board Evaluation 
issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India. 

The structured questionnaire prepared to evaluate the performance of individual directors and the Chairman, inter alia, 
contained parameters such as professional conduct, roles and functions, discharge of duties and their contribution to Board! 
Committees/Senior Management. The questionnaire prepared for evaluation of the Board and its Committees, inter alia, 
covered various aspects such as structure and composition, effectiveness of board process, information and roles, 
responsibilities and functioning of the Board and its Committees, establishment and determination of responsibilities of 
Committees, the quality of relationship between the board and the management and professional development. 

The feedback received from the Directors through the above questionnaire was reviewed by the Chairman of the Board and 
the Chairman of the NRC and then discussed the same at the meetings of the Board and NRC respectively. The performance 
evaluation of the Chairman, Managing Director and the Board as a whole was carried out by the Independent Directors at 
their separate meeting, who also reviewed the performance of the Secretarial Department. The Directors expressed their 
satisfaction with the evaluation process. 

The details of such familiarisation programmes for Independent Directors are put up on the Company's website and can be 
accessed at http://afs!.co.inlinvestor-relation.html. 

Remuneration of Directors: 

Non-Executive Directors: 

Non-Executive Director receive remuneration by way of sitting fees only. The details of sitting fees paid during FY 2019-
2020 are given in MGT-9.Criteria of making payments to non-executive directors is available on www.afs!.co.inlinvestor­
relation.htm!. 

Executive Directors: 

Details of remuneration paid to Executive Director during FY 2019-20 is provided in MGT-9. 

Following is remuneration package details for Executive Directors: 

Mr. Shripal Shah: 

1. Basic Salary: Not exceeding < 18,00,000/- (Rupees Eighteen Lacs only) per annum as may be decided by the 
Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors from time to time. 
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2. Perquisites: shall be entitled for the following perquisites in addition of the salary mentioned herein above. 

i. Housing: The Company shall provide unfurnished accommodation to Mr. Shah. If no accommodation is provided, 
House Rent Allowance not exceeding 50% of monthly basic salary or as per Rules of the company, whichever is 
more, shall be payable to him and he shall also be eligible for reimbursement of expenses / allowances for 
utilization of gas, electricity, water & the same shall be valued as per Income Tax Rule, 1962. 

ii. Medical Allowances including reimbursement, as per rules of the company, subject to a maximum of < 15,000/­
(Rupees Fifteen Thousand) per annum. 

iii. Free Telephone Facility at residence and use of Mobile phone for the business of the company. 

3. Other Benefits 

Mr. Shripal Shah shall also be eligible to the following benefits in addition to the above perquisites, which shall not 
be included in the computation of the ceiling on remuneration as specified hereinabove: 

i. Leave Encashment: Encashment of leave at the end of tenure will be permitted in accordance with the rules of the 
Company. 

Mr. Shreyas Shah: 

Salary: 
a) Fixed Pay not exceeding < 9,00,000/-
b) Variable Pay up to < 18,00,000/-

(a) Remuneration to Mr. Shreyas Shah shall be subject to leave and other personal policies of the Company from time 
to time. 

(b) Re-imbursement of Expenses: the Company shall payor reimburse to Mr. Shreyas Shah, reasonable and necessary 
business expenses as incurred by him, which are directly related to the performance of his duties of employment 
including travel, professional membership and professional development subject to documents submitted by Mr. Shreyas 
Shah. 

4. All payments of remunerations to be made by the Company subject to this resolution shall be gross of tax and shall 
be subject to deduction of tax payable in accordance with the applicable law as may be from time to time. 

Shareholding of Directors: 

As at March 31, 2020, following is the shareholding of directors; 

Sr. 
No. 

1. 
2. 

Name of Director 

Mr. Shripal Shah 
Mr. Shreyas Shah 

(c) Stakeholders' Relationship Committee: 

% 
No of Shares of Total Shares of the 

Company 
90,000 0.77 
90,000 0.77 

The Stakeholders' Relationship Committee, as per Section 178 (5) of Companies Act, 2013, continued working under 
Chairmanship of Mr. Darshit Parikh. During the year, the committee met two times with full attendance of all the members. 
The composition of the Stakeholders' Relationship Committee as at March 31, 2020 and details of the Members participation 
at the Meetings of the Committee are as under: 
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Position in the 
Attendance at the Stakeholders' Relationship 

Name of Director Category 
committee 

Committee held on 
29.05.2019 14.11.2020 

Mr. Darshit Parikh Independent Director Chairperson Yes Yes 
Mr. Shripal Shah Executive Director Member Yes Yes 
Mr Abhinav Anand Independent Director Member Yes Yes 

The terms of reference of the Committee are: 

• transfer/transmission of shares/debentures and such other securities as may be issued by the Company from time to 
time; 

• issue of duplicate share certificates for shares/debentures and other securities reported lost, defaced or destroyed, as 
per the laid down procedure; 

• issue new certificates against subdivision of shares, renewal, split or consolidation of share certificates / certificates 
relating to other securities; 

• issue and allot right shares / bonus shares pursuant to a Rights Issue / Bonus Issue made by the Company, subject to 
such approvals as may be required; 

• to grant Employee Stock Options pursuant to approved Employees' Stock Option Scheme(s), if any, and to allot 
shares pursuant to options exercised; 

• to issue and allot debentures, bonds and other securities, subject to such approvals as may be required; 

• to approve and monitor dematerialization of shares / debentures / other securities and all matters incidental or related 
thereto; 

• to authorize the Company Secretary and Head Compliance / other Officers of the Share Department to attend to 
matters relating to non-receipt of annual reports, notices, non-receipt of declared dividend / interest, change of 
address for correspondence etc. and to monitor action taken; 

• monitoring expeditious redressal of investors / stakeholders grievances; 

• all other matters incidental or related to shares, debenture 

During the year, Two Complaint was received from shareholder on SCORES and was resolved successfully. There are no 
balance complaints. The Company had no share transfers pending as on March 31, 2020. 

Ms. Chaitali Pansari, Company Secretary of the Company is Compliance Officer. 

6. General Body Meetings: 

Annual general meetings: 

The date, time and venue of the last three Annual General Meetings are given below: 

Year ended as 
Whether any Special 

AGM Venue Date Time Resolution passed or 
on 

not 
Indian Social Institute, 10, 

23'd 31.03.2017 Institutional Area, Lodi Road, New 25.09.2017 09.00 AM. No 
Delhi, Delhi - 110 003 
Vihara Innovation Campus, D -

24th 31.03.2018 57, Chattarpur Enclave, 100ft. 25.09.2018 11.00 AM. Yes 
Road, new Delhi - 110074 
Vihara Innovation Campus, D -

25th 31.03.2019 57, Chattarpur Enclave, 100ft. 25.09.2019 10.00 AM. Yes 
Road, new Delhi - 110074 
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Extraordinary General Meeting or Postal Ballot: 

The Company did not hold any Postal Ballot during the FY. 2019-20. 

7. Means of Communication: 

The Quarterly I Annual financial results sent to the Stock Exchanges and published in The Financial Express (English) and 
Jansatta (Hindi) in accordance with the Listing Regulations. The Quarterly I Annual results are also uploaded on the website 

of the Company http://afsl.co.inlinvestor-relation.html. Communication to Shareholders via Newspaper is published in The 
Financial Express (English) and Jansatta (Hindi). 

8. General shareholder information: 

AGM - Date Wednesday, September 30, 2020, 01.00 P.M., through Video Conference (VC) I Other Audio-Visual Means 
and Time (OAVM) 
Financial 1" April to 31" March of following year 
Year: 
Book Closure Thursday, September 24,2020 to Wednesday, September 30,2020 
Date: 
ISIN: INE03 2E01 017 
Listing of BSE Limited, P. J. Towers, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001 
Equity Shares 
on stock 
exchanges: 
Listing fees The Company has paid the listing fees, to the Stock Exchanges for the financial year 2020-21 
payment 
status: 
Stock code: 530245 
Share The Company's shares are compulsorily traded in Demat mode on the BSE Limited. The transfer of 
Transfer Physical shares, if any, are processed and returned to the shareholders within a period of 15 days by the 
System: Registrar & Share Transfer Agent. 
Registrar & Adroit Corporate Services Private Limited 
transfer 19120, Jafferboy Industrial Estate 
agents: 1" Floor, Makwana Road, 

Marol Naka, Andheri (E), 
Mumbai - 400 059 
Tel. No. : 022 - 4227 0423 
E-Mail id: sandeeps@adroitcorporate.com 

Market Price Month High Price Low Price No. of Shares Traded 
Data 

Apr-19 50.00 47.00 1,51,463 (Monthly): 
May-19 49.00 46.40 3,45,856 

Jun-19 49.75 45.00 5,09,784 

Jul-19 48.00 40.00 14,443 

Aug-19 42.50 40.00 323 

Sep-19 42.00 34.30 2,752 

Oct-19 41.00 30.30 676 

Nov-19 33.60 30.00 58,604 

Dec-19 38.00 32.00 57,689 



Perfonnance 
in comparison 
to BSE 
Sensex: 

Distribution 
of 
Shareholding: 

Dematerializa 
tion of Shares 
and Liquidity: 

Shareholding 
Pattern as 
March 31, 
2020: 
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Jan-20 42.00 38.00 62,112 

Feb-20 42.00 39.90 20,586 

Mar-20 45.00 41.00 16,809 

liIH'E{ 

• ElSE 

29,-468.49 R4.19%) 

Ap, 1 9 by 19 Iton 19 J ul 1 9 Au g 19 "'p 1 9 Oct 19 Nov 19 Dg,e 1'9 l~n 20 I=lii:b 20 ~:u 20 

Shareholding of 
Nominal Value of 

~10/- each 

No. of 

Particulars 

% of 
Share Amount 

% of 

No. of shares held 
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Individual 1,80,000 1.54 
Body Corporate(s) 70,83,030 60.63 
Non Promoters 
Individual / HUF 26,49,083 22.68 
Body Corporate(s) 17,67,053 15.13 
Bank / Financial Institutions 800 0.01 
NRIslForeign Nationals 2,034 0.02 
Clearing Member - -

Total 1,16,82,000 100.00 
Details of Sr. 

Particulars No. of Shareholders 
No. of 

share s lying in No. Shares 
the suspense I. Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding 
account: shares in the suspense account lying at the beginning of 

Nil Nil 

the year 
2. Number of shareholders who approached the Company 

Nil Nil 
for transfer of shares from the suspense account during 
the year 

3. Number of shareholders to whom shares were Nil Nil 
transferred from the suspense account during the year 

4. Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding 
Nil Nil 

shares in the suspense account lying at the end of the 
year 

Address for Aryaman Financial Services Limited 
correspondenc Ms. Chaitali Pansari (Company Secretary) 
e: 60, Khatau Building, Ground. Floor, 

Alkesh Dinesh Modi Marg, 
Fort, Mumbai - 400 001 

Tel: 022 - 6216 6999 
Fax: 022 - 2263 0434 

9. Chart of Matrix core Skill of Directors 

Sr. Skill area Shripal Shah Shreyas Shah Ram Gaud Darshit Abhinav Meloni Shah 
No. Parekh Anand 
1. Strategy Planning / / - - - / 
2. Risk Management / - / / / / 
3. Governance and / - / / / / Compliance 
4. ExpertiselExperience in / / / / - -

Finance & Accounts 
IAudit 

5. Member and stakeholder / - - / / -
engagement 

6. Industry Knowledge & / / / - / / Experience 
7. Policy Development - / - / / -
8. Corporate Leadership / - / - - / 
9. Legal & Regulatory - / / / / -
10. Human Resource - / - - - -

Management 
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10. Disclosures: 

i. The Company did not have any material significant related party transactions having a potential conflict with the 
interest of the Company at large. Transactions with the related parties are disclosed in the audited financial 
statements. 

ii. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (IND-AS). 
iii. There were no instances of non-compliance by the Company on any matter related to the capital markets, resulting 

in disciplinary action against the Company by the Stock Exchanges or Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(SEBI) or any other statutory authority, during the last three years. 

iv. The Company has a vigil mechanism for employees to report concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected 
fraud or violation of our code of conduct and confirms that no personnel have been denied access to the Audit 
Committee 

v. The Company has a formal system of internal control testing which examines both the design effectiveness and 
operational effectiveness to ensure reliability of financial and operational information and all statutory I regulatory 
compliances. 

vi. Policy for detennining 'material' subsidiaries and Policy on dealing with related party transactions is available on 
http://afs!.co.in/investor-relation.htm!. 

vii. The Company has complied with mandatory requirements specified from Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses 
(b) to (i) of sub -regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

viii. The CFO have issued certificate pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 
2015 certifying that the financial statements do not contain any untrue statement and these statements represent a 
true and fair view of the Company's affairs. The said certificate is annexed and forms part of the Annual Report. 

ix. Pursuant to SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a certificate from JNG & 
Co., Company Secretaries, certifying the compliance by the Company with the provisions of the Corporate 
Governance of the Listing Regulations forms part of this Report. 

x. Pursuant to SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been 
debarred or disqualified as Directors of Companies by SEBI or Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other 
Authority is issued by Mis JNG and Co., Practicing Company Secretaries, annexed to this report and forms part of 
this Report. 

Declaration as required under Regulation 26 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 

In accordance with SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, I hereby confirm that for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2019, the Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed 
compliance with the "AFSL - Code Of Conduct" for Directors and Senior Management Personnel. 

For Aryaman Financial Services Limited 

Sd/­
Shripal Shah 

(Executive Director) 
DIN: 01628855 

Mumbai, Tuesday, September 02, 2020 
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CERTIFICATION BY CFO UNDER REGULATION 17 (8) OF THE LISTING REGULATION 

To 
The Board of Directors, 
Aryaman Financial Services Limited. 

(a) We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of Aryaman Financial Services Ltd. for the 
year ended March 31, 2020 and to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

(i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 
statements that might be misleading; 

(ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with 
existing Accounting Standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

(b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year 
which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's Code of Conduct. 

(c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have 
evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and have 
disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, 
if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take for rectifying these deficiencies. 

(d) We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee: 

(i) Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 

(ii) Significant changes in accounting policies made during the year and the same have been disclosed in the 
notes to the financial statements; and 

(iii) Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the 
management or an employee having a significant role in the Company's internal control system over 
financial reporting. 

Place: - Mumbai 
Date: - September 02, 2020 

For Aryaman Financial Services Limited 

Sd/­
Shripal Shah 

(Chief Financial Officer) 
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Aryaman Financial Services Limited for the 
year ended 31 st March, 2020 as stipulated in Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulation of the said Company with Stock 
Exchanges. 

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was 
limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of 
Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company 
has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentionedmSEBI (LODR) Regulations, 
2015. 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or 
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the company. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: September 02, 2020 
UDIN: F007569B000648132 

For JNG & Co., 

Sd/­
Jigarkumar Gandhi 

FCS: 7569 
C.P. No. 8108 
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISOUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 
[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C Sub clause (10)(i) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015] 

We have examined the List of disqualified Directors published by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA"); Declaration from all tlie 

Directors self-certifying their non-disqualification as required under section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act"); and Disclosure of 

Directors' concern/interests as required under section 184 of the Act (hereinafter referred as "the relevant documents") of Aryaman 

Financial Services Limited, bearing Corporate Identification Number (CIN) - L 74899DL1994PLC059009, having its registered office at 
102, Ganga Chambers, 6a!1, W.E.A., Karol Bagh New Delhi- 110005 (hereinafter referred as "the Company") for the purpose of issuing 

tliis Certificate, in accordance witli Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10 (i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

Based on my examination as well as on information and according to tlie verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN) 

status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) and explanations furnished provided by the officers, agents and authorised representatives of the 

Company, I hereby certify that none of the Directors of the Company stated below who are on the Board of the Company as on 31 st March 

2020, have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing to act as Directors of the Company by Securities and 

Exchange Board of India or tlie MCA or any such other statutory authority. 

Sr. No Board of Directors DIN Date of Appointment* 

1 Shripal Shah 01628855 24110/2008 

2 Shreyas Shah 01835575 29105/2013 

3 Ram Gaud 02759052 18106/2009 

4 Abhinav Anand 07732241 1411112018 

5 Darshit Parekh 03492803 25104/2011 

6 Meloni Shah 03342248 04102/2019 

*The date of appomtment IS as per the MCA Portal 

We further state tliat such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness 

with which the management has conducted tlie affairs of tlie Company. 

This Certificate has been issued at the request oftlie Company to make disclosure in its Corporate Governance Report of the Financial Year 

ended 31 st March, 2020. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: September 02, 2020 
UDIN: F007569B000648101 

For JNG & Co., 

Sd/­
Jigarkumar Gandhi 

FCS: 7569 
C.P. No. 8108 
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Independent Auditor's Report 

To 
The members of 
ARYAMAN FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of ARYAMAN FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED 
("the Company"), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31" March 2020, the statement of profit and loss, statement of 
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements 
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view 
in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31" 
March, 2020, and the net profit (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year 
ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements' section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities 
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidences we have obtained are 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on 
these matters. We have determined the matters described hereunder to be key audit matters to be communicated in our report. 

Key audit matters Auditor's response 

Measurement of Revenue Our audit procedure inter- alia included the following-

As per Ind AS 115, measurement of revenue to • We used assessment of overall control 
be made on transaction price. environment relevant for measurement of 

revenue. 

• We performed testing of journal entries, with 
particular focus on manual adjustment to revenue 
account, to mitigate the risk of manipulation of 
revenue and profit figures. 

Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon 
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The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexure to 
Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's Information, but does not 
include the standalone financial statements and the auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statement does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or 
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we 
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the 
preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and the other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that are 
operating effectively for insuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatements, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain a reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise due to fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these standalone financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with the SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also: 

(i) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations or the override of internal control. 
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(ii) Obtain an understanding of the internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

(iii) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management. 

(iv) Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained upto the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

(v) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statement, individually or in aggregate, makes it 
probable that the economic decision of reasonable knowledgeable user of the financial statement may be influenced. 

We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) Planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the 
results of our work; and, (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal controls that we identify during our 
audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonable be thought to 
bear on our independence, and where applicable, relevant safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. 
We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, or when in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication. 

Other Matters 

We draw your attention to Note 30 of the standalone financial statement which explains the uncertainties and management's 
assessment of the financial impact due to the lockdownl restrictions related to COVID-19 pandemic imposed by the 
Government for which definitive assessment of the impact is dependent upon the future economic conditions. Our opinion is 
not modified in respect of this matter. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

l. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ('the Order'), as amended, issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on 
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order, to the extent applicable. 
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2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from 
our examination of those books; 

(c) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement 
dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account; 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the accounting standards specified under 
Section 133 of the Act; 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 st March, 2020 taken on record by the 
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31" March, 2020 from being appointed as a director in 
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure B. Our report expresses an 
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting. 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule II of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact, if any of pending litigations on its financial position, in its standalone 
financial statements (Refer to Note 31 of the standalone financial statements). 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses. 

iii. The Company is not required to transfer any amount to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. 

FOR V. N. PUROHIT & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No. 304040E 

SdJ-
O. P. Pareek 
Partner 
Membership No. 014238 
UDIN: - 20014238AAAADV9553 

New Delhi, the 31" day of July, 2020 
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ANNEXURE- A TO THE AUDITOR'S REPORT 

The Annexure referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of "Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements" of our 
report of even date to the members of ARYAMAN FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED for the year ended on 31" March 
2020. 

(i) (a) As per information and explanation given to us, the company is maintaining proper records showing full disclosures 
of fixed assets. 

(b) As per information and explanation given to us, physical verification of fixed assets has been conducted once in a 
year by the management and no material discrepancies were noticed during the course of verification. 

(c) According to information and explanation given to us, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of 
the Company; 

(ii) As per information and explanation given to us, the Company did not hold inventory at any time during the period under 
audit, therefore the provisions of clause (ii) of paragraph 3 are not applicable; 

(iii) According to information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted loans to parties covered in register 
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013; 

(iv) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 
and section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent applicable in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and 
securities so given; 

(v) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted public deposits and the provision 
of section 73 to 76 or other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder are not 
applicable to the Company; 

(vi) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company is not liable to maintain cost records as prescribed 
under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013; 

(vii) (a) According to information and explanations given to us, the company is generally regular in depositing undisputed 
statutory dues including income-tax and any other applicable statutory dues to the appropriate authorities and there are 
no outstanding statutory dues as on the last day of the financial year concerned for a period of more than six months from 
the date they became payable; 

(b) According to information and explanation given to us, there are no outstanding statutory dues on the part of the 
Company which is not deposited on account of dispute. 

(viii) According to information and explanations given to us, the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and 
borrowings from any financial institution, bank, government or dues to debenture holders; 

(ix) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer 
or further public offer. The term loans have been applied for the purpose for which they were obtained; 

(x) According to information and explanations given to us, there is no noticed or unreported fraud on or by the Company 
during the year under audit; 

(xi) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has paid managerial remuneration in accordance 
with section 197 of Companies Act, 2013; 
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(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company, hence provisions of 
clause (xii) of the Paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable; 

(xiii) According to information and explanations given to us, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with 
sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 wherever applicable and the details have been disclosed in the standalone 
financial statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards; 

(xiv) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year; 

(xv) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into non- cash transactions with 
directors or persons connected with him; 

(xvi) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Non- Banking Financial Company and is 
not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

Signed for the purpose of identification 

FOR V. N. PUROHIT & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No. 304040E 

SdJ-
O. P. Pareek 
Partner 
Membership No. 014238 
UDIN: - 20014238AAAADV9553 

New Delhi, the 31" day of July, 2020 
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ANNEXURE- B TO THE AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub- section (3) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ARYAMAN FINANCIAL SERVICES 
LIMITED as on 31" March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the 
year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for the Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control s 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of fraud and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting (the Guidance Note) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an 
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in 
all material aspects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial control system 
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting 
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidences we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 
the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those 
policies and procedures that: -

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the Company; 
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(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and the receipt and expenditures of the 
Company are being only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and 

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use or 
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and could not 
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial control over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial controls over financial reporting may became inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material aspects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31" March 2020, based 
on "the internal financial controls over financial reporting criteria considering the essential components of internal contro I 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants ofIndia". 

FOR V. N. PUROHIT & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No. 304040E 

SdJ-
O. P. Pareek 
Partner 
Membership No. 014238 
UDIN: - 20014238AAAADV9553 

New Delhi, the 31" day of July, 2020 
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---
As at As at 

Particulars 
Not March 31, March 31, 

e 2020 2019 
lNR Lacs I INRLacs ---

ASSETS ---
Financial Assets ---
Cash and cash equivalents 2 7.21 3.99 ---
Bank balances other than above 3 555.43 651.27 ---
Receivables ---

Trade receivables 4 10.95 9.77 
Investments 5 1,347.04 1,347.03 ---

Other financial assets 6 257.38 2.32 ---

---
Non-Financial Assets ---
Current tax assets(net) 48.01 51.00 ---
Property, Plant and equipment 7 119.05 124.92 ---
Other non financial Assets 8 6.66 288.09 ---

TOTAL ASSETS 2,351.74 2,478.35 ---
---

LIABILITmS AND EQUITY ---
Financial Liabilities ---
Payables 9 ---
(I) Trade Payables - ----

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises ---
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 

1l.78 190.31 
entefJ.~rises ---

Borrowings (other than debt security) 10 24.13 25.14 ---
Other Financial liabilities II 12.82 25.46 ---

---
Non-financial Liabilities ---
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 12 7.68 1.20 ---
Other non-financial liabilities 13 33.12 57.53 ---

---
Eguitl: ---

Equity Share Capital 14 1,168.20 1,168.20 ---
Other equity 15 1,093.99 1,010.50 ---

---
TOTAL LIABILITmS AND EQUITY --- 2,351.74 2,478.35 
Notes to the standalone financial statements 1-35 

FOR V.N. PUROHIT & CO. For and on behalf of the Aryaman Financial Services Limited 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No. 304040E 

Sd/-
Sd/- Sd/-

Sd/-
O.P.Pareek 

Shripal Shah Shreyas Shah 
Chaitali Pansari 

Partner (Company Secretary) 
Membership No. 014238 

(Executive Director) (Executive Director) 
PAN: BKHPP6512N 

DIN: 01628855 DIN: 01835575 
UDIN: 20014238AAAADV9553 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 31 st July, 2020 
Date: July 31, 2020 

Place: Mumbai 



STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT 
AND LOSS 
For the year ended March 31, 2020 

Particulars 

I. Revenue From Operations 
-Fees and Commission income 

II. Other Income 
III. Total Income (1+11) 
IV. EXPENSES 

Finance Cost 
Fees and Commission expenses 
Employee benefits expense 
Depreciation 
Other expenses 
Total expenses (IV) 

V. Profit before tax (III-IV) 
VI. Tax expense: 

(1) Current tax 
(2) Deferred tax 
Total tax expenses (VI) 

VII. Profit for the year (V-VI) 
VIII. Other Comprehensive Income 

IX. Total other comprehensive income 
X. Total comprehensive income for the year (VII+VIII) 

XL Earnings per equity share: 
Basic & Diluted (Face value Rs.lO per equity share) 

Notes to the Standalone financial statements 
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For the year For the year 

Note 
ended March ended March 

31,2020 31,2019 
INR Lacs INR Lacs 

441.54 820.19 
16 36.58 45.39 

478.12 865.57 

17 3.25 3.22 
18 154.86 370.74 
19 147.76 182.84 
20 7.38 11.28 
21 44.80 75.61 

358.04 643.69 
120.08 221.88 

30.10 63.16 
6.48 (6.38) 

36.58 56.78 
83.50 165.10 

83.50 165.10 

0.71 1.41 

1-35 

For V.N. PUROHIT & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 

For and on behalf of the Aryaman Financial Services Limited 

Firm Registration No. 304040E 

Sd/­
O.P.Pareek 
Partner 
Membership No. 014238 
UDIN: 20014238AAAADV9553 

Date: 31 st July, 2020 
Place: Mumbai 

Sd/-
Shripal Shah 
(Executive Director) 
DIN: 01628855 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: July 31, 2020 

Sd/-
Shreyas Shah 
(Executive Director) 
DIN: 01835575 

Sd/-
Chaitali Pansari 
(Company Secretary) 
PAN: BKHPP6512N 
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EQUITY 
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A. Equity Share Capital: 

Particulars 

Balance as at 1" April, 2018 
Changes in equity share capital during the year 2017 -18 
Balance as at 31" March, 2019 
Changes in equity share capital during the year 2018-19 
Balance as at 31" March, 2020 

B. Other Equity: 

Particulars Capital 
Reserve 

INR Lacs 
As at 1" April, 2018 6.52 
Profit for the year 2018-19 
As at 31" March, 2019 6.52 
Profit for the year 2019-20 
As at 31" March, 2020 6.52 

In terms of our report attached 

Amount 
INR 
Lacs 
1168.20 

1,168.20 

1,168.20 

Reserves and Surplus 

Securities General 
Premium Reserve 
INRLacs INR Lacs 

317.68 260.75 

317.68 260.75 

317.68 260.75 

Retained 
Earnings 
INRLacs 

260.44 
165.10 
425.54 

83.50 
509.04 

I 
Other 
Equity 

INRLacs 
845.39 
165.10 

1,010.49 
83.50 

1,093.99 

For V.N. PUROHIT & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 

For and on behalf of the Aryaman Financial Services Limited 

Firm Registration No. 304040E 

Sd/­
O.P.Pareek 
Partner 
Membership No. 014238 
UDIN: 20014238AAAADV9553 

Date: 31 st July, 2020 
Place: Mumbai 

Sd/-
Shripal Shah 
(Executive Director) 
DIN: 01628855 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: July 31, 2020 

Sd/-
Shreyas Shah 
(Executive Director) 
DIN: 01835575 

Sd/-
Chaitali Pansari 
(Company Secretary) 
PAN: BKHPP6512N 
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For the year ended I For the year ended 
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 Particulars 
INRLacs I INRLacs 

A. Cash flow from operating activities 
Profit for the year 120.08 221.88 
Adjustments (or: 

Finance costs 3.25 3.22 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 7.38 11.28 
Interest income (36.58) (45.39) 

Operating profit before working capital changes 94.13 190.99 
Movements in working capital: 

(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (1.18) (4.06) 
(Increase)/decrease in other assets 29.33 (6.12) 
Increase /(decrease) in trade payables (178.53) (140.76) 
Increase /(decrease) in other liabilities (37.05) (42.51) 

Cash generated from operations (93.30) (2.46) 
Direct taxes paid (net) 30.10 63.16 
Net cash from operating activities (A) (123.40) (65.62) 

B. Cash flows from investing activities 
Payment for property, plant and equipment (PPE) (1.51 ) (10.90) 
Purchase/Sale of Investment 28.80 
Interest Income 36.58 45.39 

Net cash (used in) investing activities (B) 35.07 63.29 
C. Cash flow from financing activities 

Repayment of borrowings (1.01) 3.77 
Interest paid (3.25) (3.22) 

Net cash (used in) financing activities (C) (4.26) 0.55 

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents [A+B+C] (92.59) (1.78) 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 655.26 657.01 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 562.67 655.26 

Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents 
Cash in hand 0.59 0.09 
Balance with bank in Current & Fixed Deposits Accounts 562.08 655.17 
Total Cash & Cash Equivalents 562.67 655.26 

I 
For the year ended For the year ended I 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 
I INRLacs INRLacs I 

Changes in Liability arising from financing activity 

Opening Balance of Borrowings 25.14 21.37 
Cash Flows ( 1.02) 3.77 
Closing Balance of Borrowings 24.13 25.14 
In terms of our report attached 
For V.N. PUROHIT & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 

For and on behalf of the Aryaman Financial Services Limited 

Firm Registration No. 304040E 

SdI· 
O.P.Pareek 
Partner 
Membership No. 014238 
UDIN: 200l4238PlAJ\Al)\'9553 
Date: 31st July, 2020 
Place: Mumbai 

SdI· 
Shripal Shah 
(Executive Director) 
DIN: 01628855 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: July 31, 2020 

SdI· 
Shreyas Shah 
(Executive Director) 
DIN: 01835575 

SdI· 
ChaitaIi Pansari 
(Company Secretary) 
PAN: BKHPP65l2N 
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Note-l 

A. CORPORATE INFORMATION: 

Aryaman Financial Services Limited is a public limited company domiciled in India witb its registered office located at 102. Ganga 
Chambers. 6A11. W.E.A.. Karol Bagh. New Delhi-I 10005. The Company is listed on BSE Limited (BSE). The Company is engaged 
in tbe business of Merchant Banking. 

B. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: 

a) Basis of Preparation of the Standalone Financial Statements: 

These standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred 
to as the 'Ind AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act. 2013 ('the Act·) read 
with the Companies (Indian Accounting standards) Rules as amended from time to time and otber related provisions of the Act. 

The financial statements of the Company are prepared on tbe accrual basis of accounting and Historical cost convention except for 
the following material items tbat have been measured at fair value as required by the relevant Ind AS: 

I. Certain financial assets and liabilities are measured at Fair value (Refer note no. 7 below) 

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all tbe periods presented in tbe standalone financial statements. All assets and 
liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the 
Schedule III to tbe Companies Act. 2013. 

The standalone financial statements are presented in INR. the functional currency of tbe Company. All amounts disclosed in tbe 
standalone financial statements have been rounded off to tbe nearest lacs as per the requirement of Schedule III. unless otberwise 
stated. 
The Company presents its Balance Sheet in order of liquidity. 

The preparation of the standalone financial statements requires the management to make. judgments. estimates and assumptions that 
affects the reported amount of assets and liabilities. disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of the standalone financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. The recognition. measurement. 
classification or disclosure of an item or information in the standalone financial statements is made relying on these estimates. The 
estimates and judgments used in the preparation of the standalone financial statements are continuously evaluated by tbe 
management and are based on historical experience and various otber assumptions and factors (including expectations of future 
events) that tbe management believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. Actual results may differ from those 
estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future periods. 

b) Critical accounting judgments and key source of estimation uncertainty: 

The Company is required to make judgments. estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are 
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other 
factors that are considered to be relevant. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. 

I. Estimation of current tax expenses and payable - Refer note no. - 14 

c) Property, plant and equipment (PPE): 

Property. plant and equipment is stated at acquisition cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. if 
any. 

The cost of an item of property. plant and equipment comprises its purchase price. including import duties and non-refundable 
purchase taxes. after deducting trade discounts and rebates. any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working 
condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the item and restoring tbe site 
on which it is located. 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in tbe Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 
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d) Intangible assets: 

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

e) Depreciation and Amortization: 

1. Property plant and equipment (PPE): 

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the straight line method based on estimated useful life prescribed under 
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. 

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment is reviewed at each financial 
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

2. Estimated useful life is as below: 
Computer - 3 Years 
Furniture and fixtures - 10 years 
Office equipments - 5 years 
Motor Vehicles - 8 years 

3. Intangible assets: 
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Finite-life intangible assets are amortised on a 
straight-line basis over the period of their expected useful lives. 

The amortization period and the amortization method for finite life intangible assets is reviewed at each financial year end 
and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. For indefinite life intangible assets, the assessment of indefinite life is reviewed 
annually to determine whether it continues, if not, it is impaired or changed prospectively basis revised estimates. 

f) Investments in subsidiaries: 

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less accumulated impairment, if any. 

g) Financial Instruments: 

Financial assets: 
Financial assets are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. 

Equity Instruments: 
Considering the entity's business model for managing equity instruments: the investments in equity shares have been recognised at 
fair value as on date of balance sheet. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). 

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the Company's right to 
receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the 
dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably. 
Dividends recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss are included in the 'Other income' line item. 

Derecognition: 
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it 
transfers rights to receive cash flows from an asset, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of 
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control 
of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. 

In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a 
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. 
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Financial Liabilities: 

Initial Recognition and measurement: 
Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial 
liabilities are initially recognised at fair value net of transaction costs for all financial liabilities not carried at fair value through 
profit or loss. 

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts. 

Subsequent measurement: 
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost are subsequently measured at using EIR method. Financial liabilities carried at fair 
value through profit or losse are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Loans & Borrowings: 
After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using EIR method. 
Gains and losses are recognized in profit & loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through EIR amortization process. 

Financial Guarantee Contracts: 
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that requires a payment to be made or to reimburse the 
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtors fails to make payment when due in accordance with the term of a debt 
instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognized initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. 

De-recognition: 
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing 
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are 
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition 
of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

Derivative financial instruments 
The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward foreign exchange contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risks. 
Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into 
and are subsequently re-measured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Offsetting of financial instruments: 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently 
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and 
settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

h) Fair Value Measurement: 

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives, investments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is 
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at 
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 
liability takes place either 
a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the standalone financial statements are categorised within 
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a 
whole: 

(i) Levell - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
(ii) Level 2 -Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or 

indirectly observable 
(iii) Level 3-Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable 
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For assets and liabilities that ate recognised in the standalone financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines 
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hieratchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that 
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, 
chatacteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hieratchy as explained above. 

i) Inventory: 

Inventories ate valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is computed on a weighted average basis. 

j) Cash and Cash Equivalents: 

Cash and Cash equivalents include cash and Cheque in hand, bank balances, demand deposits with banks and other short-term 
highly liquid investments that ate readily convertible to kuown amounts of cash & which ate subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in value where original maturity is three months or less. 

k) Foreign Currency Transactions: 

1. Initial Recognition: 
Transactions in foreign currency ate recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. Exchange differences 
atising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the yeat ate recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the yeat. 

2. Measurement of Foreign Currency Items at the Balance Sheet Date: 
Foreign currency monetaty items of the Company ate restated at the closing exchange rates. Non monetaty items ate recorded at the 
exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. Exchange differences atising out of these transactions ate chatged to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

I) Revenue Recognition: 
Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company & revenue is reliably 
measured. 

I. Interest Income: The Company recognises interest income using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) on all financial assets 
subsequently measured at amortised cost. EIR is calculated by considering all costs and incomes attributable to acquisition 
of a financial asset or assumption of a financial liability and it represents a rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash 
payments/receipts through the expected life of the financial asset/financial liability to the gross catrying amount of a 
financial asset or to the atUortised cost of a financial liability. 

2. Dividend: Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shateholders' right to receive payment has been 
established which is generally when the shateholders approve the dividend. 

3. Other revenue from operations: The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers (other than financial 
assets to which Ind AS 109 'Financial Instruments' is applicable) based on a comprehensive assessment model as set out in 

Ind AS 115 'Revenue from contracts with customers', The Company identifies contract(s) with a customer and its 

performance obligations under the contract, determines the transaction price and its allocation to the performance 

obligations in the contract and recognises revenue only on satisfactory completion of performance obligations. Revenue is 

measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. 

m) Employee Benefits: 

Employee Benefits: - The Company does not fall within the applicability of Employee benefit plans. 

n) Taxes on Income: 

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit and loss except to the 
extent it relates to items directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income. 

Current tax is based on taxable profit for the yeat. Taxable profit is different from accounting profit due to temporaty differences 
between accounting and tax treatments, and due to items that ate never taxable or tax deductible. Tax provisions ate included in 
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current liabilities. Interest and penalties on tax liabilities are provided for in tbe tax charge. The Company offsets, tbe current tax 
assets and liabilities (on a year on year basis) where it has a legally enforceable right and where it intends to settle such assets and 
liabilities on a net basis or to realise the assets and liabilities on net basis. 

Deferred income tax is recognized using tbe balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recoguized for 
deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between tbe tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in 
standalone financial statements. Deferred income tax asset are recognized to the extent tbat it is probable that taxable profit will be 
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can 
be utilized. Deferred tax assets are not recoguised where it is more likely than not tbat the assets will not be realised in the future. 

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer 
probable tbat sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of tbe deferred income tax asset to be utilized. Deferred 
income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in tbe period when the asset is realized or the 
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) tbat have been enacted or substantively enacted at tbe reporting date. 

Deferred tax items are recoguised in correlation to tbe underlying transaction eitber in OCI or directly in equity. 

Minimum Alternative Tax ('MAT') credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the 
Company will pay normal income-tax during the specified period. The Company reviews tbe same at each balance sheet date and 
writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to tbe extent tbere is no longer convincing evidence to the effect tbat 
Company will pay normal income-tax during the specified period. 

0) Borrowing Cost: 

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to tbe acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets 
are capitalized as a part of Cost of tbose assets, during the period till all tbe activities necessary to prepare the Qualifying assets for 
its intended use or sale are complete during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare tbe assets for its intended use 
or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. 

Otber borrowing costs are recoguized as an expense in tbe period in which they are incurred. 

p) Earnings Per Share: 

Basic earnings per shares are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss after tax for the period attributable to equity shareholders 
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per 
share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity shareholders and tbe weighted average number of shares 
outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

q) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets: 

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated 
reliably, and it is probable tbat an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle tbe obligation. 

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by tbe Company from a contract are lower 
than tbe unavoidable costs of meeting tbe future obligations under tbe contract. 

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation tbat may probably not 
require an outflow of resources or an obligation for which the future outcome cannot be ascertained witb reasonable certainty. When 
there is a possible or a present obligation where the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. 
Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the standalone financial statements. 

2. Cash & Cash Equivalents: 

Particulars 

Balance with Banks 
(i) in current accounts 

Cash on hand 

As at 
March 31, 2020 

INRLacs 

6.65 
0.57 

As at 
March 31, 2019 

INR Lacs 

3.90 
0.09 
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Total 7.21 3.99 

3. Bank Balances other than Cash & Cash Equivalents: 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

INRLacs j ~ INR Lacs 
Balance with Banks-Fixed Dej20sits 555.43 651.27 

Total 555.43 651.27 

4. Trade Receivables: 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

INRLacs INR Lacs 
Considered good - unsecured 10.95 9.77 

Total 10.95 9.77 
Footnotes: No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other 
person. 

5. Investments: 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

INRLacs INRLacs 
Investments in Equity Shares, Quoted 

- In Subsidiaries measured at cost (fulll: ~aid) 
Quoted: (refer footnote no. (i)) 
88,97,120 (31st March, 2019: 88,97,120) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each of Aryaman Capital 

937.04 937.04 
Markets Ltd. 
35,00,000 (31st March, 2019: 35,00,000) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each of Escorp Asset 

410.00 410.00 
Management Ltd 

Total 1,347.04 1,347.04 
Footnotes: 

(i) The market value of Investment in Aryaman Capital Markets Ltd is Rs. 2936.05 Lacs as on 31.03.2020 and Rs. 2495.64 Lacs as 
on 31.03.2019. 

(ii) The Market value of Investments in Escorp Asset Management Ltd is Rs. 568.75 lac as on 31.03.2020 and Rs. 445.00 lacs as on 
31.03.2019. 

6. Other Financial assets: 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

i INR Lacs INRLacs I 
Interest accrued but not due on fixed dej20sits 0.23 2.32 
Securit~ dej20sits for j2fOj2erties 250.50 -

Other Advances & Deposits 6.65 -

Total 257.38 2.32 

7. Property, Plant and Equipment: 
Cost or deemed cost: 

I 
Freehold 

Furniture Office 
Motor 

Particulars land 
& Equip Computer 

Vehicle 
Total 

Fixtures ments 
INRLacs INRLacs INRLacs INR Lacs INR Lacs INRLacs 

Balance as at 1" April, 2018 83.43 0.47 0.77 14.15 62.80 161.62 
Additions - 3.40 0.26 2.50 8.94 15.10 
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DisEosals - - - - 16.87 16.87 
Balance as at 31" March, 2019 83.43 3.87 1.03 16.65 54.86 159.84 
Additions - - 1.05 0.45 - 1.51 
DisEosals - - - - - -

Balance as at 31" March, 2020 83.43 3.87 2.08 17.11 54.86 161.35 

Accumulated depreciation: 

Freehold Furniture 
Office 

Motor 
Particulars land & Fixtures 

Equip Computer 
Vehicle 

Total 
ments 

INR Lacs INRLacs INRLacs INRLacs INR Lacs INRLacs 
Balance as at 1" AEril, 2018 - 0.18 0.35 12.30 23.49 36.32 
Additions - 0.37 0.19 3.42 7.30 11.28 
DisEosals - - - - 12.67 12.67 
Balance as at 31" March, 2019 - 0.54 0.55 15.72 18.12 34.93 
Additions - 0.37 0.29 0.18 6.53 7.38 
DisEosals - - - - - -

Balance as at 31" March, 2020 - 0.91 0.84 15.90 24.65 42.30 

Net carrying value as at 
March 31, 2019 83.43 3.33 0.48 0.93 36.75 124.92 
Net carrying value as at 
March 31, 2020 83.43 2.96 1.24 1.20 30.22 119.05 

8. Other non-financial assets: 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

INRLacs i i INR Lacs 

Securit~ DeEosits For ProEerties - 250.50 

Other Advances & DeEosits - 3.06 

Prej2aid EXj2enses 6.66 4.36 

GST InEut - 30.13 

Total 6.66 288.05 

9. Trade Payables: 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

INRLacs INR Lacs 
Due to Micro and Small Ente!Erises - -

Due to others 11.78 190.31 
Total 11.78 190.31 

Note: There are no dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 
2006 which are outstanding for a period more than 45 days as on the balance sheet date. 

The above information regarding Micro and Small Enterprises has been determined on the basis of information available with the 
Company and has been relied upon by the auditors of the Company. 

10. Borrowings: 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

INRLacs INR Lacs 
In India-Secured 24.13 25.14 
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At Amortised cost 
Finance Lease obligation (Refer note (i) below) 

Total 24.13 25.14 

SecuritI and other details 

i. Loan from Financial Institutions represents Car Loan taken from Daimler Financial Services India Pvt. Ltd of Rs. 36.00 lacs for tenure 
of 5 years, repayable in montbly installments of Rs. 0.59 lacs. and a car loan taken from HDFC bank of Rs. 10,07,761 for a tenure of 
5 years, repayable in montbly installments of Rs. 20,968/-. The said loans are secured against hypotbecation of respective vehicles. 

11. Other financial liabilities : 

I 
As at As at 

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 
INRLacs ~ INR Lacs 

Salar~ Ea~able 8.00 12.72 
Managerial remuneration Ea~ables 1.94 1.93 
Audit fees Ea~able 1.08 1.20 
Other Ea~ables 1.79 3.12 
Current maturities of long term debt - 6.50 

Total 12.82 25.46 

12. Deferred Tax Liability: 

I 

As at As at I 
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

I INR Lacs INR Lacs I 
Deferred Tax Liabilities 
- on account of timing difference between WDV of PPE as per 

7.68 1.20 
ComEanies Act with tbat of under Income Tax Act 

Total 7.68 1.20 

13. Other non-financial liabilities: 

I I 
As at As at 

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 
INRLacs INR Lacs 

Revenue received in advance 29.43 45.93 
TDS Ea~able 2.27 11.60 
GSTPapble 1.42 -

Total 33.12 57.53 

14. Equity share capital: 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

INRLacs INR Lacs 
Authorised: 

1,170.00 1,170.00 
1,\7,00,000 (31.03.2018: 1,17,00,000) E9uit~ Shares of R 10 each 
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up : 

1,168.20 1,168.20 
1,16,82,000 (31.03.2018: 1,16,82,000) Equity Shares ofR 10 each 

Total 1,168.20 1,168.20 
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Notes: 
14.1 Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year: 

Authorised share capital: 
No. of shares Amount 

In Lacs INRLacs 
Balance as at March 31, 2019 117.00 1,170.00 
Add / (Less): Changes during the year 
Balance as at March 31, 2020 117.00 1,170.00 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up share capital: 
No. of shares Amount 

In Lacs INRLacs 
Balance as at March 31, 2019 116.82 1,168.20 
Add / (Less): Changes during the year 
Balance as at March 31, 2020 116.82 1,168.20 

14.2. Terms / rights attached to Equity Shares: 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/-. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per 
share. The Company declares and pays dividends if any, in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed, if any, by the Board of Directors is 
subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. 

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the 
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the 
Shareholders. 

14.3. Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5 % shares in the Company: 

Equity share of Rs. 10 each fully paid up with voting rights 

Mahshri Enterprises Private Limited 

As at March 31,2019 

As at March 3 1, 2020 

14.4. Shares held by Holding Company: 

Mahshri Enterprises Private Limited 

As at March 31,2019 

As at March 3 1, 2020 

15. Other Equity: 

Particulars 

Capital reserve 
General reserve 
Securities premium 
Retained earnings 

Total 

Number of 
fully paid 

equity shares 
In Lacs 

70.83 

70.83 

Number of 
fully paid equity 

shares 
In Lacs 

70.83 

70.83 

As at 
March 31, 2020 

INRLacs 
6.52 

260.75 
317.68 
509.04 

1093.99 

Holding 
(%) 

60.63% 

60.63% 

Holding 
(%) 

60.63% 

60.63% 

As at 
March 31, 2019 

INR Lacs 
6.52 

260.75 
317.68 
425.55 

1010.50 
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15.1 Capital reserve: 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

INRLacs INR Lacs 
Balance as at beginning of the ~ear 6.52 6.52 
Add/(Less): Movement during the ~ear - -

Balance as at end of the year 6.52 6.52 

15.2 Securities Premium: 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

INR Lacs INRLacs 
Balance as at beginning of the ~ear 317.68 317.68 
Add/(Less): Movement during the ~ear - -

Balance as at end of the year 317.68 317.68 

15.3 General reserve: 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

INRLacs j ~ INR Lacs 
Balance as at beginning of the ~ear 260.75 260.75 
Add/(Less): Movement during the year - -

Balance as at end of the l:ear 260.75 260.75 

15.4 Retained earnings: 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

INR Lacs INRLacs 
Balance as at beginning of the ~ear 425.54 260.44 
Profit for the year 83.50 165.10 
Balance as at end of the l:ear 509.04 425.54 

16. Other Income 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

~ INR Lacs INRLacs I 
Interest income on Fixed dej20sit 35.56 45.17 

Investment and Dividend Income - 0.01 
Miscellaneous income (IT Refund) 1.01 0.02 

Balances written back - 0.20 
Total 36.58 45.39 

17. Finance Costs: 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

INRLacs INRLacs i 
Interest Ex~enses on: 
Borrowings measured at amortised cost 2.73 2.65 
Other borrowing costs (includes fees charged by banks for renewal of sanctioned limits, 

0.52 0.58 
lead bank charges, etc) 
Total 3.25 3.22 
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18. Fee & Commission Expenses: 

I As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

INRLacs INR Lacs 
Commision & Brokerages 6.36 174.54 
Legal & Professional Charges 94.55 105.81 
Advertisement & Publicit~ Fees 45.45 67.56 
Fees to Stock Exchanges etc 6.10 22.83 
Other Fees Payable 2.40 -

Total 154.86 370.74 

19. Employee Benefit Expense: 

As at 
I 

As at 
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

I INR Lacs I INRLacs I 
Salaries, wages and bonus 118.74 156.24 
Director Remuneration 27.00 22.50 
Staff welfare eXEenses 2.01 4.10 

Total 147.76 182.84 

20. Depreciation and amortisation expense: 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

i INR Lacs INRLacs I 
DeEreciation of EroEert~, Elant and eguiEment 7.38 11.28 

Total 7.38 11.28 

21. Other Expenses: 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

INRLacs I i INR Lacs 
Rent Rates and Taxes 4.36 3.86 
TeleEhone EXEenses 1.59 1.84 
MembershiE fees and subscriEtion 3.00 3.00 
Electricit~ Charges 1.60 2.49 
Office Administration EXEenses 28.80 61.09 
Director Sitting fees 1.64 0.60 
Interest on dela~ed Ea~ment of statutor~ dues 2.12 1.39 
Penalty Eaid 0.31 -

Pa~ment to auditors:-
Audit fees 1.00 1.00 
For Taxation matters 0.20 0.20 
For Limited Review 0.18 0.13 

Total 44.80 75.61 

22. Income taxes: 

a) Tax expense recognised in the Statement of profit and loss: 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

INR Lacs INRLacs 
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Current tax 
Current year 30.10 63.16 

Total current tax 30.10 63.16 
Deferred tax 

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary difference 6.48 (6.38) 
Total deferred income tax expense/(credit) 6.48 (6.38) 
Shortl(Excess) provision for tax- Previous years 
Total income tax expense/(credit) 36.58 56.78 

Reconciliation between the statutory income tax rate applicable to the Company and the effective income tax rate of the Company is as 
follows: 

b) Reconciliation of effective tax rate: 

Particulars 

Profit /(loss) before taxation 
Enacted income tax rate in India 
Tax at the enacted income tax rate 
Reconciliation line items: 
Other items not taxable 
Tax expense/ (credit) 

As at 
March 31, 2020 

INRLacs 
120.08 

29.12% 
34.97 

( 1.62) 
36.59 

As at 
March 31, 2019 

INR Lacs 
221.88 

27.55% 
61.15 

4.35 
56.80 

c) The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019: 

Credit/ 
As at (charge) in As at 

Particulars March 31, 2018 Statement of March 31, 2019 
profit and loss 

INRLacs INRLacs INR Lacs 
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 
On Account of Depreciation 7.59 (6.38) 1.21 

TOTAL 7.59 (6.38) 1.21 

Credit/ 
As at (charge) in As at 

Particulars March 31, 2019 Statement of March 31, 2020 
profit and loss 

INRLacs INRLacs INR Lacs 
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 
On Account of Depreciation 1.21 6.48 7.69 

TOTAL 1.21 6.48 7.69 

23. Contingent liabilities & Commitments: 

The company does not have any contingent liabilities and Commitments (Including Capital Commitments as on March 31, 2020 (As at 
March 31, 2019 - Nil). 

24. Earnings Per share: 

Particulars 

Profit after tax available for equity shareholders 
Weighted average number of equity shares 
Nominal value of equity shares 
Basic and diluted Earning Per Share 

As at 
March 31, 2020 

83.50 
116.82 

10.00 
0.71 

As at 
March 31, 2019 

165.10 
116.82 

10.00 
1.41 
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25. Segment Reporting: 

The Company's Boatd of Directors has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) as defined under Ind AS 108 
"Operating Segments". The CODM evaluates the Company's performance and allocated the resources based on an analysis of vatious 
performance indicators. The Company is primatily engaged in the business of financial services. The same has been considered as business 
segment and the management considers these as a single reportable segment. Accordingly, disclosure of segment information has not been 
furnished. 

26. Related party disclosures: 
As per IND AS 24, the disclosures of transactions with the related patties ate given below: 
1. 

Category Name of the Related Party/ Relationship 

Holding Company Mahshri Enterprises Pvt Ltd 

Subsidiaty Company 
Aryaman Capital Matkets Ltd 

Escorp Asset Management Ltd 

Mr. Shripal Shah, Director & CFO 

Key Managerial Personnel Mr. Shreyas Shah, Director 

Entities in which KMP have significant influence 

Mr. Gunjan Katatuka, Company Secretaty (upto 08-01-2020) 
Ms. Chaitali Pansati, Company Secretaty(from 09-01-2020) 

Vatdhaman Investment (Proprietor - Mrs. Roopa Shah ) 

2. Transactions carried out with related parties referred in 1 above, in ordinary course of business: 

Name of the Related Party 

Mr. Shripal Shah - Salaty Paid 
Mr. Shreyas Shah - Salaty Paid 
Mr. Deepesh Jain 
Ms. Gunjan Katatuka 
Ms. Chaitali Pansati 

3. Balances outstanding: 

I Name of the Related Party 

Office Deposit - Vatdhaman Investment (Proprietor - Mrs. Roopa 
Shah) 
Salary Payable to: 
Mr. Shripal Shah 
Mr. Shreyas Shah 
Mr. Deepesh Jain 
Ms. Gunjan Katatuka 
Ms. Chaitali Pansati 

27. Financial instruments: 

Nature of As at 
Transaction 

Salaty 
Salaty 
Salaty 
Salaty 
Salaty 

As at 
March 31, 2020 

INRLacs 

250.00 

1.20 
0.75 

0.53 
0.43 

March 31, 2020 
INRLacs 

18.00 
9.00 

5.26 
1.31 

As at 
March 31, 2019 

INRLacs 

250.00 

1.19 
0.74 

0.53 

As at 
March 31, 2019 

INRLacs 
18.00 
9.00 
8.16 
8.80 

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities ate included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current 
transaction between willing patties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. 

I. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values: 

Fair value of cash and short-term deposits, trade and other short term receivables, trade payables, other current liabilities, short term 
loans from banks and other financial institutions approximate their catrying amounts latgely due to short term maturities of these 
instruments. 
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2. Financial instruments with fixed and vatiable interest rates ate evaluated by the Company based on patameters such as interest rates 
and individual credit worthiness of the counterpatty. Based on this evaluation, allowances ate taken to account for expected losses of 
these receivables. Accordingly, fair value of such instruments is not materially different from their catrying amounts. 

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation 
technique: 

• Levell: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active matkets for identical assets or liabilities. 
• Level 2: Other techniques for which all inputs which have a siguificant effect on the recorded fair value ate observable, 

either directly or indirectly 
• Level 3: Techniques which use inputs that have a siguificant effect on the recorded fair value that ate not based on 

observable matket data. 

The catrying amounts and fair values of financial instruments by category ate as follows: 

For March 31, 2020: 

Amortised cost Total fair value Carrying Amount 
Particulars 

INRLacs INR Lacs INR Lacs 

Financial assets 

Investments in subsidiaties 1,347.04 1,347.04 1,347.04 

Trade receivables 10.95 10.95 10.95 

Cash and cash equivalents 7.21 7.21 7.21 

Other bank balances 555.43 555.43 555.43 

Other financial assets 257.38 257.38 257.38 

Total Financial assets 2,178.02 2,178.02 2,178.02 

Financial liabilities 

Borrowings 24.13 24.13 24.13 

Trade payables 1l.78 1l.78 1l.78 

Others 12.82 12.82 12.82 

Total financial liabilities 48.73 48.73 48.73 

For March 31, 2019: 

Amortised cost Total fair value Carrying Amount 
Particulars 

INRLacs INR Lacs INRLacs 

Financial assets 

Investments in subsidiaties 1347.04 1347.04 1347.04 

Trade receivables 9.77 9.77 9.77 

Cash and cash equivalents 3.99 3.99 3.99 

Other bank balances 651.27 651.27 651.27 

Other financial assets 2.32 2.32 2.32 

Total Financial assets 2,014.38 2,014.38 2,014.38 

Financial liabilities 

Borrowings 25.14 25.14 25.14 

Trade payables 190.31 190.31 190.31 

Others 25.46 25.46 25.46 

Total financial liabilities 240.91 240.91 240.91 

There were no siguificant changes in classification and no siguificant movements between the fair value hieratchy classifications of 
financial assets and financial liabilities during the period. 
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28. Financial risk factors: 

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings. advances and trade and other payables. The purpose of these 
financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations and to provide to support its operations. The Company's principal financial 
assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. 

The Company's activities exposes it to Liquidity Risk, Market Risk and Credit risk. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for 
managing each of these risks, which are summarised as below. 

a) Liquidity risk: 

The risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash 
or another financial asset. Liquidity risk management implies maintenance sufficient cash including availability of funding through an 
adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet the obligations as and when due. 

The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring as far as possible that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its short term and long 
term liabilities as and when due. Anticipated future cash flows are expected to be sufficient to meet the liquidity requirements of the 
Company. The Company does not have any undrawn borrowing facilities with the BankslFinancial institutions. 

i. The following is the contractual maturities of the financial liabilities : 

As at March 31, 2020: 
Carrying Payable on 1-12 More than 

Particulars amount demand months 12 months 
INRLacs INR Lacs INRLacs INRLacs 

Borrowings 24.13 6.92 17.21 
Trade Ea~ables 11.78 11.78 
Other financial liabilities 12.82 12.82 

Total 48.73 31.52 17.21 

As at March 31, 2019: 
Carrying Payable on 1-12 More than 

Particulars amount demand months 12 months 
INRLacs INR Lacs INRLacs INRLacs 

Borrowings 25.14 5.11 20.03 
Trade Ea~ables 190.31 190.31 
Other financial liabilities 25.46 25.46 

Total 240.91 220.87 20.03 

b) Market risk: 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. 
Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. 
Financial instruments affected by market risk include investment, deposits, foreign currency receivables and payables. The Company's 
treasury team manages the Market risk, which evaluates and exercises independent control over the entire process of market risk 
management. 

i. Foreign currency risk: 

Foreign currency risk can only arise on financial instruments that are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency in which 
they are measured. The Company's functional and presentation currency is INR. The Company does not have any foreign currency 
transactions and hence is not exposed to the Foreign Currency Risks. 

ii. Interest rate risk: 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate because 0 f changes in market 
interest rates. The Company's does not have any long term borrowings. Hence, the Company is not exposed to the interest rate risk. 
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c) Credit risk: 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counter-party fails to meet its contractual obligations. The Company 
is exposed to credit risks from its operating activities, primarily trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks and other 
financial instruments. Credit risk is managed by the Company through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously 
monitoring the credit worthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. Company's 
major sales are to its holding company, United Spirits Limited (USL). USL has extended trade advance to support the operations of the 
Company. Hence, the credit exposure is assessed to be negligible. 

Exposure to the Credit risks: 

Particulars 

Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using 12 
months Expected Credit Losses (ECL) 

Exposure to the Credit risks: 

Particulars 

Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using 12 
months Expected Credit Losses (ECL) 

-Trade Receivables 

Trade and other receivables: 

As at 
March 31, 2020 

268.33 

As at 
March 31, 2020 

10.95 

As at 
March 31, 2019 

12.10 

As at 
March 31, 2019 

9.77 

The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recoguition of assets and whether there has been a siguificant increase in 
credit risks on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. 

To assess whether there is a siguificant change increase in credit risk the Company compares the risks of default occurring on the assets as 
at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recoguition. It considers the reasonable and supportive forward looking 
information such as: 

i. Actual or expected siguificant adverse changes in business. 
ii. Actual or expected siguificant changes in the operating results of the counterparty 

iii. Financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the counterparty's ability to meet its 
obligations 

iv. Siguificant increase in credit risk on other financial instruments of same counterparty 

Ageing of the accounts receivables: 

Particulars 

< six months 

> six months 

As at 
March 31, 2020 

INR Lacs 

8.78 

2.17 

10.95 

As at 
March 31, 2019 

INRLacs 

7.19 

9.77 

Movement in provisions of doubtful debts and advances - There were no Provision of doubtful debts as on March 31, 2020 and March 31, 
2019. 

29. a) Financial risk factors 
Capital risk management: 

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to 

(i) safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits 
for other stakeholders, and 

(ii) maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital 
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In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may issue new shares, adjust the aruount of dividends paid to shareholders 
etc. The Company's policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investor, 
creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its business. The Company will take appropriate steps in 
order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure. 

30. The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic is causing siguificant disturbance and slowdown of economic aclivJlies globally. The 
nationwide lockdown ordered by the Government of India has resulted in significant reduction in economic activities and also the 
business operations of the Company in terms of sales and production. The management has considered the possible effects that may 
result from the pandemic on the recoverability / carrying value of the assets. Based on the current indicators of future economic 
conditions, the management expects to recover the carrying amount of the assets, however the management will continue to closely 
monitor any material changes to future economic conditions. Given the uncertainties, the final impact on Company's assets in future 
may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial results. 

31. There are no litigations pending by or against the Company. 

32. Recent accounting prouncements: 
Ind AS 116 - Leases: 

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate affairs have notified Ind AS 116 - "Leases", Ind AS 116 will replace the existing leases 
standards Ind AS 17 - "Leases" and related interpretations, The new standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, 
presentation and disclosures of lease for both lease and lessor. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lease accounting model and requires a 
leas see to recognise the assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying assets are of low 
value. Ind AS 116 substantially carried forward the accounting treatment prescribed for lessor. The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 
116 is annual period beginning on or after April 0 I, 2019. The Company is evaluating the impact of the issued Ind AS 116 on its financial 
statements. 

Ind AS 12 -"Income taxes" - Appendix C - Uncertainty over income tax treatments: 

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate affairs have notified Appendix C to Ind AS 12, uncertainty over the income tax treatments 
which is to be applied while performing the determination of taxable profits/(loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax 
rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. According to the appendix, the company needs to determine 
the probability of the relevant tax authorities accepting the each tax treatments that the companies have used or plan to use in their income 
tax filings which has to be considered to compute the most likely amount or expected value of the tax treatments, when determining the 
taxable profits/(loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates. The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 116 is annual 
period beginning on or after April 01, 2019. The Company is evaluating the impact of the issued appendix C on its financial statements. 

33. The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on July 31, 2020. 

34. The figures of the previous year's have been regrouped or reclassified wherever necessary to make them comparable. 

35. Figures have been rounded off to the nearest lacs of rupees. 

The accompanying notes (Note No.1 to 32) are integral part of the financial statements 
In terms of our attached report of even date 

FOR V.N. PUROHIT & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No. 304040E 

For and on behalf of the Aryaman Financial Services Limited 

Sd/­
O.P.Pareek 
Partner 
Membership No. 014238 
UDIN: 20014238AAAADV9553 

Date: 31 st July, 2020 
Place: Mumbai 

Sd/-
Shripal Shah 
(Executive Director) 
DIN: 01628855 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: July 31, 2020 

Sd/-
Shreyas Shah 
(Executive Director) 
DIN: 01835575 

Sd/-
Chaitali Pansari 
(Company Secretary) 
PAN: BKHPP6512N 
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Independent Auditor's Report 

To 
The members of 
ARYAMAN FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of ARYAMAN FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED 
("hereinafter referred to as the Holding Company") and its subsidiary Companies (Holding and subsidiary together referred 
to as "the Group"), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31" March 2020, the consolidated statement of profit 
and loss, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, 
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the consolidated financial statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements 
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view 
in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India of the consolidated state of affairs of the Company 
as at 31" March, 2020, and the consolidated net profit (including other comprehensive income), consolidated changes in 
equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the 
Companies act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance 
with the Code of Ethics issued by ICAI, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters. We have determined the matters described hereunder to be key audit matters to be communicated in our 
report. 

Key audit matters Auditor's response 

Measurement of Revenue Our audit procedure inter- alia included the following-

As per Ind AS 115. measurement of revenue to be • We used assessment of overall control environment 
made on transaction price. relevant for measurement of revenue. 

• We performed testing of journal entries. with particular 
focus on manual adjustment to revenue account. to 
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mitigate the risk of manipulation of revenue and profit 
figures. 

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon 

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information comprises 
the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexure to Board's Report, Business 
Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's Information, but does not include the consolidated financial statements 
and the auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statement does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained 
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to 
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements in 
term of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated 
financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in 
the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the 
assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the 
Holding Company, as aforesaid. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are 
responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operation s, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of 
the Group. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level 
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with the SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. We also: 

(vi) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
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resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. 

(vii) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on 
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

(viii) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management. 

(ix) Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of 
the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. 

(x) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statement, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic 
decision of reasonable knowledgeable user of the financial statement may be influenced. 

We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) Planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our 
work; and, (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included in the consolidated 
financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the 
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Other Matters 

(a) We draw your attention to Note 32 of the consolidated financial statement which explains the uncertainties and management's 
assessment of the financial impact due to the lockdownl restrictions related to COVID-19 pandemic imposed by the Government for 
which definitive assessment of the impact is dependent upon the future economic conditions. Our opinion is not modified in respect of 
this matter. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary 
for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, and 
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the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report ate in agreement with the relevant books of account 
maintained for the purpose of prepatation of the consolidated financial statements. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the accounting standatds specified under Section 133 
of the Act; 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Group Companies as on 31st Match, 2020 taken on 
record by the respective Boatd of Directors of the Companies included in the Group, none of the directors of the Group 
companies is disqualified as on 31st Match, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(I) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Group and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our sepatate Report in Annexure A. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the 
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting. 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule II of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The consolidated financial statements have disclosed the impact, if any of pending litigations on the consolidated financial 
position of the Group in its consolidated financial statements (Refer to note no. 33 of the consolidated financial 
statements). 

ii. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material 
foreseeable losses. 

iii. There were no atllounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Group. 

FOR V. N. PUROHIT & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No. 304040E 

Sd/­
O.P.Pareek 
Pattner 
Membership No. 014238 
UDIN: - 20014238AAAADX7753 

New Delhi, the 31" day of July 2020 
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ANNEXURE-A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub- section (3) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the 
Act") 

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statement of the Company as of and for the yeat ended 31 & Match 2020, we 
have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ARY AMAN FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED (hereinafter 
referred to as "the Holding Company") along with its subsidiaty Companies (the Holding Company and its subsidiaties together referred to 
as "the Group") as on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for the Internal Financial Controls 

The respective Boatd of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiaty Companies ate responsible for establishing and maintaining 

internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by these entities con sidering the 

essential components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting 

issued by the Institute of Chattered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of fraud and errors, the 

accuracy and completeness of accounting records, and the timel y prepatation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Group based on our audit. We 

conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the Guidance 

Note) and the Standatds on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 to 

the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by 

the ICAL Those Standatds and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and 

if such controls operated effectively in all material aspects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial control system over 

financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an 

understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 

evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal 

financial controls system over financial reporting of the Group. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regatding the 

reliability of financial reporting and the prepatation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that: -

(4) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of 
the assets of the Company; 
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(5) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and the receipt and expenditures of the Company are being only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and 

(6) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the 
Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and could not be detected. Also, projections of 
any evaluation of the internal financial control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting may became inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of information and according to explanation given to us, the Group have maintained in all material aspects, an 
adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at 31" March 2020, based on "the internal financial controls over financial reporting criteria considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India", 

FOR V. N. PUROHIT & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No. 304040E 

Sd/­
O.P.Pareek 
Partner 
Membership No. 014238 
UDIN: - 20014238AAAADX7753 

New Delhi, the 31" day of July 2020 



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 
As at March 31, 2020 

Particulars 

ASSETS 
Financial Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Bank balances other than above 
Securities for Trade (Inventories) 
Receivables 

Trade receivables 
Investments 

Other financial assets 

Non-Financial Assets 
Current tax assets(net) 
Property, Plant and equipment 
Other Intangible Assets 
Other non financial Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITmS AND EQUITY 
Financial Liabilities 
Payables 
(I) Trade Payables 

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 

(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 
and small enterprises 

Borrowings 
Other Financial liabilities 

Non-financial Liabilities 
Current Tax Liabilities (net) 
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 
Other non-financial liabilities 

Total Equity 
Equity 

Equity Share Capital 
Other equity 

Equity attributable to owners of the company 
Non-controlling interest 
Total equity 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITmS 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
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As at As at 
Note March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

INRLacs INR Lacs 

2 37.13 102.72 
3 1,140.67 1,236.52 
4 3,656.21 3,079.20 

5 27.21 28.62 
6 2,084.93 2,784.76 
7 391.99 60.79 

8 87.62 79.16 
9A 237.02 230.68 
9B 1.46 2.86 
10 11.61 304.19 

7,675.85 7,909.49 

II 

2.76 191.49 

12 3,304.31 3,205.80 
13 14.97 27.36 

14 72.13 55.84 
15 66.32 97.86 

3,460.49 3,578.35 

16 1,168.20 1,168.20 
17 1,831.99 1,894.77 

3,000.19 3,062.97 
1,215.17 1,268.17 
4,215.37 4,331.14 
7,675.85 7,909.49 

1-39 
The accompanying notes are integral part of the consolidated financial statements 

FOR V.N. PUROHIT & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No. 304040E 

Sd/­
O.P.Pareek 
Partner 
Membership No. 014238 
UDIN: - 20014238AAAADX7753 

Date: 31" July, 2020 
Place: Mumbai 

For and on behalf of the Aryaman Financial Services Limited 

Sd/-
Shripal Shah 
(Executive Director) 
DIN: 01628855 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: July 31,2020 

Sd/-
Shreyas Shah 
(Executive Director) 
DIN: 01835575 

Sd/-
Chaitali Pansari 
(Company Secretary) 
PAN: BKHPP6512N 



__ H[YLGmHU CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT 
AND LOSS 
For the year ended March 31, 2020 26th ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20 

Particulars 

I. Revenue From Operations 
- Fees & Commission Income 
-Sale of stock in trade 
-Investment & Dividend Income 

Total Revenue from operations 
II. Other Income 

III. Total Income (1+11) 
IV. EXPENSES 

Finance costs 
Fees & Commission expenses 
Purchase of Stock-in-trade 
Changes in Inventories (Stock-in Trade) 
Employee benefits expense 
Depreciation and amortization expense 
Other expenses 
Total expenses (IV) 

V. Profit before tax (III-IV) 
VI. Tax expense: 

(I) Current tax 
(2) Deferred tax 
Total Tax Expenses 

VII. Profit for the year (V-VI) 
VIII. Other Comprehensive Income 

IX. Total comprehensive income for the year (VII+IX) 
Total Profit/CLoss) for the year attributable to: 
- Owners of the Company 
- Non - Controlling Company 
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year attributable to: 
- Owners of the Company 
- Non - Controlling Company 
Total Comprehensive income/(loss) for the year attributable to: 
- Owners of the Company 
- Non - Controlling Company 

X. Earnings per equity share: 
Basic & Diluted (Face value RIO per equity share) 

Note 

18A 
18B 

19 
20 

21 
22 
23 

24 

The accompanying notes (Note No.1 to 39) are integral part of the financial statements 
In terms of our attached report of even date 

For the year For the year 
ended March ended March 

31,2020 31,2019 
INR Lacs INRLacs 

547.44 953.15 
8,315.76 7,620.20 

6.91 23.58 
8,870.10 8,596.93 

76.07 79.60 
8,946.16 8,676.53 

281.14 244.30 
155.93 378.20 

8,687.88 9,444.95 
(577.01) (1,970.02) 

165.92 200.00 
14.04 20.73 
87.25 115.53 

8,815.15 8,433.69 
131.02 242.83 

30.51 68.24 
7.22 (4.68) 

37.73 63.56 
93.29 179.28 

(209.07) (22.98) 
(115.78) 156.30 

90.71 177.29 
2.59 1.98 

(153.48) (31.49) 
(55.59) 8.51 

(62.78) 145.79 
(53.00) 10.49 

0.80 1.53 

FOR V.N. PUROHIT & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No. 304040E 

For and on behalf of the Aryaman Financial Services Limited 

Sd!­
O.P.Pareek 
Partner 
Membership No. 014238 
UDIN: - 20014238AAAADX7753 

Date: 31st July, 2020 
Place: Mumbai 

Sd!-
Shripal Shah 
(Executive Director) 
DIN: 01628855 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: July 31,2020 

Sd!-
Shreyas Shah 
(Executive Director) 
DIN: 01835575 

Sd!-
Chaitali Pansari 
(Company Secretary) 
PAN: BKHPP6512N 
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For the year ended March 31, 2020 

a) Equity Share Capital: 

I Particulars I I Amount I 
I INR Lacs I 

Balance as at 31st March, 2018 1,168.20 
Changes in eguity shate caEital during the yeat -

Balance as at 31st March, 2019 1,168.20 
Changes in eguity shate caEital during the yeat -

Balance as at 31st March, 2020 1,168.20 

b) Other Equity: 
Other 

comprehe 
Reserves and Surplus nsive 

Equity 
Equity 

income attribut Total 
(OCI) attribut 

able to Other 
able to 

Particulars Capit Securi Gene Retain FVOCI- non Equity 
al ties ral ed Equity 

owners 
contollin 

of the 
Reser Premi Reser Earnin Instrumen 

parent 
g 

ve urn ve gs t interest 
INR INR INR INR 

INRLacs 
INR 

Lacs Lacs Lacs Lacs Lacs 

As at 1" April, 2018 6.52 317.68 
260.7 

451.90 712.12 
1,748.98 1,257.69 3,006. 

5 67 
Profit for the yeat 2018-19 - - - 177.29 - 177.29 1.98 179.27 
Other comprehensive income (31.49) (31.49) 8.50 (23.00) 
for the yeat 

- - - -

As at 31" March, 2019 6.52 317.67 
260.7 

629.19 680.63 1,894.77 1,268.17 
3,162. 

5 93 

As at 1" April, 2019 6.52 317.67 
260.7 

629.19 680.63 
1,894.77 1,268.17 3,162. 

5 93 
Profit for the yeat 2019-20 - - - 90.71 - 90.71 2.59 93.29 
Other comprehensive income 

- - - - (153.48) (153.48) (55.59) 
(209.0 

for the yeat 7) 

As at 31" March, 2020 6.52 317.67 
260.7 

719.89 527.15 
1,831.99 1,215.17 3,047. 

5 15) 
The accompanying notes are integral part of the consolidated financial statements 
In terms of our report attached 

FOR V.N. PUROHIT & CO. For and on behalf of the Aryaman Financial Services Limited 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No. 304040E 

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

O.P.Pareek Shripal Shah Shreyas Shah Sd/-

Pattner (Executive Director) (Executive Chaitali Pansari 

Membership No. 014238 DIN: 01628855 Director) (Company Secretaty) 

UDIN: - 20014238AAAADX7753 Place: Mumbai DIN: 01835575 PAN- BKHPP6512N 
Date: July 31, 2020 

Date: 31st July, 2020 
Place: Mumbai 



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 
FLOWS 
For the year ended March 31, 2020 

Particulars 

A. Cash flow from operating activities 
Profit for the year before tax 
Adjustments for: 

Finance costs 
Depreciation and amortization expense 
Interest income 

Operating profit before working capital changes 
Movements in working capital: 

(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables 
(Increase)/decrease in other assets 
Increase /(decrease) in trade payables 
Increase /(decrease) in other liabilities 

Cash generated from operations 
Direct taxes paid (net) 
Net cash from operating activities (A) 

B. Cash flows from investing activities 
Purchase/Sale of property, plant and equipment (PPE) 
Purchase of Investments (net) 
Interest Income 

Net cash (used in) investing activities (B) 
C. Cash flow from financing activities 

Interest paid 
Proceeds from Short term Borrowings (net) 

Net cash (used in) financing activities (C) 
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
[(A) + (B) + (C)] 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE 
YEAR 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 

Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents 
Cash on hand 
Balance with Bank in Current & Fixed Deposit Accounts 
Balance with Bank in Current & Fixed Deposit Accounts 

In terms of our report attached 

__ HBcYLGffi.HU 
26th ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20 

For the year ended I For the year ended 
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 
INRLacs i INR Lacs 

131.01 242.83 

281.14 244.30 
14.04 20.73 

(76.07) (84.54) 
350.12 423.33 

1.41 (7.48) 
(615.63) (1,839.35) 
(189.20) (147.56) 
(43.47) (49.82) 

(496.76) (1,620.88) 
(38.96) (105.29) 

{535.72) (1,726.17) 

(18.97) (84.46) 
499.82 760.15 

76.07 84.54 
556.91 760.23 

(281.14) (244.30) 
98.51 1,418.10 

(182.63) 1,173.80 

{161.44) 207.85 

1,339.24 1,131.39 
1,177.80 1,339.24 

37.13 102.72 
1,140.67 1,236.52 
1,177.80 1,339.24 

FOR V.N. PUROHIT & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 

For and on behalf of the Aryaman Financial Services Limited 

Firm Regn. No. 304040E 

Sd!­
O.P.Pareek 
Partner 
Membership No. 014238 
UDIN: - 20014238AAAADX7753 

Date: 31" July, 2020 
Place: Mumbai 

Sd!-
Shripal Shah 
(Executive Director) 
DIN: 01628855 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: July 31,2020 

Sd!-
Shreyas Shah 
(Executive Director) 
DIN: 01835575 

Sd!-
Chaitali Pansari 
(Company Secretary) 
PAN- BKHPP6512N 
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To Financial Statements 

1. Note 1: 

A. CORPORATE INFORMATION: 

The consolidated financial statements comprises financial statements of Aryaman Financial Services limited (Parent Company) and 
its 2 subsidiaries (hereinafter to be referredd as the Group) for the year ended March 31.2020. 

Aryaman Financial Services Limited is a public limited Group domiciled in India with its registered office located at 102, Ganga 
Charubers, 6A11, W.E.A., Karol Bagh, New Delhi-I 10005. The Group is listed on BSE Limited (BSE). The group is is enagaged in 
the business of Financial services viz. Merchant Banking, Investments (Strategic & Non Strategic)" 

B. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: 

1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements: 

These Consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter 
referred to as the 'Ind AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the 
Act') read with the Companies (Indian Accounting standards) Rules as amended from time to time and other related provisions of 
the Act. 

The financial statements of the Group are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and Historical cost convention except for the 
following material items that have been measured at fair value as required by the relevant Ind AS: 

(i) Certain financial assets and liabilities are measured at Fair value (Refer note no. 7) 

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements. All assets and liabilities have 
been classified as current or noncurrent as per the Group's normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

The Consolidated financial statements are presented in INR, the functional currency of the Company. Rounding of amounts All 
amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest Lacs as per the requirement of 
Schedule III, unless otherwise stated. 

Basis of Consolidatation: 

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Group and its subsidiaries as at March 31, 
2020. 

Subsidiaries: 

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to 
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. 

Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has 
a. Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee) 
b. Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee 
c. The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns 

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group losses control of 
the subsidiary. 

Consolidatation Procedure: 

Subsidiaries: 
a. Combine, on line by line basis like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the Parent with those of 

its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the aruounts of the assets and liabilities 
recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date. 
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b. Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the Parent's investment in each subsidiary and the Parent's portion of equity of each 
subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to account for any related goodwill. 

c. Eliminate in full intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and Cash flows relating to transactions 
betweenentities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intra-group transactions that are recognised in assets, such as 
inventory and property, plant and equipment (PPE), are eliminated in full). Intra-group losses may indicate an impairment that 
requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise 
from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intra-group transactions." 

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Parent Group and to the non­
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Parent Group and to the non­
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. 

Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar 
circumstances. If a member of the Group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements 
for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that Group 
member's financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the Group's accounting 
policies 

Changes in the Group's ownership interest in existing subsidiaries: 
Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are 
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to 
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non -controlling 
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to 
owners of the group. 

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss and is 
calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained 
interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any no 
controlling interests. 

2. Use of Estimates and judgments: 

The preparation of the financial statements requires the Management to make, judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. The recognition, measurement, classification or disclos ure of 
an item or information in the financial statements is made relying on these estimates. The estimates and judgments used in the 
preparation of the financial statements are continuously evaluated by the management and are based on historical experience and 
various other assumptions and factors (including expectations of future events) that the management believes to be reasonable under 
the existing circumstances. Actual results may differ from those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised 
prospectively in current and future periods. 

Critical accounting judgments and key source of estimation uncertainty: 
The Group is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not 
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors 
that are considered to be relevant. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. 

(a) Estimation of current tax expenses and payable - Refer note no. - 14 

3. Property, plant and equipment (PPE): 

Property, plant and equipment is stated at acquisition cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if 
any. 

The cost of an item of property, land and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable 
purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working 
condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the item and restoring the site 
on which it is located. 
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Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 

4. Intangible assets: 

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

5. Depreciation and Amortization: 

a) Property Plant and Equipment (PPE): 
Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the straight line method based on estimated useful life prescribed under Schedule II 
to the Companies Act, 2013. Freehold Land is not being depreciated. 

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment is reviewed at each financial year end 
and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. " 

Estimated useful life is as below: 
Computer - 3 Years 
Furniture and fixtures - 10 years 
Office equipments - 5 years 
Motor Vehicles - 8 years 
Leasehold premises - 30 years 

b) Intangible Assets: 
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Finite-life intangible assets are amortised on a straight­
line basis over the period of their expected useful lives. 
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for finite life intangible assets is reviewed at each financial year end and 
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. For indefinite life intangible assets, the assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to 
determine whether it continues, if not, it is impaired or changed prospectively basis revised estimates. U sefullife of intangible Asset 
is 10 years. 

6. Financial Instruments: 

Financial Assets: 
Financial assets are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. On initial 
recognition, a financial asset is recognised at fair value, in case of Financial assets which are recognised at fair value through profit 
and loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. In other cases, the transaction cost are 
attributed to the acquisition value of the financial asset. 

Subsequent measurement: 
Financial assets are subsequently classified as measured at: 
- amortised cost 
- fair value through profit & loss (FVTPL) 
- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 
The above classification is being determined considering the: (a) the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and 
(b) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. 

(i) Measured at amortised cost: 
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost, if these financial assets are held within a business module whose 
objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on 
specified date to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 
(ii) Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): 
Financial assets are measured at FVTOCI, if these financial assets are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by 
both collecting contractual cash flows that give rise on specified dates to solely payments of principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding and by selling financial assets. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). 
Interest income measured using the EIR method and impairment losses, if any are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(iii) Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): 
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Financial assets other than equity instrument are measured at FVTPL unless it is measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI on initial 
recognition. Such financial assets are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend 
income if any, recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Equity Instruments: 
On initial recognition, the Group can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-byinstrument basis) to present the subsequent 
changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity instruments. This election is not permitted 
if the equity investment is held for trading. These elected investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. 
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other 
comprehensive income and accumulated in the 'Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive income'. 

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss when the Group's right to 
receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the 
dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably. 
Dividends recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss are included in the 'Other income' line item. 

Impairment: 
The Group recognises a loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECL) on financial assets that are measured at amortised cost and 
at FVOCL The credit loss is difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract 
and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate. This 
is assessed on an individual or collective basis after considering all reasonable and supportable including that which is forward 
looking. 

The Group's trade receivables or contract revenue receivables do not contain significant financing component and loss allowance on 
trade receivables is measured at an amount equal to life ime expected losses i.e. expected cash shortfall, being simplified approach 
for recognition of impairment loss allowance. 

Under simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk. Rather it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on 
the lifetime ECL at each reporting date right from its initial recognition. The Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment 
loss allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rate s over the 
expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed 
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed. For financial assets other than trade 
receivables, the Group recognises l2-months expected credit losses for all originated or acquired financial assets if at the reporting 
date the credit risk of the financial asset has not increased significantly since its initial recognition. The expected credit losses are 
measured as lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on financial asset increases significantly since its initial recognition. If, 
in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer significant increase in credit risks since 
initial recognition, then the Group reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based 
on 12 months ECL. The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. For equity instruments and 
financial assets measured at FVTPL, there is no requirement of impairment testing. 

De-recognition: 
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers 
rights to receive cash flows from an asset, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When 
it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the 
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement. 

In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a 
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained. 
Financial Liabilities: 

Initial Recognition and measurement: 
Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial 
liabilities are initially recognised at fair value net of transaction costs for all financial liabilities not carried at fair value through 
profit or loss. 

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts. 

Subsequent measurement: 
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost are subsequently measured at using EIR method. Financial liabilities carried at fair 
value through profit or losses are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
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Loans & Borrowings: 
After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using EIR method. 
Gains and losses are recognized in profit & loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through EIR amortization process. 

Financial Guarantee Contracts: 
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that requires a payment to be made or to reimburse the 
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtors fails to make payment when due in accordance with the term of a debt 
instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognized initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. 

De-recognition: 
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing 
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are 
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition 
of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

Derivative financial instruments: 
The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward foreign exchange contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risks. 
Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into 
and are subsequently remeasured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Offsetting of financial instruments: 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently 
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and 
settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

7. Fair Value Measurement: 

The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives, investments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the 
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 
liability takes place either: 

a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value 
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

(i) Levell-Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
(ii) Level 2-Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or 

indirectly observable 
(iii) Level3-Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers 
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the 
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, 
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 

8. Inventory/Securities for trade: 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is computed on a weighted average basis. 

9. Cash and Cash Equivalents: 
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Cash and Cash equivalents include cash and Cheque in hand, bank balances, demand deposits with banks and other short-term 
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to kuown amounts of cash & which are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in value where original maturity is three months or less. 

10. Foreign Currency Transactions: 

a) Initial Recognition: 
Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. Exchange differences 
arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year. 

b) Measurement of Foreign Currency Items at the Balance Sheet Date: 
Foreign currency monetary items of the Group are restated at the closing exchange rates. Non monetary items are recorded at the 
exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising out of these transactions are charged to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

11. Revenue Recognition: 

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company & revenue is 
reliably measured. 

(i) Interest Income: The Company recognises interest income using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) on all financial assets 
subsequently measured at amortised cost. EIR is calculated by considering all costs and incomes attributable to acquisition of a 
financial asset or assumption of a financial liability and it represents a rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash 
payments/receipts through the expected life of the financial asset/financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset 
or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. 

(ii) Dividend: Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders' right to receive payment has been 
established which is generally when the shareholders approve the dividend. 

(iii) Other revenue from operations: The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers (other than financial assets 
to which Ind AS 109 'Financial Instruments' is applicable) based on a comprehensive assessment model as set out in Ind AS 115 
'Revenue from contracts with customers'. The Company identifies contract(s) with a customer and its performance obligations 
under the contract, determines the transaction price and its allocation to the performance obligations in the contract and recognises 
revenue only on satisfactory completion of performance obligations. Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received 
or receivable. 

12. Rendering of Services: 

Income from services rendered is recognised based on invoices raised for service provided on an accrual basis. 

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, after deduction of any discounts, any taxes or duties 
collected on behalf of the government which are levied on sales such as Goods & Services taxe (GST). 

13. Employee Benefits: 

Employee Benefits: - The Group does not falls within the applicability of Employee Benefit plans. 

14. Income Taxes: 

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit and loss except to the 
extent it relates to items directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income. 

Current tax is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit is different from accounting profit due to temporary differences 
between accounting and tax treatments, and due to items that are never taxable or tax deductible. Tax provisions are included in 
current liabilities. Interest and penalties on tax liabilities are provided for in the tax charge. The Group offsets, the current tax assets 
and liabilities (on a year on year basis) where it has a legally enforceable right and where it intends to settle such assets and 
liabilities on a net basis or to realise the assets and liabilities on net basis. 
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Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recoguized for 
deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in 
financial statements. Deferred income tax asset are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available 
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be 
utilized. Deferred tax assets are not recognised where it is more likely than not that the assets will not be realised in the future. 

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized. Deferred 
income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized or the 
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax items are recoguised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 

Minimum Alternative Tax ('MAT') credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the 
Group will pay normal income-tax during the specified period. The Group reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes 
down the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Group 
will pay normal income-tax during the specified period. 

15. Borrowing Cost: 

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets 
are capitalized as a part of Cost of that assets, during the period till all the activities necessary to prepare the Qualifying assets for its 
intended use or sale are complete during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the assets for its intended use or 
sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. 

Other borrowing costs are recoguized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

16. Earnings Per Share: 

Basic earnings per shares are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss after tax for the period attributable to equity shareholders 
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per 
share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares 
outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

17. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets: 

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated 
reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. 

Provisions for onerous contracts are recoguized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Group from a contract are lower 
than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract. 

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may probably not 
require an outflow of resources or an obligation for which the future outcome cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty. When 
there is a possible or a present obligation where the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. 
Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in financial statements. 

2. Cash & cash equivalents: 

Particulars I As at I 
March 31, 2020 

I INRLacs I 
Balances with banks 
i) in current accounts 32.05 
Cash on Hand 5.08 

Total 37.13 

3. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents: 

IL-______________________ ~P~a~r~ti~cu~l~ars~ ________________________ ~j .L-____ ~A~s~a~t~1 

As at 
March 31, 2019 

INRLacs 

98.14 
4.57 

102.72 

As at . 
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I I ' March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 j 
~ INR Lacs I I INRLacs ~ 

Balances with banks - Fixed deEosits 1,140.67 1236.52 
Total 1,140.67 1236.52 

4. Inventories: 

I I 
As at As at 

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

INRLacs I I INRLacs 

Stock in trade of shares and securities (Quoted) (In India 3,656.21 3,079.20 

Total 3,656.21 3,079.20 

5. Trade receivables: 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

INR Lacs INRLacs 
Unsecured, considered good 27.21 28.62 

Total 27.21 28.62 
Footnotes: 
i) No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person. 

6. Investments: 

I 
As at As at 

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 
INRLacs INRLacs 

Investments measured at Fair Value through Other ComErehensive Income 
Quoted, Full;!: Ilaid ull : 
1,715 ( 31st March 2019: 21,663) Eguity Shares of Rs 10 each of AGI Infra Ltd 0.98 13.58 
2,36,100 (31st March 2019: 3,98,800) Eguity shares of Rs.1O each of Bajaj Health Care Ltd. 485.54 1,694.90 
Nil (31st March 2019: 52,800) Eguity shares of Rs.1O each of Mitsu Chem Plast Ltd. - 90.29 
Nil (31st March 2019: 3,000) Eguity shares of Rs.1O each of CKP Product Ltd. - 0.91 
1,92,000 (31 st March 2019: 1,92,000) Equity shares of Rs.1O each of SRG Securities Finance 

76.61 80.54 
Ltd. 
Nil (31st March 2019: 46,56,000) Eguity shares ofRs.IO each of Landmarc - 15.83 
4,99,500 (31 st March 2019: 7,20,000) Equity shares of Rs.1O each of Diksat Transworld Ltd. 624.38 793.44 
1,78,000 (31st March 2019: 23,000) Eguity shares ofRs. 10 each of SKS TEXTILES 62.48 8.27 
20,250 (31st March 2019: 20,000) Eguity shares of Rs.1O each ofSUYOG TELEMATICS 67.69 51.00 
3,95,525 (31st March 2019: 84,000) Equity shares of Rs.1O each of Maxim us International 

278.65 24.02 
Ltd. 
Nil (31st March 2019: 18,000) Eguity shares of Rs.1O each of Silly Monks Entertainment Ltd - 11.97 
2,37,600 (Bonus) (31st March 2019: Nil) Equity shares of Rs.lOeach of Bajaj Health Care 

488.62 -
Ltd.) 
Aggregate amount of investments 2,084.93 2,784.76 
Market Value of Quoted Investments 2,084.93 2,784.76 
Aggregate Value of Quoted Investments (at cost) 1,122.64 1,622.46 

7. Other financial assets: 

As at As at 

Particulars 
March 31, March 31, 
2020 2019 
INRLacs INR Lacs 

Unsecured, Considered good 
Security DeEosit 301.76 54.50 
Other Recoverables 80.00 -
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Other Advances & DeEosits 6.65 -
Interest accrued but not due on fixed deEosits 3.58 6.29 

Total 391.99 60.79 

8. Current tax assets(net): 

As at I I As at 
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

INR Lacs I I INRLacs 
Current Tax Assets (Net) 87.62 79.16 

Total 87.62 79.16 

9. A. Property, plant and equipment: 

Gross Carrying Amount: 

Freehold Leasehold 
Furniture 

Office Motor 
Particulars land Premises 

& 
Equipment 

Computer 
Vehicle 

Total 
Fixtures 

INR Lacs INRLacs INRLacs INRLacs INRLacs INRLacs INR Lacs 
Balance as at 

83.43 43.63 0.65 1.68 19.18 62.72 211.28 1" April, 2018 
Additions - 58.71 8.44 0.26 3.54 8.94 79.88 
DisEosals - - - - - 16.87 16.87 
Balance as at 

83.43 102.34 9.09 1.94 22.72 54.78 274.29 
March 31, 2019 
Additions - 16.61 1.90 0.45 - 18.96 
DisEosals - - - - - -

Balance as at 83.43 102.34 25.69 3.85 23.17 54.78 293.25 
March 31, 2020 

Accumulated depreciation: 

Freehold Leasehold 
Furniture 

Office Motor 
Particulars land Premises 

& 
Equipment 

Computer 
Vehicle 

Total 
Fixtures 

INRLacs I INRLacs I INRLacs INR Lacs I INRLacs I INR Lacs INRLacs 
Balance as at 3.60 0.23 0.65 14.00 23.49 41.97 
1" AEril, 2018 

-

DeEreciation eXEense - 1.24 0.39 0.35 5.03 7.30 14.32 
Eliminated on 

12.67 12.67 
disEosals of assets 

- - - - -

Balance as at 
4.84 0.63 1.00 19.03 18.12 43.62 31" March, 2019 

-

DeEreciation eXEense - 1.60 2.03 1.03 1.43 6.53 12.61 
Eliminated on 

- - - - - - -
disEosals of assets 
Balance as at 

6.44 2.66 2.03 20.46 24.65 56.23 
March 31, 2020 -

Net carrying 
amount as at 83.43 97.49 8.46 0.93 3.69 36.67 230.68 
March 31, 2019 
Net carrying 
amount as at 83.43 95.89 23.03 1.81 2.71 30.14 237.02 
March 31, 2020 

9. B Intangible assets: 

Gross Carrl:ing Amount: 
I Particulars I , Cochin Stock I ~ Software I ~ Total I 
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I I 
' Exchange Membershi~ I ~ I ~ I 
~ INRLacs I ~ INR Lacs I ! INR Lacs I 

Balance as at 1" A~ril, 2018 16.60 0.90 17.50 
Additions - 3.50 3.50 
DisEosals - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2019 16.60 4.40 21.00 
Additions - - -
DisEosals - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2020 16.60 4.40 21.00 

Accumulated Amortization / Impairment: 
Cochin Stock I Software I Total I Particulars Exchange Membershi~ 

INRLacs I INRLacs I INRLacs I 
Balance as at 1" A~ril, 2018 16.60 0.39 16.99 
Amortisation eXEense - 1.14 1.14 
on disEosals of assets - - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2019 16.60 1.54 18.15 
Amortisation eXj2ense - 1.40 1.40 
on disEosals of assets - - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2020 16.60 2.95 19.55 

Net carrying amount - 2.86 2.85 
as at March 31, 2019 
Net carrying amount - 1.46 1.46 
as at March 31, 2020 

10. Other Non-Financial assets: 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

INR Lacs INRLacs 
Advance to sUEEliers 1.40 258.65 
Other Advances - 3.10 
GST InEut Tax - 30.13 
PreEaid eXEenses 6.66 7.42 
Other Current assets 1.00 0.33 
Unamortized EXj2enses-Initial Public Offer 2.55 4.57 

Total 11.61 304.19 

11. Trade payables: 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

INR Lacs INR Lacs 
Dues to Micro and Small enterprises - -

Dues to Others 2.76 191.49 

Total 2.76 191.49 

Note: There are no dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 
which are outstanding for a period more than 45 days as on the balance sheet date. 

The above information regarding Micro and Small Enterprises has been determined on the basis of information available with the Company 
and has been duly relied upon by the auditors of the Company. 

12. Borrowings: 
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I I 
As at As at 

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 
INR Lacs INRLacs 

In India (at amortised cost) 
Secured 
Finance Lease Obligation (Refer note (i), note 12) 24.13 25.14 

24.13 25.14 
Unsecured 
Loans reEayable on demand 3,280.18 3,180.66 

TOTAL 3,304.31 3,205.80 
Footnotes: 
Security and other details: (i) Finance Lease Obligation represents Car Loan taken from Daimler Financial Services India Pvt Ltd of Rs. 

36,00,000 for a tenure of 5 years, repayable in monthly instalments ofRs. 59,436/- . & Loan from HDFC Bank (Car Loan) Rs 10,07,761/-
for a tenture of 5 years, repayable in monthly instalments ofRs 20,968/-. The said loans are secured against hypothecation of respective 
vehicles. 

13. Other Financial Liabilities: 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

INR Lacs INR Lacs i 
EmElo~ee related Ea~ables 9.30 13.74 
Managerial remuneration Ea~able 1.94 1.93 
Audit Fees Payable 1.94 2.07 
Other Ea~able 1.79 3.12 
Current Maturities of Long term Debt (Refer note 12) - 6.50 

Total 14.97 27.36 

14. Deferred Tax Liability: 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

INRLacs INR Lacs 
Deferred Tax Liabilities 
- on account of timing difference between closing WDV under Companies Act and that 

15.36 8.15 
of under Income Tax Act 
- on Other ComErehensive Income 56.76 47.69 

Total 72.13 55.84 

15. Other non financial liabilities 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

INR Lacs I INRLacs 
Advances received from Customers 51.96 68.63 
IDS Ea~able 10.08 25.28 
GSTPa~able 4.27 3.44 
Professional Tax Ea~able 0.01 -

Other advances 1.63 0.52 
Total 66.32 97.86 

16. Equity share capital: 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

I INRLacs I I INRLacs i 
Authorised: 1,\70.00 1,\70.00 
1,\7,00,000 (31.03.2019: 1,17,00,000) E'luit~ Shares ofR 10 each 
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Issued, Subscribed and Paid up: 1,168.20 1,168.20 
1,16,82,000 (31.03.2019: 1,16,82,000) Eguity Shares of Rs. 10 each 

Total 1,168.20 1,168.20 

16.1 Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year: 

Authorized share capital: 

I I 
As at 

I 
As at 

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 
INRLacs I I INRLacs 

Balance as at 1" A~ri1, 2018 117.00 117.00 
Add / (Less): Changes during the year - -

Balance as at 31st March, 2019 117.00 117.00 
Add / (Less): Changes during the year - -

Balance as at 31st March, 2020 117.00 117.00 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up share capital: 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

INRLacs INRLacs 
Balance as at 1" A~ri1, 2018 116.82 116.82 
Add / (Less): Changes during the year - -

Balance as at 31st March, 2019 116.82 116.82 
Add / (Less): Changes during the year - -

Balance as at 31st March, 2020 116.82 116.82 

16.2 Terms / rights attached to Equity Shares: 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of R 10/-. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per 
share. The Company declares and pays dividends if any, in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed, if any, by the Board of Directors is 
subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. 

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the 
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the 
Shareholders. 

16.3 Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5 % shares in the Company: 

Number of 
Holding 

Equity share of Rs. 10 each fully paid up with voting rights fully paid 
eg uit:!: shares 

INRLacs j ~ {%) 
Mahshri Enterprises Private Limited 
As at 31 & March, 2019 70.83 60.63% 
As at 31 & March, 2020 70.73 60.63% 

16.4 Details of shares held by holding company 

Number of 
Holding 

Equity share of Rs. 10 each fully paid up with voting rights fully paid 
eg uit:!: shares 

INRLacs {%) 
Mahshri E nter~rises Private Limited 
As at 31 & March, 2019 70.83 60.63% 
As at 31 & March, 2020 70.73 60.63% 

17. Other equity: 
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I I 
As at I As at 

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 
INRLacs ~ INR Lacs 

CaEital reserve 6.52 6.52 
General reserve 260.75 260.75 
Securities Eremium 317.68 317.68 
Retained earnings 719.89 629.19 
Other Comprehensive Income 527.15 680.63 

TOTAL 1,831.99 1,894.77 

17.1 Capital reserve: 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

INR Lacs j ~ INR Lacs 
Balance as at beginning of the ~ear 6.52 6.52 
Add/(Less): Movement during the year - -

Balance as at end of the l:ear 6.52 6.52 

17.2 Securities premium: 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

INRLacs INRLacs 
Balance as at beginning of the ~ear 317.68 317.68 
Add/(Less): Movement during the ~ear - -

Balance as at end of the l:ear 317.68 317.68 

17.3 General reserve: 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

INRLacs j ~ INRLacs 
Balance as at beginning of the year 260.75 260.75 
Add/(Less): Movement during the ~ear - -

Balance as at end of the l:ear 260.75 260.75 

Note: 
The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriations purposes. As the general reserve 
is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in the 
general reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss. 

17.4 Retained Earnings: 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

INR Lacs INR Lacs i 
Balance as at beginning of the ~ear 629.19 451.90 
Add/(Less): Profit/(loss) for the ~ear 90.71 177.29 
Balance as at end of the l:ear 719.89 629.19 

17.5 Other Comprehensive Income: 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

INR Lacs INR Lacs 
Balance as at beginning of the ~ear 680.63 712.12 
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Add/(Less):Profit for the year 
Total 

18. A. Revenue From Operations 

Particulars 

Income from fees earned 
- Investment and Dividend income 
Sale of shares and securities 

Total 

18 B. Other Income: 

Particulars 

Interest Income on Fixed Deposits 
Miscellaneous Income & I T Refund 

Total 

19. Finance Costs: 

Particulars 

Interest Expenses on: 
-Borrowings 
-Other borrowing costs 

Total 

20. Fees & Commission expenses: 

Particulars 

Commission and Brokerages 
Legal & Professional fees 
Advertisement & Publicity fees 
Listing Fees & Processing Fees 
Processing Fees/Application fees 
Director Sitting Fees 
Custodial Fees 

Total 

21. Employee Benefit Expense: 

Particulars 

Salaries, wages and bonus (including managerial remuneration) 
Managerial remuneration 

Staff welfare expenses 
Total 

22. Depreciation and amortisation expense: 

~ HHcYHmEHU 
26th ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20 

(153.48) 
527.15 

As at 
March 31, 2020 

INRLacs 
547.44 

6.91 
8,315.76 
8,870.10 

As at 
March 31 2020 

INRLacs 
74.57 

1.50 
76.07 

As at 
March 31, 2020 

INR Lacs 

280.34 
0.81 

281.14 

j 

As at 
March 31, 2020 

INRLacs 
6.36 

89.71 
45.45 

6.69 
1.83 
2.18 
3.71 

155.93 

As at 
March 31, 2020 

INR Lacs 
135.23 
28.68 

2.01 
165.92 

(31.49) 
680.63 

As at 
March 31, 2019 

INR Lacs 
953.15 

23.58 
7,620.20 
8,596.93 

As at 
March 31, 2019 

INRLacs 
79.38 
0.23 

79.60 

As at 
March 31, 2019 

INR Lacs 

243.56 
0.74 

244.30 

As at 
March 31, 2019 

INRLacs 
174.54 
108.19 
67.56 
23.13 

2.31 
1.56 
0.90 

378.20 

As at 
March 31, 2019 

INR Lacs 
172.66 
22.50 
4.84 

200.00 
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I I 
As at As at 

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 
INR Lacs INR Lacs 

DeEreciation of EroEert~, Elant and eguiEment (Refer note 9) 12.64 14.32 
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer note 9) 1.40 1.14 
IPO EXEenses amortised - 5.28 

Total 14.04 20.73 

23. Other Expenses: 

I 
As at As at 

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31 2019 
INR Lacs ~ INR Lacs 

Rent Rates and Taxes 4.36 3.86 
TeleEhone EXEenses 2.17 2.44 
Professional/ Agenc~ fees & Other eXEenses - 1.99 
MembershiE fees and subscriEtion 6.06 6.33 
IPO EXEenses 2.02 2.02 
Electricit~ Charges 1.60 2.49 
Payment to Statutor~ Auditors - -

-For Audit 1.83 1.79 
-For Taxation Matter 0.20 0.20 
-For Limited Review 0.30 0.17 
Office Administration EXEenses 40.71 78.75 
Miscellaneous eXEenses 4.26 2.41 
Director Sitting Fees 1.64 0.60 
Penalty Eaid 0.31 -

Interest on dela~ed Ea~ment of statutor~ dues 2.12 1.39 
RTA EXEenses (Demat charges) 0.36 1.11 
Securit~ Transaction Tax 14.74 8.94 
ReEairs & Maintainence - Others 4.57 1.04 

Total 87.25 115.54 

24. Contingent liabilities & Commitments: 

The Group does not have any contingent liabilities and Commitments (Including Capital Commitments as on March 31, 2020 (As at March 
31,2019 - Nil). 

25. Earning Per share: 

I Particulars I As at As at 
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Profit after tax available for eguit~ shareholders (INR Lacs) 93.29 179.28 
Weighted average number of eguit~ shares (Nos.) 116.82 116.82 
Nominal value of eguit~ shares of Rs. 10 each 10.00 10.00 
Basic and diluted Earning Per Share - INR 0.80 1.53 

26. Segment Reporting: 

The Group's Board of Directors has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) as defined under Ind AS 108 
"Operating Segments". The CODM evaluates the Company's performance and allocated the resources based on an analysis of various 
performance indicators. The Group is primarily engaged in the business of financial services The same has been considered as business 
segment and the management considers these as a single reportable segment. Accordingly, disclosure of segment information has not been 
furnished. 

27. Related party disclosures: 
a) As per IND AS 24, the disclosures of transactions with the related parties are given below: 

I Categor;r ! I Name of the Related Part;r/ RelationshiE ! 
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Holding ComEan~ Mahshri EnterErises Pvt Ltd 
Mr. ShriEal Shah, Director & CFO 

Key Managerial Personnel 
Mr. Shre~as Shah, Director 
Ms Gunjan Kataruka, ComEan~ Secretar~ (uE to OS/01l2020) 
Ms. Chaitali Pansari, ComEan~ Secretar~ (w.e.f09/01/2020) 

Entities in which KMP have significant influence 
Vardharuan Investment (proErietor - Mrs. RooEa Shah (Mother of ShirEal Shah) 
Mrs. Meloni Shah (Wife of ShriEal Shah & EmElo~ee) 

b) Transactions carried out with related parties referred in 1 above, in ordinary course of business: 
As at As at 

Name of the Related Party March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 
lNRLacs i i lNR Lacs 

Mr. ShriEal Shah - Salar~ Paid IS.OO IS.OO 
Mr. Shre~as Shah - Salar~ Paid 9.00 9.00 
Mr. DeeEesh Jain - Salar~ Paid - S.16 
Mrs. Meloni Shah - Salar~ Paid 1.95 1.95 
Ms.Chaitali Pansari - Salar~ Paid 1.31 -

Ms. Gunjan Kataruka - Salar~ Paid 5.26 S.SO 

c) Balances outstanding: 
As at As at 

Name of the Related Party March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 
lNRLacs lNRLacs 

Office DeEosit - Vardhaman Investment (proErietor - Mrs. RooEa Shah) 250.00 250.00 
Salar~ Pa~able to: 
Mr. ShriEal Shah 1.20 1.19 
Mr. Shre~as Shah 0.75 0.74 
Ms Chaitali Pansari 0.43 -

Ms. Gunjan Kataruka - 0.53 
Mrs. Meloni Shah 0.15 0.15 

28. Income taxes: 

a) Tax expense recognized in the Statement of profit and loss: 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

lNRLacs lNR Lacs 
Current tax 

Current year 30.51 6S.24 
Total current tax 30.51 68.24 
Deferred tax 

Relating to origination and reversal of temEorar~ difference 7.22 (4.6S) 
Total deferred income tax eXEense/(credit) 7.22 (4.68) 
Total income tax eXEense/(credit) 37.73 63.56 

A reconciliation between the statutory income tax rate applicable to the Company and the effective income tax rate of the Company is as 
follows: 

b) Reconciliation of effective tax rate: 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

lNRLacs i i lNR Lacs 
Profit l(loss) before taxation 131.02 242.S5 
Enacted income tax rate in India 27.S2% 27.S2% 
Tax at the enacted income tax rate 36.45 67.56 
Reconciliation line items: 
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Other items not taxable (\.28) 3.99 
Tax ex~ense/ (credit) 37.73 63.57 

c) The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during tbe year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019: 

I 
As at 

Credit! (charge) in 
As at 

Particulars March 31, 2018 
Statement of 

March 31, 2019 
~rofit and loss 

INRLacs I INRLacs INRLacs 
Deferred tax assets/(Jiabilities) 
-On Account of timing difference between 
closing WDV under Companies Act and that 12.82 (4.68) 8.14 
of under Income Tax Act 
-On Otber Com~rehensive Income 22.49 25.21 47.70 

Total 35.31 20.53 55.84 

As at 
Credit/ (charge) in 

As at 
Particulars March 31, 2019 

Statement of 
March 31, 2020 

~rofit and loss 
INRLacs i I INRLacs i I INR Lacs 

Deferred tax assets/(Jiabilities) 
-On Account of timing difference between 
closing WDV under 

8.14 7.22 15.35 
Companies Act and that of under Income 
Tax Act 
-On Otber Com~rehensive Income 47.70 9.06 56.76 

Total 55.84 16.28 72.13 

29. Financial instruments: 

The fair values of tbe financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current 
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. 

The following metbods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values: 

I. Fair value of cash and short-term deposits, trade and otber short term receivables, trade payables, otber current liabilities, short term 
loans from banks and otber financial institutions approximate tbeir carrying amounts largely due to short term maturities of tbese 
instruments. 

2. Financial instruments with fixed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates 
and individual credit worthiness of tbe counterparty. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken to account for expected losses of 
these receivables. Accordingly, fair value of such instruments is not materially different from tbeir carrying amounts. 

The Group uses tbe following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique: 

• Levell: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

• Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either 
directly or indirectly. 

• Level 3: techniques which use inputs tbat have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable 
market data. 

The carrying amounts and fair values of financial instruments by category are as follows: 

For March 31, 2020: 

FVOCI FVTPL Amortized cost 
Total fair Carrying 

Particulars 
value amount 

INR INR 
Lacs Lacs 

INRLacs INRLacs INRLacs 
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Financial assets 
Investments 2,084.93 2,084.93 2,084.93 
Trade receivables 27.21 27.21 27.21 
Cash and cash equivalents 37.13 37.13 37.13 
Other bank balances 1,140.67 1,140.67 1,140.67 
Other financial assets 391.99 391.99 391.99 
Total Financial assets 2,084.93 1,597.00 3,681.93 3,681.93 
Financial liabilities 
Borrowings 3,304.31 3,304.31 3,304.31 
Trade payables 2.76 2.76 2.76 
Others 14.97 14.97 14.97 
Total financial liabilities 3,322.04 3,322.04 3,322.04 

For March 31, 2019: 

Particulars 
FVOCI FVTPL Amortized cost 

Total fair Carrying 
value amount 

INR INR 
INRLacs INRLacs INRLacs 

Lacs Lacs 
Financial assets 
Investments 2,784.76 2,784.76 2,784.76 
Trade receivables 28.62 28.63 28.63 
Cash and cash equivalents 102.72 102.72 102.72 
Other bank balances 1,236.52 1,236.52 1,236.52 
Other financial assets 60.79 60.79 60.79 
Total Financial assets 2,784.76 1,428.64 4,213.40 4,213.40 
Financial liabilities 
Borrowings 3,205.80 3,205.80 3,205.80 
Trade payables 191.49 191.49 191.49 
Others 27.36 27.36 27.36 
Total financial liabilities 3,424.64 3,424.64 3,424.64 

Fair value estimation: 
'For financial instruments measured at fair value in the Balance Sheet, a three level fair value hierarchy is used that reflects the significance 
of inputs used in the measurements. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical 
assets or liabilities (Levell measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). 

The categories used are as follows: 
• Level I: quoted prices for identical instruments 
• Level 2: directly or indirectly observable market inputs, other than Level I inputs; and 
• Level 3: inputs which are not based on observable market data. 

For assets and liabilities which are carried at fair value, the classification of fair value calculations by category is summarized below: 

For March 31, 2020: 

Particulars 
Level 3 Levell Level 2 

INRLacs INRLacs INRLacs 
Assets at fair value - Investments 2,084.93 

For March 31, 2019: 

Particulars 
Level 3 Levell Level 2 

INR Lacs INRLacs INRLacs 
Assets at fair value - Investments 2,784.76 

There were no siguificant changes in classification and no siguificant movements between the fair value hierarchy classifications of 
financial assets and financial liabilities during the period. 
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30. Financial risk factors: 

The Group's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings. advances and trade and other payables. The purpose of these 
financial liabilities is to finance the Group's operations and to provide to support its operations. The Group's principal financial assets 
include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. 

The Group's activities expose it to Liquidity Risk, Market Risk and Credit risk. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for 
managing each of these risks, which are summarized as below. 

a) Liquidity Risk: 

The risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash 
or another financial asset. Liquidity risk management implies maintenance sufficient cash including availability of funding through an 
adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet the obligations as and when due. 

The Group manages its liquidity risk by ensuring as far as possible that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its short term and long term 
liabilities as and when due. Anticipated future cash flows are expected to be sufficient to meet the liquidity requirements of the Group. The 
Group does not have any undrawn borrowing facilities with the BarikslFinancial institutions. 

i. The following is the contractual maturities of the financial liabilities: 

As at March 31, 2020: 

Particulars 

Borrowings 
Trade payables 
Other financial liabilities 

TOTAL 

As at March 31, 2019: 

Particulars 

Borrowings 
Trade payables 
Other financial liabilities 

TOTAL 

b) Market risk: 

Carrying amount 

INRLacs 
3,304.31 

2.76 
14.97 

3,322.04 

Carrying amount 

INRLacs 
3,205.80 

191.49 
27.36 

3,424.65 

Payable on demand 

INRLacs 
3,208.18 

3,208.18 

Payable on demand 

INRLacs 
3,180.66 

3,180.66 

1-12 
months 

INRLacs 
6.92 
2.76 

14.97 
24.65 

1-12 
months 

INRLacs 
5.11 

191.49 
27.36 

223.96 

More than 
12 months 
INRLacs 

17.21 

17.21 

More than 
12 months 
INRLacs 

20.03 

20.03 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. 
Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. 
Financial instruments affected by market risk include investment, deposits, foreign currency receivables and payables. The Group's treasury 
team manages the Market risk, which evaluates and exercises independent control over the entire process of market risk management. 

i. Foreign currency risk: 
Foreign currency risk can only arise on financial instruments that are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency in which 
they are measured. The Group's functional and presentation currency is INR. The Group does not have any foreign currency transactions 
and hence is not exposed to the Foreign Currency Risks 

ii. Interest rate risk: 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market 
interest rates. The Group's does not have any long term borrowings. Hence, the Group is not exposed to the interest rate risk. 

iii. Price risk: 
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The Company's exposure to equity securities price risk arises from investments held by the Group and classified in the balance sheet either 
at fair value through OCI or at fair value through profit and loss. To manage its price risk arising from investments in equity securities, the 
Company offsets its risk through strong research policies practice followed 

Sensitivity: 
The table below summarizes the impact of increases/(decreases) of the BSE index on the Company's equity and Gain/ (Loss) for the 
period. The analysis is based on the assumption that the index has increased by 5 % or decreased by 5 % with all other variables held 
constant, and that all the Company's equity instruments moved in line with the index. 

Impact on Profit before tax: 

Particulars 

BSE Sensex - Increase 5 % 

BSE Sensex - Decrease 5 % 

iv. Underwriting Risk: 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020 

INR Lacs 
104.25 

(104.25) 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2019 

INR Lacs 
139.24 

(139.24) 

The Group undertakes underwriting of various public issues of Securities in the Capital Market. This risk includes market making for new 
securities. This includes compulsion to provide two way quotes to a client s on a Stock exchange. The Company carries cash flow risk in 
case it is required to compensate Underwriter for not able to provide the quoted. The Company manages this risk by underwriting issues 
only after strong research conducted by it 

c) Credit risk: 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counter-party fails to meet its contractual obligations. The Group is 
exposed to credit risks from its operating activities, primarily trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks and other 
financial instruments. The Group is not significantly exposed to the credit risk toward trade receivables considering the nature of services 
provided by the Company. 

Trade receivables that have exposure to the Credit risks: 

Particulars 

Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using 
12 months Expected Credit Losses (ECL) 
- Trade Receivables 

Trade and other receivables: 

As at 
March 31, 2020 

INRLacs 

27.21 

As at 
March 31, 2019 

INR Lacs ~ 

28.62 

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of assets and whether there has been a significant increase in credit 
risks on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. 

To assess whether there is a significant change increase in credit risk the Group compares the risks of default occurring on the assets as at 
the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers the reasonable and supportive forward looking 
information such as: 

i. Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business. 
ii. Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the counterparty. 

iii. Financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the counterparty's ability to meet its obligations 
iv. Significant increase in credit risk on other financial instruments of same counterparty 

Ageing of the accounts receivables 

Particulars 

< six months 
> six months 

As at 
March 31, 2020 

INRLacs 
24.79 

2.42 
27.21 

As at 
March 31, 2019 
INR Lacs 

21.43 
7.19 

28.63 
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Movement in provisions of doubtful debts and advances - There were no Provision of doubtful debts as on March 31, 2020 and March 31, 
2019. 

31. Capital risk management: 

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to: 

i. safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for 
other stakeholders, and 

ii. maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital 

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the parent Company may issue new shares, adjust the amount of dividends paid to 
shareholders etc. The Group's policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain 
investor, creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its business. The Group will take appropriate 
steps in order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure. 

32. The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic is causing significant disturbance and slowdown of economic activities globally. The 
nationwide lockdown ordered by the Government of India has resulted in significant reduction in economic activities and also the 
business operations of the Company in terms of sales and production. The management has considered the possible effects that 
may result from the pandemic on the recoverability 1 carrying value of the assets. Based on the current indicators of future 
economic conditions, the management expects to recover the carrying amount of the assets, however the management will 
continue to closely monitor any material changes to futureeconomic conditions. Given the uncertainties, the final impact on 
Company's assets in future may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial results. 

33. There are no litigations pending by or against the Company. 

34. The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 31" July, 2020. 

35. Recent Accounting prouncements 

Ind AS 116 - Leases: 
On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate affairs have notified Ind AS 116 - "Leases", Ind AS 116 will replace the existing leases 
standards Ind AS 17 - "Leases" and related interpretations, The new standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, 
presentation and disclosures of lease for both lease and lessor. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lease accounting model and requires a 
leas see to recognise the assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying assets are of low 
value. Ind AS 116 substantially carried forward the accounting treatment prescribed for lessor. The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 
116 is annual period beginning on or after April 0 I, 2019. The Company is evaluating the impact of the issued Ind AS 116 on its financial 
statements. 

Ind AS 12 -"Income taxes" - Appendix C - Uncertainty over income tax treatments: 
On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate affairs have notified Appendix C to Ind AS 12, uncertainty over the income tax treatments 

which is to be applied while performing the determination of taxable profits/(loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax 
rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. According to the appendix, the company needs to determine 
the probability of the relevant tax authorities accepting the each tax treatments that the companies have used or plan to use in their income 
tax filings which has to be considered to compute the most likely amount or expected value of the tax treatments, when determining the 
taxable profits/(loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates. The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 116 is annual 
period beginning on or after April 01, 2019. The Company is evaluating the impact of the issued appendix C on its financial statements. 

36. Following subsidiary is considered in the consolidated financial statements: 

Sr. No. Name of Entity Country of % holding either directly or through 
Incorporation Subsidiaries 

31103/2020 I 31103/2019 
Direct Subsidiaries 

1. Aryaman Capital Markets India 74.28% 74.28% 
Limited 

2. Escorp Asset Management India 52.47% 52.47% 
Limited 
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36. Disclosure of Additional information required by Division II of Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013: 

Share in Profits and 
Share in other Share in total 

Net assets 
losses 

Comprehensive Comprehensive 
Sr. 

Name of Entity 
income income 

No 
As % of Rs. In As % of Rs. In As % of Rs. In As % of Rs. In 
consolidated Lakhs consolidated Lakhs consolidated Lakhs consolidated Lakhs 
net assets net assets net assets net assets 

Atyaman Financial 
1 Services Limited. 21.71 % 89.50% 83.50 0.00% - -72.12% 83.50 

Patent 915.16 
Atyaman Capital 

2 Matkets Limited, 41.94% 10.16% 9.48 96.01% (200.72) 165.17% (191.24) 
Subsidiaty 1,767.80 
Escorp Assets 

3 Management 36.35% 0.33% 0.31 3.99% (8.35) 6.94% (8.04) 
Limited, Subsidiaty 1,532.41 
Total 100.00% 4,215.37 100.00% 93.29 100.00% (209.07) 100.00% (115.78) 

37. The figures of the previous yeats have been regrouped or reclassified wherever necessaty to make them compatable. 

38. Figures have been rounded off to the neatest lacs of rupees. 

39. Figures in brackets indicate negative figures. 

FOR V.N. PUROHIT & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 

For and on behalf of the Aryaman Financial Services Limited 

Firm Regn. No. 304040E 

Sd/­
O.P.Pareek 
Pattner 
Membership No. 014238 
UDIN: - 20014238AAAADX7753 

Date: 31 st July, 2020 
Place: Mumbai 

Sd/-
Shripal Shah 
(Executive Director) 
DIN: 01628855 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: July 31,2020 

Sd/-
Shreyas Shah 
(Executive Director) 
DIN: 01835575 

Sd/-
Chaitali Pansari 
(Company Secretaty) 
PAN: BKHPP6512N 

Page 1114 


